
�

AGENDA�
�

Meeting� Police�and�Crime�Committee�

Date� Thursday�8�March�2012�

Time� 2.00�pm�

Place� Chamber,�City�Hall,�The�Queen's�
Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at�http://www.london.gov.uk/who-runs-
london/the-london-assembly/committees/police-and-crime-committee��
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
http://www.london.gov.uk/who-runs-london/the-london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�
view�past�meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
�
Joanne�McCartney�(Chair)�
Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair)�
Tony�Arbour�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�
Gareth�Bacon�
John�Biggs�

Victoria�Borwick�
James�Cleverly�
Jenny�Jones�
Steve�O'Connell�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�
Mike�Tuffrey�

�
A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chair�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�business�

listed�below.�This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public.�There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�

induction�loops�are�available.�
Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Wednesday�29�February�2012�
Further�Information�
�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�John�Johnson�or�Anthony�Jackson;�Telephone:�020�7983�4926/4894;�E-mail:�
john.johnson@london.gov.uk/anthony.jackson@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�Mark�Demery,�Tel:��020�7983�5769,�email:�
mark.demery@london.gov.uk�
�
If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�reports�please�contact�the�report�author�whose�details�are�
at�the�end�of�each�report.��
�
There�is�limited�underground�parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�
first-come�first-served�basis.��Please�contact�Facilities�Management�(020�7983�4750)�in�advance�if�
you�require�a�parking�space�or�further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Police�and�Crime�Committee�
Thursday�8�March�2012�
�
�

1. Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.�

�
�

2. Declarations�of�Interest�(Pages�1�-�2)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�
(a)� Note�the�list�of�memberships�of�functional�bodies�and�London�Borough�

Councils,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�Item�2;��
�
(b)� Note�the�gifts�and�hospitality�received�by�Members,�as�set�out�on�the�

Authority’s�gifts�and�hospitality�register;�and�
�
(c)� Declare�any�other�personal�or�personal�prejudicial�interests�in�specific�items�

listed�on�the�agenda�over�and�above�those�items�listed�in�the�table�at�Item�2�
and�including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�or�hospitality�received�within�
the�previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�
Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�which�are�not�at�the�time�of�this�meeting�
reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�of�gifts�and�hospitality.�

�
�

3. Minutes�(Pages�3�-�50)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�Police�

and�Crime�Committee�held�on�23�February�2012�to�be�signed�by�the�Chair�as�a�
correct�record.�
�

� The�appendix�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�7�to�49�is�attached�for�Members�and�officers�only�
but�is�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�http://www.london.gov.uk/who-
runs-london/the-london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee��
�
�

4. Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�51�-�60)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�John�Johnson;�john.johnson@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4926�
�
That�the�Committee�notes�the�ongoing,�outstanding�and�completed�actions�arising�
from�previous�meetings�of�the�Committee,�as�listed�in�the�report.�
�
�



�

4�
�

5. Question�and�Answer�Session�with�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�
Crime�and�the�Deputy�Commissioner�for�the�Metropolitan�Police�(Pages�61�
-�92)�

�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a)� Note�as�background�to�the�question�and�answer�session�with�the�Deputy�

Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime�and�the�Deputy�Commissioner�for�the�

Metropolitan�Police�Service�(MPS)�the�monthly�report�from�the�Mayor’s�
Office�for�Policing�and�Crime�attached�at�Appendix�1;�and�

�

(b)� Note�the�answers�given�by�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime�and�the�
Deputy�Commissioner�for�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�to�the�questions�

asked�by�Members.�
�
�
�

6. Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�



                                                                    

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

London
Assembly

Membership
of
Functional
Bodies
and
London
Borough
Councils


 

Member
 (Personal)
Interest

Tony�Arbour
 Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond

Jennette�Arnold� �
Gareth�Bacon� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs� �
Victoria�Borwick� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�

Chelsea�
James�Cleverly� Member,�LDA�
Jenny�Jones� �
Joanne�McCartney� �
Steve�O’Connell� Member,�LB�Croydon�
Caroline�Pidgeon� �
Valerie�Shawcross� �
Mike�Tuffrey� Member,�LFEPA�

�
[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LDA�–�London�Development�Agency;�LFEPA�–�London�Fire�and�
Emergency�Planning�Authority]�

 

Recommendations:




(i) That
the
list
of
memberships
of
functional
bodies
and
London
Borough
Councils,
as

set
out
in
the
table
above,
be
noted;






(ii) That
gifts
and
hospitality
received
by
Members,
as
set
out
on
the
Authority’s
gifts


and
hospitality
register,
be
noted;
and




(iii) That
all
Members
declare
any
other
personal
or
personal
prejudicial
interests
in


specific
items
listed
on
the
agenda
over
and
above
those
items
listed
in
the
table

above
and
including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
or
hospitality
received
within


the
previous
three
years
or
from
the
date
of
election
to
the
London
Assembly,


whichever
is
the
later,
which
are
not
at
the
time
of
this
meeting
reflected
on
the

Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality.


�
The�above�memberships�of�the�GLA’s�Functional�Bodies�and�London�Borough�Councils�are�listed�for�
the�purposes�of�public�transparency.��However,�Members�should�note�that�in�accordance�with�the�
GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�they�must�declare�any�other�personal
interests
(except�interests�arising�
from�gifts�and�hospitality�that�appear�on�the�gifts�and�hospitality�register�at�the�time�of�the�
meeting)
they�have�in�any�item�on�the�agenda�or�as�they�arise�during�the�course�of�the�meeting.��
Members�must�say�to�which�item�their�interest�relates.���If�they�have�a�personal�interest�Members�
must�also�consider�whether�or�not�that�interest�is�a
prejudicial
personal
interest�and�take�the�
necessary�action.��When�considering�whether�or�not�they�have�a�declarable�interest,�Members�should�
consult�paragraphs�8-12�of�the�Code.���
�
A�personal
interest
is,�generally,�one�that�would�affect�a�Member�(either�directly�or�through�a�
connection�with�a�relevant�person�or�organisation)�more�than�other�people�in�London,�in�respect�of�
the�item�of�business�under�consideration�at�the�meeting.��
�
If�a�member�of�the�public,�knowing�all�the�relevant�facts,�would�view�a�Member’s�personal�interest�in�
the�item�under�consideration�as�so�substantial�that�it�would�appear�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�
judgment�of�the�public�interest,�then�the�Member�has�a�prejudicial
personal
interest.�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�

The�Code�of�Conduct�also�specifically�requires�Members,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�
or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�
value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�
Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�
of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

�

The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�as�a�personal�interest�is�discharged,�
subject�to�the�proviso�set�out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�
on-line�database.�The�on-line�database�may�be�viewed�here:�http://www.london.gov.uk/gifts-and-
hospitality-register.�At�Assembly�meetings,�under�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item,�Members�
are�then�asked�to�note�that�gifts�and�hospitality�received�by�Members�are�set�out�on�the�Authority's�
register.�

�

If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�
the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�
whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�required�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�agenda�Item�2�or�when�the�interest�becomes�
apparent.



�

It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�an�interest�arising�from�
the�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�is�also�a�prejudicial�personal�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality�does�give�rise�to�a�prejudicial�interest�the�Member�must�withdraw�from�the�room�and�not�
seek�to�improperly�influence�any�relevant�decision.�


Consequences:�If�a�Member�has�a�personal
interest:�they�must�declare�the�interest�but�can�stay,�
speak�and�vote.��If�the�Member�has�prejudicial
personal
interest:�they�declare�the�interest,�
cannot�speak�or�vote�on�the�item�and�must�leave�the�room.���

Page 2



�
�

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk�

MINUTES

�

Meeting:
 Police
and
Crime
Committee

Date:
 Thursday
23
February
2012

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Chamber,
City
Hall,
The
Queen's


Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:
www.london.gov.uk/who-runs-london/the-london-assembly/police-
and-crime-committee�





�
Present:

�
Joanne�McCartney�(Chair)�
Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair)�
Tony�Arbour�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�
Gareth�Bacon�
John�Biggs�
Victoria�Borwick�
James�Cleverly�
Jenny�Jones�
Steve�O'Connell�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�
Mike�Tuffrey�
�
�

1. Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1� Apologies�were�received�from�Jennette�Arnold�AM�and�Steve�O’Connell�AM�





2. Declarations
of
Interest
(Item
2)�




2.1� Resolved:���

�

(a)

 That
the
relevant
Assembly
Members’
membership
of
Functional
Bodies
and


London
Borough
Councils,
as
set
out
in
Item
2
on
the
agenda,
be
noted
and


recorded
as
personal
interests;
and


Agenda Item 3

Page 3



Greater
London
Authority

Police
and
Crime
Committee

Thursday
23
February
2012


�

�
�




(b) That
gifts
and
hospitality
received
by
Members
in
the
previous
three
years,
as


set
out
on
the
Authority’s
gifts
and
hospitality
register,
be
noted.�





3. Minutes
(Item
3)�




3.1 Resolved:





That
the
minutes
of
the
Police
and
Crime
Committee
meetings
held
on
26
January


2012
and
2
February
2012
be
signed
by
the
Chair
as
a
correct
record.�





4. Summary
List
of
Actions
(Item
4)�




4.1 The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

4.2 Resolved:


�
That
the
ongoing,
outstanding
and
completed
actions
arising
from
previous

meetings
of
the
Committee,
as
listed
in
the
report,
be
noted.






5. The
Metropolitan
Police
Service
Policing
Plan
and
the
Police
Budget


2012/13
(Item
5)�



5.1 The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�and�the�appended�

Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime�(MOPC)�report�on�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�

(MPS)�policing�plan.�

�

5.2 The�following�guests�attended�the�meeting�to�answer�the�Committee’s�questions�about�the�

MPS�policing�plan�and�the�Police�Budget�2012/13:�

�

• Bob�Atkins,�Chief�Financial�Officer,�MOPC;�

• Professor�Martin�Innes,�Director�of�the�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff;�

• Craig�Mackey,�Deputy�Commissioner,�Metropolitan�Police�Service;�

• Anne�McMeel,�Director�of�Resources,�Metropolitan�Police�Service;�and�

• Kit�Malthouse�AM,�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing.�

�

���5.3� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�as�Appendix
1.�

�

5.4� During�the�discussion,�the�Committee�requested�that�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�

Crime�provides�the�Committee�with�written�clarification�of�the�riot�damage�costs�which�the�

Government�will�cover.�

Page 4



Greater
London
Authority

Police
and
Crime
Committee

Thursday
23
February
2012


�

�
�

�

5.5� The�Deputy�Commissioner�of�the�MPS�also�undertook�to�confirm�in�writing:�

�

• the�number�of�staff�members�that�make�up�the�MPS�workforce;�and�

• where�the�1,126�officers,�which�make�up�the�gang�crime�unit,�have�come�from.��

�

5.6� During�the�discussion,�Jenny�Jones�AM�raised�concerns�about�the�MPS’�efficiency�given�the�

number�of�instances�where�police�officers�were�filling�civilian�staff�vacancies.��Jenny�Jones�

AM�undertook�to�write�to�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime,�Kit�Malthouse,�with�

detailed�examples�and�Mr�Malthouse�confirmed�he�would�provide�a�response.�

�

5.7
 Resolved:





(a)
 That
the
report
and
discussion
be
noted,
subject
to
it
additionally
being


noted
that
the
information
contained
in
the
MPS
Policing
Plan
(Appendix
1


to
the
report)
referred
to
the
position
as
at
December
2011
and
was


therefore
out
of
date;
and





(b)
 That
it
be
noted
that
the
Deputy
Mayor
for
Policing
and
Crime
and
the


Deputy
Commissioner
of
the
MPS
undertook
to
provide
the
Committee
with


the
information
set
out
above.







6. Date
of
the
Next
Meeting
�




6.1� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�would�be�held�on�8�March�2012�at�2pm,�in�the�Chamber�

at�City�Hall.�





7. Close
of
Meeting
�



7.1� The�meeting�ended�at�12.22�pm.�





�
�
� � � �
Chair� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 John�Johnson�or�Anthony�Jackson;�Telephone:�020�7983�4926/4894;�E-mail:�

john.johnson@london.gov.uk/anthony.jackson@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�
7983�4458�

�

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix�1�

�

Police�and�Crime�Committee�

�

23�February�2012�

�

Transcript�of�Item�5:�The�Metropolitan�Police�Service�(MPS)�Policing�Plan�and�the�

Police�Budget�2012-13�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��We�are�going�to�move�now�to�our�main�item�today�which�is�to�

look�at�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�(MPS)�Policing�Plan�and�Police�Budget.��We�have�guests�

with�us�today.��

�

Can�I�start�today�by�just�asking�Kit�that,�in�a�time�of�austerity,�you�in�the�Police�Commission�

have�talked�about�needing�a�different�approach�to�policing�in�the�future,�particularly�following�

the�Olympic�Games,�and�that�there�have�to�be�radically�different�approaches�to�deal�with�

reduced�funding.��There�is�nothing�so�far�set�out�in�writing�so�I�wondered�if�you�could�open�by�

explaining�a�little�bit�about�some�of�the�areas�you�are�looking�at�and�what�the�timescale�would�

be�for�setting�out�some�of�those�new�approaches.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�timescale�on�these�things�

is�always�as�soon�as�possible�but�there�is�the�challenge�of�whether�the�organisation�is�able�to�

deliver�any�radical�changes�without�causing�operational�or�internal�structural�problems�and�

unintended�consequences,�but�there�are�a�number�of�areas.��The�big�area�for�us�is�80%�of�the�

money�goes�on�police�officers�and�staff�so�thinking�about�that�staff�mix�and�what�it�looks�like�

over�the�next�three�to�five�years,�allied�to�the�challenges�that�we�face�in�the�city,�the�general�

move�towards�civilianisation�of�posts�but,�at�the�same�time,�recognising�that�there�are�certain�

things�that�only�police�officers�can�do�and�therefore�we�need�to�get�that�balance�right.��Also,�

internally�within�the�different�cadres�of�staff,�thinking�about�rank�mix.��There�are�savings�in�a�

reduction�in�senior�rank�numbers�and�an�increase�in�lower�ranks�and�whether�that�also�has�an�

operational�impact.��Similarly,�the�same�is�true�across�the�police�staff�area.�

�

Then,�on�the�other�side�of�things,�there�are�what�Tim�Godwin�[former�Deputy�Commissioner,�

MPS]�used�to�call�inanimate�objects.��As�you�know�from�your�time�on�the�Metropolitan�Police�

Authority�(MPA)�we�are�trying�to�be�as�imaginative�as�we�can�be.��There�are�two�broad�areas,�

one�is�the�better�use�of�technology.��The�Commissioner�puts�it�very�neatly�when�he�says�the�

MPS�is�still�more�green�screen�than�iPad�and�whether�we�can�use�technology�to�both�make�

ourselves�more�efficient�and�drive�out�cost�but�also�reduce�other�demands�like�property,�cars,�

officers�and�all�those�kinds�of�things.�

�

Then�the�other�big�thing�I�think�is�very�important�is�breaking�down�the�territoriality�both�within�

the�MPS�but�also�within�the�overall�GLA�family�and�within�the�wider�London�family.��We�are�

seeing�some�of�that:�co-location,�co-commissioning�of�services.��Not�just�with�local�authorities�

and�with�other�GLA�bodies�but�also�with�private�sector�organisations.��We�have�got�some�front�

counters�in�supermarkets�now�in�north�London.��Those�kinds�of�areas�will�be�fruitful�for�us.�

�

Page 7



 

It�is�also�about�being�realistic�of�the�strictures�that�we�are�under.��That�is�the�third�big�area.��We�

cannot�afford�now�some�of�the�luxuries�or�indulgences�of�the�past�and�we�need�to�be�much�

more�rigorous�about�controlling�our�overall�asset�and�expenditure.��There�are�questions�about�

the�efficient�use�of�overtime.��There�are�questions�about�the�use�of�the�fleet.��Whether�that�is�

always�used�on�operational�or�whether�it�is�sometimes�used�to�get�people�to�and�from�home.��

There�are�all�sorts�of�areas�where�you�can�trim�and�change�the�thinking.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that.��We�have�a�range�of�questions�in�our�minds�

already�that�relate�to�many�of�those�issues.��Before�we�get�into�those,�Craig,�do�you�want�to�add�

anything�to�that�opening?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�think,�Chair,�Mr�Malthouse�has�covered�most�

of�the�areas�I�would�have�covered.��This�really�is�a�parallel�stream�of�work�that�is�going�on�

alongside�the�work�we�are�doing�around�the�Olympics.��We�are�two�weeks�away�from�getting�a�

budget�set�for�this�year,�for�knowing�the�money�we�have�got�and�the�work�around�that,�so�it�is�

now�a�case�of�looking�out�and�modelling�what�the�horizon�will�look�like�two�to�three�years�out�

from�now.��There�are�many,�many�variables�that�are�affecting�the�sensitivities�around�what�the�

budget�gaps�will�look�like�for�years�two,�three�and�beyond.�

�

As�Mr�Malthouse�says,�all�of�those�areas�of�budget�line�are�in�play.��The�Commissioner�has�been�

quite�clear�that�we�will�look�at�every�budget�line�we�have�got�in�terms�of�the�ability�to�identify�

savings�and�do�things�differently.��Some�of�that�will�be�about�sharing�and�doing�things�in�a�

different�way�across�London�and�there�is�some�real�potential�to�look,�in�the�medium�to�long�

term,�to�deliver�services�quite�differently�working�with�other�partners.��Some�of�that�will�be�

around�those�fixed�costs:�the�boardings,�the�fleet,�the�assets.�

�

The�other�one�that�we�are�all�very,�very�keen�on�is�this�opportunity�that�new�technology�

presents�to�do�things�differently.��There�are�some�real�opportunities�going�forward�-�be�it�in�

direct�crime�fighting�or�in�back�office�processing�-�to�do�things�differently�to�how�we�do�them�

now.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��As�we�go�through�the�budget�

process�over�the�last�two�or�three�years�we�are�going�through�broadly�the�traditional�local�

authority�process�which�is�you�have�got�your�budget�gap,�you�look�for�your�savings�and�you�try�

to�do�things�differently.��Sometimes�that�is�centralisation�or�sometimes�distribution.��You�look�at�

your�big�heavy�costs�in�all�areas.�

�

There�is,�after�the�Games,�a�bit�of�room�for�blue�sky�thinking�about�the�whole�structure�of�the�

organisation.��While�there�are�legally�two�halves�to�it�it�does�not�operate�as�two�halves�so�all�the�

police�staff�and�buildings�and�bits�and�pieces�of�course�are�owned�by�what�was�the�MPA�but�is�

now�the�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime�(MOPC).��The�employer�of�all�the�police�staff�is�

obviously�the�MOPC.��Then�there�is�the�cadre�of�police�officers.��Whether�we�need�to�look�at�

how�those�two�operate�and�whether�they�should�operate�independently�-�one�being�the�

customer�of�the�other,�ie�one�in�support�of�the�other�-�might�be�a�way�to�drive�out�cost�but�also�

to�allow�the�police�officers�to�concentrate�much�more�on�the�core�product�which�is�fighting�

crime.�

Page 8



 

�

We�have�seen�some�other�police�forces�-�Cleveland�has�done�quite�a�lot�of�that�-�and�the�public�

sector�has�had�a�bad�experience�of�that�in�the�past.��If�you�look�at�the�railway�privatisation�there�

is�a�classic�example.��You�have�got�all�the�track�and�the�stations�and�all�the�rest�of�it,�which�was�

hived�off�and�dealt�with�separately�from�the�people�who�were�actually�doing�the�sharp�end�

which�is�moving�people�around�in�trains.��That�division�was�meant�to�mean�that�both�could�be�

experts�at�what�they�do�and�one�was�a�customer�of�the�other�and�you�ended�up�with�a�virtual�

circle.��Actually�it�did�not�work�out�like�that�because�the�structure�did�not�work�or�there�were�

investment�problems�or�whatever�it�might�be.��There�is�a�model�there�that�might�be�interesting�

to�explore�and�others�in�the�policing�world�are�looking�at�it�quite�seriously�because,�at�the�

moment�-�Craig�will�tell�you�-�that�the�poor�old�Deputy�spends�more�of�his�time�on�being�a�

finance�director�and�an�HR�director�-�apologies�to�you,�Anne�[McMeel,�Director�of�Resources,�

MPS]�,�but�you�know�what�I�mean�-�a�lot�on�the�business�process�stuff,�and�probably�not�

enough�on�the�product�of�fighting�crime.��Would�you�say�that�was�fair,�Craig?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��It�is�increasingly�a�part�of�the�role.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Just�to�kick�off�in�getting�some�of�the�money�facts�on�the�table.��To�be�

clear,�this�year’s�additional�Government�funding�is�only�intended�for�the�year�about�to�start?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Sort�of.��It�is�likely�that�the�

extra�funding�that�we�have�got�this�year�may�result�in�an�underspend�on�the�budget�and�that�

will�go�into�reserves�for�use�in�future�years.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Yes,�but�there�is�no�forward�commitment�beyond.��It�is�a�one�off.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�a�one�off�to�help�us�

maintain�capacity�although�the�intention�was�that�it�would�allow�us�the�time�to�organise�

ourselves�to�maintain�capacity�beyond�just�next�year.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��That�is�good�news�in�itself�and�in�the�short�term�but�the�effect�of�not�

therefore�having�to�make�further�reductions�in�this�year�is�that�the�situation�for�subsequent�

years�is�that�the�gap�is�not�reduced�earlier.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�would�not�go�that�far.��It�is�

not�the�case�that�we�are�sitting�back�and�breathing�and�saying,�“We�don’t�have�to�do�anything�

on�savings�for�another�12�months”.��Quite�the�reverse�in�fact.��It�makes�it�all�the�more�important�

that�a)�we�land�our�current�£300�million�odd�worth�of�savings�that�are�in�the�underlying�budget�

but�b)�also�that�we�advance�even�more�quickly�the�work�that�is�required�to�get�us�in�shape�after�

the�Games�so�that�we�can�close�those�budget�gaps.��This�is�a�theme�that�I�have�had�to�live�with�

now�for�three�years.��We�have�had�very�significant�budget�gaps�going�back�three�years.��The�

same�questions�about�what�is�going�to�happen.��As�I�say,�on�a�traditional�local�authority�model�

you�work�on�it.��Anne’s�team�and�Craig’s�team�beaver�away.��Smart�ideas�but�also�doing�things�

differently�as�we�said.��Eventually�you�close�it.�

�

Page 9



 

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Let’s�see�what�the�current�gap�is�that�you�are�therefore�working�on�and�

not,�as�you�say,�resting�on�your�laurels�or�your�one�off�grants.��The�numbers�we�have�are�further�

efficiency�savings�needed�by�April�2013�of�£152�million�and�then�£232�million�for�the�year�after�

that.��Does�that�sound�right?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Sounds�about�right,�yes.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Is�that�your�latest�estimate?�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��It�is�slightly�less.��In�2013/14�it�is�

£148.4�million�and�£232.5�million�in�the�third�year.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��So�it�is�coming�down.�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��That�was�more�to�do�with�the�final�Mayoral�

budget�and�the�council�tax�fund.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Yes.��We�are�working�on�an�earlier�version.��The�scale�of�those�is�bigger�

than�previous�years�I�think�I�am�right�in�saying�so�that�the�challenge�is�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�now.��It�was�not�then.��Do�

not�forget,�as�I�say,�the�underlying�savings�in�this�year’s�budget,�ie�the�budget�coming�up,�are�

£342�million?�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��The�Deputy�Mayor�is�right�that�we�have�built�

in�something�like�£320�million�into�the�budget�going�forward.��I�would�suggest�that�maybe�the�

difference�in�going�forward,�which�is�why�it�will�be�a�challenge�to�the�MPS�-�it�is�always�a�

challenge�to�do�this�-�is�that�we�have�not�had�that�level�of�underlying�accelerating�reductions�

already�built�into�the�budget�and�we�are�looking�for�another�£148�million�on�top�of�that�and�

£232�million�going�forward.��As�Kit�says,�officers�and�staff�are�looking�at�what�the�options�are�

on�how�we�can�bring�forward�proposals�to�deal�with�that.��We�have�got�the�issues�of�the�

Olympics�in�next�year�and�there�will�be�a�lot�of�pressure�on�that.��I�believe�the�Commissioner�has�

said�before�that�he�will�be�expecting�to�see�business�cases�coming�forward�in�about�June�2012�

in�terms�of�what�the�forward�thinking�might�be�going�forward.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��On�that�basis,�Mike,�if�you�

had�gone�back�two�years�and�said,�“Right.��There�is�a�£342�million�gap�plus�£52�million�savings�

that�go�into�next�year,�that�would�give�you�£390�million�odd�gap”.��You�would�have�been�asking�

me�some�challenging�questions�two�years�ago.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Whatever�is�the�target�it�must�get�harder�as�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Oh�yes,�it�gets�harder�which�is�

why�you�need�more�radical�thinking�as�you�get�towards�that�point.�

�

Page 10



 

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��If�you�had�not�implied�that�there�was�some�blue�sky�thinking�I�was�going�

to�press�you�on�whether�the�approach�was�simply�starting�with�the�current�budget�and�trying�to�

trim�it�down�or�whether�it�is�a�more�going�back�to�first�principles.��There�are�some�nods�as�well�

to�confirm.��Give�us�a�sense�of�the�extent�of�going�back�to�first�principles�and�figuring�out�how�

to�achieve�the�goal�through�different�means�and�at�cheaper�cost.��Where�are�the�areas�-�

probably�addressing�Craig�-�that�are�top�of�your�list�for�looking�at�that�more�radical�bottom�up�

reorganisation�type�approach�rather�than�just�trimming�down?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��You�highlight�an�important�point.��At�the�

moment�the�way�we�have�done�a�lot�of�the�work�around�driving�out�costs�has�been�in�particular�

business�units�in�terms�of�doing�it.��Change�programmes.��Interestingly�a�lot�around�the�

territorial�police�change�programme�and�the�money�saved�around�that.��We�are�looking�at�the�

point�at�which�we�switch�to�one�that�looks�at�processes�and�cuts�across�the�organisation�so�

looks�at�how�systems�work�right�across�business�units.��There�are�clearly�some�efficiencies.��Even�

a�very�simple�one.��The�way�we�process�intelligence�in�different�ways�in�different�business�units�

in�different�parts�of�the�organisation.��The�necessity�to�have�some�of�the�systems�we�have�got.��

It�really�is�about�getting�into�that�level�of�detail�and�going�back�to�challenge�some�of�those�to�

look�for�efficiencies�and�coordinating�it�as�a�force-wide�programme,�so�right�across�the�MPS�in�

terms�of�the�work�that�is�doing�it.�

�

That�work�has�been�going�on�in�parallel�and,�very�much�as�Anne�mentioned,�the�process�going�

on�internally�at�the�moment�is�that�in�June�2012�those�will�come�to�Management�Board�for�

decisions�in�terms�of�the�broad�principles�and�the�areas�and�that�blue�sky�thinking�where�people�

say,�“Those�are�the�principles�that�will�apply�to�the�MPS�for�2015,�2020�and�beyond”.��It�is�an�

opportunity�to�look.�

�

One�of�the�challenges�we�have�got�is�probably�in�the�past�-�and�I�can�speak�from�having�done�

this�elsewhere�-�is�we�have�tended�to�start�by�looking�at�almost�a�designing�the�wiring�diagram�

rather�than�starting�with�the�first�principles�and�then�agreeing�what�the�wiring�diagram�and�the�

organisation�would�need�to�look�like�to�deliver�those.��That�is�the�ability�it�has�given�us�along�

this.��It�is�challenging,�alongside�the�work�we�are�doing�operationally�this�year,�but�it�is�

achievable.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��To�what�extent�are�you�deliberately�involving�people�and�ideas�from�

outside�your�comfort�zone?��I�am�not�suggesting�rushing�up�and�spending�a�fortune�with�private�

consultants,�which�tends�to�be�the�way,�“Oh�we’d�better�get�some�consultants�in�and�see�what�

the�private�sector�does”.��That�is�an�expensive�knee-jerk�reaction�but�I�do�think�the�danger�of�

doing�loose�guy�where�it�is�the�same�people�trying�to�come�up�with�new�ideas�is�not�as�

productive�as�having�some�stimulus�innovation�ideas.��Again,�give�us�an�example�of�where�you�

are.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Absolutely.��There�is�an�issue�going�on�around�

skills�and�what�we�need�in�doing�that�but�we�are�not�at�that�point�yet.��In�a�way�that�is�one�of�

the�advantages.��A�number�of�us�have�come�in�from�other�organisations�that�have�already�been�

through�this�so�we�bring�quite�an�extensive�network�of�experience.��My�colleague,�Mark�Rowley�

[Assistant�Commissioner,�MPS]�from�Surrey.��You�will�have�seen�and�heard�reported�some�of�the�

Page 11



 

stuff�that�has�gone�on�in�Surrey.��You�have�probably�not�seen�stuff�that�has�gone�on�in�the�

extreme�corner�of�the�north�west�of�England�where�I�worked�but�it�was�bringing�through�that�

very�different�thinking�and�bringing�different�people�around�it.�

�

Also�at�times�-�and�one�of�the�things�I�am�certainly�very�keen�on�-�we�have�53,000�people�who�

work�for�the�MPS.��We�have�got�many,�many�people�whom�we�sponsored�through�MBAs�and�

development�programmes.��We�have�got�entire�teams�of�people�and�it�is�tapping�into�some�of�

that�expertise.��It�is�very�clear,�just�by�going�round�and�talking�to�groups�of�officers�and�staff,�

many�of�the�ideas�exist�within�the�organisation.��The�skill�-�and�the�knack�sometimes�-�is�

tapping�into�those�and�using�them.�

�

Then�it�is�about�looking�at�whether,�going�forward,�we�team�with�a�business�school�-�we�are�

open�to�all�sorts�of�ideas�in�how�we�could�work�and�do�things�differently,�and�assure�ourselves�

that�the�things�we�are�coming�up�with�are�the�right�things.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Good.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Some�of�the�stuff�we�are�

doing�is�just�catching�up�with�the�rest�of�the�world.��If�you�look,�for�instance,�at�IT,�we�are�in�

many�ways�way�behind�on�some�of�our�information�technology�usage�and�there�are�some�quite�

interesting�proposals�that�are�taking�the�business�world�-�like�cloud�computing.��I�do�not�use�

any�of�the�GLA�or�MPA�hardware�at�all.��I�never�turn�my�computer�on�because�I�do�it�all�on�my�

own�stuff�-�laptop,�iPad�or�whatever�it�might�be.��We�might�be�able�to�move�to�a�situation�

where�we�do�not�have�to�own�any�desktop�machines�of�the�thousands�that�we�have�got.��We�

spend�hundreds�of�millions�of�pounds�over�the�years�on�IT�and�we�think�there�are�significant�

savings�there.�

�

The�other�thing�to�talk�about�which�I�know�is�a�particular�interest�to�you,�Mike,�is�collaboration�

in�shared�services.��There�is�massive�scope�for�that�across�the�GLA�but�also�across�policing,�and�

the�Government�is�pushing�that�in�a�very�big�way.��There�is�talk�at�the�moment�of�a�central�IT�

procurement�organisation�that�might�yield�savings�for�us.��I�signed�some�correspondence�

yesterday�about�a�national�air�support�unit.��At�the�moment�I�am�not�convinced�the�proposals�

are�going�to�save�us�any�money�but�they�might�save�us�some�money�on�the�choppers�-�very�

expensive�bits�of�kit.��Collaborating�with�other�forces�as�well�as�within�the�GLA�family�will�be�

important.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��The�discussion�we�are�going�to�have�on�other�topics�about�different�ways�

of�doing�things�we�will�feed�in�there.��Do�we�want�to�do�police�numbers�or�not?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Oh�come�on,�Mike.��We�just�

did�that�yesterday!�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��It�is�on�our�note.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��They�change�all�the�time.�

�

Page 12



 

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��They�are�not�changed�all�the�

time.��They�are�exactly�the�same�as�they�were.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��I�had�two�or�three�little�tidying�up�things�on�the�back�of�Mike’s�questions.��

The�first�is�there�is�not�the�greatest�flow�of�information�we�have�ever�seen�since�the�demise�of�

the�MPA�and�I�hope�that�is�just�a�teething�issue.��Within�the�information�we�have�a�letter�to�

David�Gallie�[Assistant�Director�of�Finance,�GLA]�and�an�attachment.��In�two�places�it�talks�

about�the�need�for�additional�resources�and�the�Mayor�has�previously�said�on�a�couple�of�

occasions�that�he�understands�that�there�is�a�settlement�which�is�a�multi-year�settlement�

providing�additional�resources.��You�have�said�that�the�£90�million�is�a�one�off�and�you�do�not�

anticipate.��Can�you�clarify�what�your�understanding�is�on�additional�resources?��I�will�read�you�

one�particular�thing�which�is�in�the�attachment.��It�says,�“Following�discussions�with�the�GLA�

and�the�Government�assumptions�have�been�made�about�additional�funding�levels�available�to�

the�service�to�support�spending�in�2012/13�and�2013/14.��Should�this�funding�not�materialise�

action�will�need�to�be�taken�to�reduce�expenditure�even�further.”��You�are�saying�on�the�one�

hand�you�are�expecting�more�money�and�yet�up�front�to�it�you�have�had�a�one�year�settlement.��

Can�you�clarify�that�for�the�record�please?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�money�is�coming�in�one�

year.��Anne�will�correct�me�if�I�go�wrong.��The�money�is�coming�in�one�year.��That�will�mean�that�

we�have�an�underspend�on�the�budget�which�then�goes�into�reserves�which�is�then�available�in�

the�years�following.��You�will�also�know�from�your�time�on�the�MPA,�John,�that�we�have�a�

budget�resilience�built�into�the�budget�of�£25�million�a�year�which�we�can�also�use�to�dampen�

things�going�forward.��Effectively�what�the�£90�million�is�designed�to�do�is�buy�us�time,�as�I�say,�

to�get�ourselves�in�shape�to�deliver�those�things�in�future�years,�but�it�will�result�in�an�

underspend�this�year.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��So�the�£90�million�is�a�one�off�payment�and�you�are�not�anticipating�any�

additional�one�off�payments�for�next�year�or�the�year�after�that?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�am�always�hopeful�and�I�will�

always�be�lobbying.��Part�of�my�job�is�to�fight�for�as�much�additional�income�for�the�MPS�as�I�

possibly�can.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��It�is�quite�important�that�we�understand�the�Mayor�seems�to�think�he�has�

this�thing�and�your�opening�statement�was�that�perhaps�we�did�not.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�has�been�received�in�one�

year.��The�effect�will�be�felt�over�more�than�one�year.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��The�problem�is�that,�in�terms�of�the�budget�making�this�year,�because�the�

Mayor�had�this�clear�behind�the�bike�sheds�understanding�you�would�get�additional�money�we�

went�way�into�the�budget�process�with�an�unfunded�gap�which�was�then�funded�because�of�a�

dollop�of�money�from�the�Government.��It�would�be�very�good�for�London�if�we�were�in�the�

same�position�next�year�but�in�terms�of�planning�for�the�future�we�need�to�assume�what?��We�

Page 13



 

need�to�assume�that�there�is�a�gap�which�is�unfunded?��Or�we�need�to�assume�that�the�

Government�will�come�back�and�bail�us�out�a�second�time�and�a�third�time?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��We�have�to�assume�both�-�

which�is�what�we�have�been�doing�all�along.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��You�cannot�assume�both.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Why�not?�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��I�do�not�know�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��You�hope�for�the�best�and�

plan�for�the�worst.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��Any�children�watching�should�cover�their�ears�at�this�point�but�you�see�I�do�

not�believe�in�Father�Christmas�any�more�and�so�I�do�not�bank�on�getting�the�mega�train�set�any�

more.��In�the�same�way�your�gap�you�should�assume�has�to�be�plugged�internally.��Is�that�a�

reasonable�understanding,�Ms�McMeel?�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��Can�I�say�I�think�part�of�your�question,�John,�

is�one�of�timing.��The�letter�that�went�to�David�Gallie�in�response�to�the�Mayor’s�consultation�

was�dated�20�January�2012�and�at�that�point�in�time�we�had�not�had�official�notification�of�the�

grant�coming�through,�although�there�were�clearly�informal�discussions�going�on�and�therefore�

we�were�making�a�planning�assumption�that�if,�at�the�end�of�the�day,�we�did�not�get�the�formal�

notification�then�we�would�have�been�£90�million�light�or�somewhere�between�£0�and�

£99�million�light�in�terms�of�the�planning�proposal.��What�you�have�in�that�letter�is�us�saying,�at�

that�point�in�time,�to�the�Mayor�we�are�planning�on�the�basis�of�£90�million�coming�through�

which�would�be�able�to�help�us�over�the�next�three�years�on�the�basis�that�we�would�get�cash�in�

in�year�one.��If�that�did�not�materialise�we�would�have�an�issue�in�terms�of�next�year’s�budget.�

�

The�position�of�the�MPS�in�terms�of�going�on�to�years�two�and�three�is�that�our�position�has�

always�been�that�our�job�is�to�try�to�drive�out�costs.��It�is�for�others�to�try�to�get�us�as�much�

income�as�possible�in�helping�us�take�this�process�through.��It�is,�I�believe,�the�MPS’�view�that�

on�the�basis�of�the�current�assumptions�we�have�the�gaps�that�we�have�talked�about�and�

without�more�income�coming�in�one�way�or�another�or�a�drastically�different�operating�model�

then�we�cannot�bridge�those�gaps�just�by�reducing�our�costs.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��I�welcome�your�clarification�which�makes�the�point�even�better�to�me�that�

the�information�we�have�as�a�Committee�is�pretty�out�of�date.�

�

The�second�question�is�about�the�riots�and�the�consequences�of�them.��Again�the�report�that�we�

have�-�which�I�accept�is�out�of�date�but�I�have�to�work�on�what�we�have�-�tells�us�that�the�

Government�has�only�agreed�to�underwrite�something�like�two�thirds�of�the�[Operation]�Kirkin�

and�Withern�costs�and�has�only�given�a�down�payment�of�£100�million�on�the�£300�million�riot�

damages�and�consequential�costs.��When�we�agreed�the�budget�for�this�year�there�was�a�black�

Page 14



 

box�assumption�that�the�riot�stuff�would�be�self-contained�and�would�be�taken�care�of�in�some�

way.��How�are�you�managing�the�risk�from�that�in�your�budget�management?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��What�the�Government�has�

said�-�you�are�quite�right�-�is�it�will,�at�the�moment,�underwrite�85%�but�the�other�15%�is�up�for�

negotiation.��It�has�not�said�it�will�not;�it�just�said�it�wants�to�look�at�the�costs�as�they�come�

through.��That�is�the�normal�situation�you�would�expect�--�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��85%�of�the�Withern�and�Kirkin�costs.��That�is�not�85%�of�the�riot�damage�

costs?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��We�have�got�a�slightly�

technical�problem�with�the�riot�damages�which�is�that�as�soon�as�we�have�accepted�a�claim�as�

valid�we�have�to�make�a�provision�for�it�and�that�provision�is�an�estimate�of�what�the�outcome�is�

going�to�be.��We�found�ourselves�in�a�situation�where,�if�we�did�that�and�made�the�estimate,�our�

accounts�would�effectively�have�been�insolvent�because�we�had�no�ability,�other�than�sudden�

changes�to�our�budget,�to�pay�it.��The�Government’s�intention�was�always�to�pay�it�but�what�it�

has�said�is�that�it�will�underwrite�to�a�certain�level.��Some�of�the�larger�claims�it�is�directly�

engaged�in�the�negotiations�with�the�insurance�industry�because�it�wants�to�make�sure�that�the�

tax�payer�does�not�just�write�a�blank�cheque.��So�what�we�are�talking�about�here�is�purely�a�

timing�issue.�

�

On�the�uninsured�claims�we�have�a�pledge�from�the�Government�it�will�be�100%�coverage.��On�

the�insured�claims�my�understanding�is�that�the�Government�is�going�to�cover�it,�subject�to�

being�satisfied�with�the�negotiations�with�the�insurance�companies�in�which�they�are�

anticipating.��The�reason�that�it�has�only�underwritten�up�to�£100�million�is�to�get�us�across�this�

technical�accounting�issue�which�is�that�our�accounts�would�have�to�show�a�liability�without�any�

funding.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��It�is�very�helpful�that�your�comments�form�part�of�the�record�of�this�

meeting�because�that�is�information�I�was�not�aware�of�before�today.��If�you�are�able�to�write�to�

us�and�give�further�clarification�on�your�expectations�that�would�be�even�more�helpful.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�have�talked�about�that�in�

public�forums�before�actually.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��I�know�but�there�have�been�hints�and�illusions�and�expectations�but�we�all�

know,�having�been�through�this�many�times�before,�that�it�does�not�really�happen�until�you�get�

the�thing�in�writing�but�your�assurance�is�very�helpful.�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��Just�a�point�of�clarification,�Chair.��We�have�

had�the�agreement�of�15%�of�the�Kirkin�costs.��We�have�put�in�supplementary�grant�claims�for�

both�the�Withern�and�the�15%�of�the�Kirkin.��Sorry,�we�have�been�given�the�85%�of�the�Kirkin�

costs�but�we�have�got�an�outstanding�liability�on�them�of�about�£10�million�which�is�15%.��A�

supplementary�grant�claim�has�gone�in�on�that�and�a�supplementary�grant�claim�has�gone�in�on�

our�full�cost�spend�on�Withern.��On�the�Riots�Damage�Act�our�understanding�with�Government�

Page 15



 

is�that�it�has�given�a�commitment�to�pay�any�legitimate�claim�so�we�feel�more�comfortable,�

whichever�year�it�is�in�-�Kit�is�quite�right�that�we�are�trying�to�sort�out�what�we�have�got�to�put�

into�our�accounts�this�year�and�how�we�get�cover�for�it,�but�there�is�an�understanding�that�the�

Government�will�pay�legitimate�claims�on�the�Riots�Damage�Act�so�our�focus�is�trying�to�

negotiate�on�the�outstanding�amounts�on�Withern�and�Kirkin.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��My�final�little�question�which�maybe�is�covered�elsewhere�but�I�do�not�

think�is,�is�the�budget�includes�£39�million�for�early�departure�costs.��Anecdotally�you�hear�

wherever�you�go�that�officers�will�be�leaving�after�the�Olympics�-�after�the�excitement�or�the�

need�for�them�to�hang�around.��There�is�a�cost�for�early�departures.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��That�is�not�officers.��That�is�

police�staff.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��That�is�police�staff.��It�is�not�officers�at�all?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��It�is�not�officers.�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��Certainly�in�the�early�years�it�is�very�much�

staff�but�there�is�provision�in�there�over�the�planning�period�we�have�said�now�that�we�need�to�

make�and�that�depends�on�what�comes�out�of�Winsor�and�everything�else�in�how�we�would�

move�forward�over�a�three�year�period.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��£39�million�is�purely�non-uniformed�police�employees?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��There�is�a�provision�in�there�at�the�moment,�

as�Anne�said.��It�comes�back�to�your�question�about�what�we�know�going�forward.��Within�the�

next�few�months�we�will�get�Winsor�Two�which�is�quite�a�weighty�tome�in�terms�of�the�areas�

that�it�is�going�to�address�about�the�future�of�policing.��That�might�have�provisions�that�we�

need�to�cater�for�so�we�have�to�be�realistic�in�planning.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��We�certainly�hope�so�because�

Winsor�One�has�not�resulted�in�any�saving�really�for�us�at�all.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��Craig,�the�planned�workforce�strength,�following�the�Games,�is�

set�in�the�Mayor’s�budget.��How�realistic�is�that�given�the�current�budget�gaps�we�still�have�and�

how�confident�are�you�given�that�we�know�now�that�that�is�a�one�off�payment?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�have�been�confident�for�

three�years.��Various�people�have�been�sceptical�and�quite�rightly�so.��Here�we�are�with�700�

recruits�joining�us�in�the�next�few�weeks�and�some�more�after�that.�

�

There�are�338�officers�that�are�specifically�funded�for�the�Games�by�the�Home�Office�and�once�

the�Games�are�done�and�that�funding�stops�then�we�will�look�to�reduce�them.��That�drops�us�

down�to�31,957,�give�or�take,�if�we�are�successful�both�in�adding�more�savings�and�hopefully�in�

Page 16



 

accreting�more�income,�as�we�have�been�over�the�last�three�years,�we�should�be�able�to�maintain�

it�at�31,957.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�want�to�bring�up�a�tiny�point�which�I�think�is�very�relevant�to�what�you�

have�just�been�talking�about�and�that�is�that�Mr�Mackey�mentioned�in�passing�a�total�strength�

of�53,000.��Are�you�using�the�December�2011�figures�or�are�you�using�later�figures�because�in�

December�it�was�53,700�so�has�it�gone�down�again?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Sorry.��I�used�53,000�as�a�generalism�when�I�

am�talking�about�the�entire�strength�of�the�MPS.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Yes,�I�understand�that.��I�am�saying�it�was�more�than�that�in�December.��

Are�you�using�new�figures�that�have�brought�it�down�again�or�are�you�just�rounding�off�and�

using�old�figures?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��My�apologies�if�I�confused.��I�am�literally�

using�53,000�as�a�rounded�off�figure.��We�will�get�you�the�exact�figure�at�the�moment.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�would�love�the�exact�figure�because�your�planned�strength�for�

March�2012,�which�is�only�next�month�of�course,�is�57,500�so�I�am�interested�to�know�how�close�

you�are�to�that.��When�can�you�get�us�that�figure?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��We�can�get�you�that�probably�by�tomorrow.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��That�is�great.��It�is�clearly�very�important�for�us�and�your�comment�went�

on�the�official�record�so�I�needed�to�make�sure.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�understand.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��Can�I�move�now�to�looking�at�some�of�the�ideas�that�the�new�

Commissioner�has�been�talking�about�when�he�talks�about�the�total�policing�model?��The�

Commissioner�has�talked�about�moving�to�a�strategy�of�total�policing,�about�being�a�total�war�

on�crime,�total�care�for�victims�and�total�professionalism.��I�know�he�has�given�a�series�of�

lectures�and�done�some�internal�police�talks�on�this�but�can�you�tell�us�very�briefly�about�what�

that�means�and�how�you�see�that�as�changing�the�way�the�MPS�operates?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��In�a�way�it�is�quite�a�simple�philosophy.��It�is�

around�a�focus�on�what�we�do�for�the�people�of�London.��The�Commissioner�has�been�very�clear�

that�he�wants�us�to�focus�on�those�people�who�are�causing�harm�in�our�communities,�focus�

consistently�on�criminals�and�any�activity�we�can�to�bring�criminals�to�justice�across�the�piece,�a�

total�victim�support�package�and�victim�care,�total�professionalism�and�it�is�really�about�saying�

the�organisation�is�now�focusing�outwards�on�the�services�it�provides�to�the�people�of�London.��

You�have�seen�everything�rolled�out�so�far�from�the�work�we�are�doing�around�victim�care,�the�

work�we�are�doing�around�training�and�development�of�officers�and�the�work�we�are�doing�

around�tackling�some�of�those�crimes�that�matter�to�the�people�of�London,�ie�knife�crime�and�

the�recently�announced�work�around�guns�and�gangs.��It�is�about�being�very�clear�that�the�focus�

Page 17



 

of�the�organisation,�every�single�one�of�us�that�works�for�the�MPS,�is�focused�on�tackling�those�

matters�that�matter�for�London.��It�is�a�very�straightforward�concept�and�quite�straightforward�

philosophy�in�terms�of�the�way�of�doing�it.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��Just�expand�a�little�bit�about�what�you�mean�by�total�care�for�

victims�and�how�the�police�approach�is�going�to�change?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Yes.��There�are�a�number�of�things�we�have�

done�at�the�moment�in�the�work�around�the�total�care�for�victims�and�that�includes�everything�

from�call�backs�in�the�work�we�are�doing�around�it�and�making�sure�that�actually�things�like�the�

victim’s�charter�and�the�work�that�other�agencies�do�is�absolutely�embedded�in�everything�we�

do.��That�piece�of�work�is�being�led�by�Territorial�Policing�and�is�quite�a�detailed�programme�of�

activity�that�is�ongoing�across�the�MPS�in�the�work�around�victims.��It�probably�is�the�sort�of�

thing�you�would�require�more�detail�on�in�the�briefing�and�detail�around�it�and�probably�merits�

at�some�point�having�a�look�at�in�some�detail.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��When�the�Commissioner�was�

being�interviewed�for�the�job�I�looked�at�his�record�in�Liverpool�with�which�I�am�familiar�just�

because�of�family�connections�but�also�looked�at�some�of�the�things�about�total�policing.��It�was�

attractive�because�it�coincided�with�some�of�the�things�we�in�the�MPA�were�trying�to�do.��If�you�

remember�Met�Forward’s�strap�line�was�focusing�on�fighting�crime,�trying�to�get�the�MPS�to�

focus�more�outwardly�on�the�product�and�less�inwardly�on�itself.��That�certainly�seems�to�be�part�

of�the�general�thrust.�

�

It�also,�interestingly,�seems�to�be�a�way�of�driving�productivity.��One�of�the�key�things�in�there�is�

about�making�sure�that�every�member�of�the�MPS�recognises�that�-�with�that�old�NASA�story�

that�even�the�cleaner�is�putting�a�man�on�the�moon�-�everybody�is�focused�on�dealing�with�

crime.��There�are�some�interesting�proposals�about�some�of�those�officers�who�only�wear�suits�

all�the�time�maybe�should�be�putting�on�uniform�every�now�and�again�and�getting�out�there�and�

fighting�crime�too.��I�am�not�saying�they�do�not�but�in�a�frontline�way.�

�

The�other�thing�that�was�attractive�about�it�was�that�because�of�my�involvement�in�the�drafting�

of�the�Bill�I�knew�that�one�of�the�things�that�was�coming�through�in�the�new�Bill�was�going�to�

be�a�duty�on�the�MOPC�towards�victims�and�witnesses�and�that�victim�satisfaction�had�been�

causing�some�concern�for�some�time.��The�coincidence�of�those�two�coming�together�made�the�

victim�strand�of�it�very�important.��I�have�been�having�meetings�over�the�years�with�victim�

support�and�trying�to�think�of�ways�that�we�could�focus�better�on�victims�-�and�indeed�

witnesses�because�they�are�vital,�and�often�they�are�the�same�thing,�to�the�work�that�we�are�

doing�so�that�became�very�attractive�as�well.�

�

Every�Commissioner�has�their�brand.��You�all�remember�the�five�Ps.��The�overarching�thing�

which�I�am�very�supportive�of�is�that�it�has�become�apparent�to�me�over�the�last�three�and�a�half�

years�that�80%�odd�of�policing�is�not�rocket�science.��It�is�actually�quite�simple;�it�is�about�

getting�the�basics�right�again�and�again�day�in�day�out�and�concentrating�on�the�knitting.��Total�

policing�seems�to�major�on�that.�

�

Page 18



 

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��Professor�Innes,�you�have�written�extensively�about�the�concept�

of�total�policing�and�one�of�the�risks�you�outline�is�about�mission�creep�and�with�total�policing�

you�could�be�raising�expectations�about�the�range�of�services�that�the�police�can�offer.��Would�

you�like�to�explain�a�little�bit�about�that?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��This�

is�quite�interesting�for�me�because�I�was�writing�about�total�policing�in�2003.��I�have�not�

thought�about�it�much�since�then�and�it�has�suddenly�come�back�on�the�agenda.��Potentially�it�

is�an�important�idea�in�three�respects.��Firstly�because�it�could�give�a�definition�of�mission�in�

what�policing�is�about�but�obviously�the�devil�is�in�the�detail.��The�positive�aspect�of�it�as�a�

concept�is�that�it�recognises�that�modern�policing�is�multi-faceted.��Certainly�a�lot�of�previous�

work�has�talked�about�intelligence�led�policing,�community�policing,�reassurance�policing,�public�

protection�and�those�kinds�of�ideas.��What�I�like�about�the�total�policing�concept�potentially�is�

that�it�says�you�need�all�of�those�to�deliver�a�good�service�to�the�public.��You�need�different�

tools�for�different�jobs�effectively.�

�

The�challenge�though�then�becomes�how�do�you�integrate�those�under�the�total�policing�

framework?��Which�components�are�going�to�be�delivered�by�the�Safer�Neighbourhoods�Teams�

(SNTs)�and�which�components�are�going�to�be�more�preventatively�oriented?��That�is�something�

that�has�not�been�articulated�yet�in�the�definitions�that�I�have�heard.��How�do�the�various�

components�fit�together�within�this�framework?�

�

The�risk�of�it�in�relation�to�definition�is�this�potential�for�mission�creep�and�that�is�the�important�

next�step�in�the�evolution�of�this�idea;�to�be�able�to�define�what�are�the�limits�of�policing�and�

particularly�what�are�the�limits�of�the�engagement�around�the�activities�of�the�MPS?��What�is�it�

going�to�do�and�what�is�it�not�going�to�do?��Where�are�the�limits?�

�

Within�that�that�brings�you�on�to�thinking�about�the�organisation�of�policing�and�how�you�

define�total�policing�might�be�quite�interesting�in�this.��I�came�at�it�as�an�analogy�from�total�

football.��The�Dutch�teams�in�the�1970s�played�total�football.��The�idea�there�was�that�you�

would�not�have�specialists�only�playing�in�one�position�but�all�the�players�would�be�

interoperable�and�could�play�anywhere�on�the�field.��I�thought�that�was�a�very�good�analogy�for�

thinking�about�what�is�going�on�in�policing�because�policing,�and�the�MPS�in�particular,�has�

progressed�over�the�past�decade�by�creating�an�increasing�number�of�specialisms.��You�have�a�

burglary�team,�you�have�Operation�Trident,�you�have�public�protection�units.��You�have�very,�

very�specialist�officers�tackling�one�thing�and�operating�to�a�particular�doctrine.�

�

This�specialist/generalist�idea�is�really�important�but�also�under�total�policing�you�could�expand�

that�wider�and�say�not�only,�“What�resources�do�we�have�within�the�police�organisation�

ourselves?”�but,�“How�are�our�public�policing�assets�working�with�private�policing�assets�out�

there?”��Particularly�in�London�there�are�an�awful�lot�of�private�policing�assets.��One�of�the�

failures�that�we�have�had�in�the�time�since�Community�Safety�Partnerships�have�been�provided,�

and�over�the�past�decade�really,�is�we�have�never�really�worked�out�properly,�I�think,�how�the�

public�police�engage�with�private�policing�agents.��There�are�two�issues�there�in�specialists�and�

generalists�and�then�going�beyond�public�policing.�

�

Page 19



 

Would�this�work�in�an�age�of�austerity�is�the�final�question?��One�of�the�really�positive�things�

about�total�policing�is�it�could�be�appropriate�for�this�day�and�age�because�if�we�think�that�the�

mantra�of�austerity�has�been�wrong�-�people�talk�about�we�need�to�do�more�with�less�-�actually�

it�is�not;�it�is�a�case�of�doing�less�with�more.��You�are�going�to�have�less�police�officers�so�when�

they�intervene�they�are�going�to�have�to�intervene�with�more�impact.��If�you�have�got�less�police�

officers�then�you�need�them�to�have�more�skills�and�be�better�trained.��Total�policing,�if�we�

could�develop�this�flexibility�and�adaptability�in�who�is�delivering�the�services,�could�be�an�

appropriate�way�of�tackling�some�of�the�budgetary�challenges�you�have�been�talking�about�in�

this�meeting�this�morning.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��We�are�going�to�talk�a�little�bit�about�the�difference�between�

specialist�and�generalised.��Craig�and�Kit,�this�issue�about�particularly�to�the�public�and�officers,�

where�do�you�draw�the�line�as�to�what�is�a�police�function�or�not�a�police�function?��The�

concept�of�total�policing�indicates�it�is�a�great�holistic�service�and�it�relies�on�partners�to�buy�

into�that�as�well.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�that�old�what�is�an�

operational�and�non-operational�decision?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Absolutely.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Some�are�both.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��What�is�enforcement�and�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Yes,�what�is�enforcement�and�

what�is�prevention.��I�agree.��It�is�a�difficult�one.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�have�had�the�opportunity�of�seeing�some�of�

Professor�Innes’�work�around�this�and�it�is�an�interesting�analysis.��That�is�a�similar�analysis�that�

43�forces�across�England�and�Wales�are�facing�in�doing�it.�

�

Defining�the�policing�role�is�probably�one�of�the�most�difficult�things�we�do.��We�do�not�work�in�

an�organisation�or�a�business�that�just�has�one�very�simple�core�function�in�doing�it.��Not�as�the�

public�see�it.��Those�of�us�who�have�been�around�policing�for�a�while�will�remember�one�of�the�

studies�that�was�done�on�core�and�ancillary�tasks�when�this�was�an�issue�in�the�1980s�and�1990s�

around�how�do�we�define�the�police�function.��On�the�back�of�that�one�we�lost�dangerous�dogs�

and�wide�load�escorts.��Dangerous�dogs�have�come�back.��The�reality�is�that�this�is�one�of�the�

perennial�problems�about�defining�it.�

�

The�other�point�Professor�Innes�alluded�to�around�the�challenge�around�mission�creep,�

particularly�in�a�time�of�austerity,�is�something�we�are�very�alive�to.��As�other�partner�agencies�

and�other�organisations�start�to�feel�their�budgets�squeeze�is�one�of�the�ways�of�coping�with�

your�own�budget�squeeze�to�offset�demand�on�someone�else.��That�is�why�the�point�made�

towards�the�end�around�actually�being�sure�that�we�have�got�partnerships�right�around�policing,�

Page 20



 

ie�the�total�stuff�we�do�around�safety�and�security�in�London,�rather�than�just�what�the�police�

do�is�a�very�important�point�going�forward.�

�

There�is�also�probably�a�debate�-�a�far�more�philosophical�one�-�around�whether�the�police�

should�define�what�its�function�is.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��The�Fire�Brigade�has�recently�said�it�might�be�able�to�do�call�outs�

to�lifts.��Are�the�police�looking�at�certain�areas�that�you�are�taking�a�similar�approach�to�at�all?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��On�that�level�of�tactical�detail,�yes,�we�do�do�

those�sorts�of�things�and�you�could�argue,�when�you�look�at�some�of�the�crime�scenes�that�we�

do�not�attend�and�we�put�through�the�Crime�Recording�and�Investigation�Bureau�that�some�of�

that�stuff�already�happens.��But�we�do�end�up�in�that�perennial�thing;�it�is�a�very�long�list�of�

tasks�that�we�are�asked�to�do,�of�which�crime�fighting�and�keeping�people�safe�is�the�core�part,�

but�there�are�a�whole�range�of�other�things�that�fall�to�policing�and�it�is�very�difficult�to�say�

where�else�would�they�go?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�quite�an�interesting�point�

about�who�should�decide�what�the�roles�are.��Obviously�in�any�large�organisation�like�that�you�

get�people�who�try�to�protect�their�position�by�complicating�it,�making�it�seem�terribly�skilled�

and�all�the�rest�of�it.��You�see�it�in�the�health�service.��I�happen�to�have�been�a�witness�to�a�

caesarian�section�in�the�not�too�distant�past�and�what�happens�is�you�have�a�whole�team�of�

people�who�organise�you�into�the�operating�theatre�and�then�this�chap�turns�up�and�spends�five�

minutes�doing�all�the�rest�of�it�and�then�swans�off.��He�has�got�himself�into�a�position�of�

technical�expertise�and�all�the�rest�of�it�which�allows�him�or�her,�from�time�to�time,�dip�in�and�

dip�out,�if�you�will�forgive�the�pun.��To�a�certain�extent�some�of�policing�is�like�that.�

�

The�challenge�that�I�have�laid�down�to�the�Specialist�Crime�Directorate�(SCD)�over�the�last�12�

months�is�80%�probably�of�what�a�detective�does,�for�instance,�is�the�same.��Whether�they�are�

pursuing�a�contraband�stuffed�animal�or�arts�and�antiques�or�pursuing�a�murder,�80%�of�the�

detective�job�is�the�same.��Whether�having�a�structure�that�has�all�these�small�specialist�

departments�that�all�detect�the�same�thing�-�you�would�question�the�efficiency�of�that.��One�of�

the�things�the�MPS�has�done�over�the�last�two�or�three�years�to�try�to�spread�that�around�is�this�

idea�of�detective�rotation�where�detectives�have�been�forced�to�rotate�off�specialist�squads�on�

to�more�generalisms�around�the�department�and,�by�God,�have�the�detectives�squealed�about�it�

-�they�do�not�like�it�at�all.��They�are�comfortable�in�their�zone�and�they�have�a�particular�area�

that�they�like�to�concentrate�on.��Whether�that�is�good�for�the�organisation�rather�than�good�for�

them�is�something�we�need�to�question.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��Following�on�from�that�this�is�all�about�public�confidence�in�policing�

and�sometimes�I�get�concerned,�when�we�are�talking�about�total�policing,�it�looks�as�if�we�are�

going�to�take�on�everything�and�the�end�result�of�that�is�that�we�are�doing�jobs�that�other�

services�should�be�doing�because�we�tend�to�pick�up�the�slack.��We�do�not�want�youths�running�

round�the�streets�at�night�so�we�run�sports�clubs�but�should�we�be�doing�so?��We�are�doing�a�lot�

of�things�that�other�people�could�probably�do�and�then�those�come�out�of�our�limited�resources.��

I�want�to�ask�you�to�comment�on�that.�

Page 21



 

�

On�a�more�serious�point�on�public�confidence�we�have�this�problem�of�people�thinking�-�and�we�

have�asked�questions�on�this�before�-�about�the�number�of�crimes�that�are�dropped�and�are�not�

fully�investigated.��That,�again,�comes�under�the�total�policing�banner.�

�

Two�questions�to�start�with�and�I�have�a�couple�of�other�queries�I�want�to�raise�as�well.�I�do�not�

know�how�you�are�going�to�split�that.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Victoria,�you�are�spot�on.��The�

good�old�MPS�has�stepped�into�the�breach�where�others�have�left�it�alone.��The�reason�for�that�

is�that�at�the�end�of�the�process�it�is�normally�the�MPS�that�gets�the�blame�so�it�has�felt,�over�

the�years,�that�it�has�had�to�step�back�in�the�process�to�try�to�prevent�some�of�the�problems�up�

front.��That�has�meant�that�local�authorities�and�other�partners�have�got�away�with�not�filling�

the�breach.�

�

That�is�less�now.��Many�more�local�authorities�are�focused�on�their�responsibilities,�not�least�

because�it�is�statutory,�for�reducing�crime�and�criminality�in�their�areas�and�they�are�stepping�up�

to�the�mark�more�and�more.��Certainly�the�work�we�have�tried�to�do�over�the�last�three�years�has�

been�to�drive�that.��One�of�the�reasons�for�starting�the�Joint�Engagement�Meetings�(JEM)�was�

to�get�the�local�authority�in�the�room�talking�about�crime�at�least�once�a�year.��We�had�Islington�

in�yesterday�for�the�third�time.��Its�transformation,�frankly,�as�a�local�authority�on�fighting�crime�

over�that�three�year�period�has�been�something�to�behold�because�being�purely�presented�with�

the�data�and�asked�what�it�is�doing�about�it�seemed�to�galvanise�some�kind�of�action�plan.��I�am�

not�taking�all�the�credit�for�it�but�it�is�definitely�interesting�to�see�the�change�over�the�period�

that�it�has�come�in.��We�would�like�to�see�more�of�that.�

�

Also�the�financial�strictures�we�are�under�mean�that�we�cannot�continue�to�fill�the�gap�in�the�

future,�particularly�around�some�of�the�preventative�stuff�that�we�do�with�young�people�-�and�

we�have�to�have�a�conversation�with�local�authorities�about�that.�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��It�is�

important�not�to�leap�to�conclusions�but�go�ahead�on�the�basis�of�some�evidence�around�this.��

We�have�been�working�in�the�London�Borough�of�Sutton�for�the�past�five�years�tracking�public�

confidence�and�public�perceptions�and�it�seems�to�be�a�very�good�measure�of�average�London�

as�opposed�to�the�most�deprived�or�the�most�affluent.��Overall�public�confidence�has�been�

improving.��It�has�started�to�plateau�now�as�far�as�we�can�tell.��One�of�the�reasons�we�think�it�is�

starting�to�plateau�is�a�lot�of�the�talk�around�policing�and�police�budgets.�One�of�the�things�that�

has�come�up�very�strongly�when�we�talked�to�members�of�the�public�over�the�past�year�is�they�

are�saying�that�the�ways�in�which�people�are�talking�about�the�budgetary�situation�for�policing�is�

making�me�very,�very�concerned�about�what�is�going�to�happen�and�that,�in�and�of�itself,�is�

amplifying�public�concerns.��In�terms�of�the�public�conversation�it�needs�to�be�talked�about�

quite�carefully.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��Nobody�has�answered�my�question�yet�on�crimes�not�investigated�-�

you�remember�I�asked�two�questions�at�the�beginning�-�and�the�fact�that�it�goes�back�to�the�

confidence�point.��We�have�heard�it�before�and�Bernard�Hogan-Howe�[Commissioner,�MPS]�has�

Page 22



 

come�along�and�said�he�is�going�to�reduce�the�number�of�crimes�not�investigated.��That�is�very�

important.��If�people�think�they�have�reported�a�crime�and�then�it�is�not�investigated�or�dropped�

for�some�reason�that�does�come�under�the�total�policing.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�completely�agree.��One�of�

the�things�I�used�to�read�-�I�do�not�know�about�you�but�I�am�a�Private�Eye�subscriber�and�

Private�Eye�had�a�column�on�a�regular�basis�called�Neasden�Nick.��I�do�not�know�how�many�of�

you�read�it.��It�was�effectively�a�parody�of�the�police�approach�towards�crime�and�it�was�all�

about�internal�training�courses�and�reasons�to�arrest�the�victim�rather�than�the�suspect�and�all�

those�kinds�of�things.��There�is�many�a�true�word�spoken�in�jest�and�there�was�a�public�

perception,�as�you�say,�Victoria,�that�a�lot�of�crime�was�not�investigated�because�they�were�too�

busy�off�on�awareness�courses�and�all�that�kind�of�stuff.�

�

One�of�the�advantages�of�total�policing�will�be�that�you�can�communicate�very�clearly�that�you�

are�focusing�on�the�right�things�and�doing�less�of�what�the�public�perceive�are�the�wrong�things�

and�that�includes�investigating�crime.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��That�point,�because�we�have�been�very�strong�

on�that,�even�those�crime�scenes�-�we�can�all�think�of�examples�where�it�is�not�appropriate�at�

the�time�to�deploy�a�resource�to�a�crime�scene.��The�classic�example�is�someone�leaving�their�car�

at�a�railway�station�coming�back�to�find�the�shattered�glass�on�the�floor�and�something�stolen�

from�the�car,�who�gets�in�their�car�and�drives�home.��You�would�think�we�were�slightly�strange�if�

we�sent�an�officer�to�check�the�car�park�where�the�car�was.��Some�crimes�go�through�the�Bureau�

and�Reporting�but�that�does�not�mean�they�are�just�gone.��It�is�actually�a�way�of�building�up�

scenes�and�patterns�as�part�of�the�conversation�with�a�member�of�the�public.��It�will�look�for�

opportunities�of�whether�there�is�any�forensic�recovery�potential�around�it.��There�is�a�very�clear�

message�of�looking�at�all�this.��This�is�where�we�have�to�see�how�these�things�fit�together.�

�

I�know�we�are�going�to�come�on�to�the�issues�about�how�we�manage�performance�and�how�we�

look�at�the�issues�around�performance�management�but�this�is�why�these�things�always�have�to�

be�seen�as�a�total�package.��There�is�a�bit�of�a�danger�sometimes�when�you�see�things�as�just�

one�offs.��It�is�a�very,�very�clear�message�from�the�MPS�to�every�member�of�the�organisation�

that�what�matters�are�those�crimes�and�things�affecting�the�people�of�London�and�we�have�to�

do�things�to�try�to�get�better�at�solving�those.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):����You�talked�about�the�man�in�the�car�park�who�comes�home�and�finds�his�

window�shattered.��Under�your�system�would�you�write�this�man�a�letter�and�say,�“This�is�the�

reason�we�haven’t�investigated”?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�do�not�know�the�exact�system�in�terms�of�

what�the�letter�actually�says.�There�is�inquiry�around�it�and�they�get�told�if�it�is�undetected.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��I�am�not�sure�of�that.��Our�experience�-�many�of�us�round�here�and�

certainly�most�Londoners�-�would�be�to�get�a�letter�from�Victim�Support,�“You�have�been�a�

victim�of�crime”.��That�would�be�the�only�response.�

�

Page 23



 

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�will�check�and�reply�in�writing.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��It�fitted�in�to�your�total�care�for�victims.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��This�is�part�of�the�problem.��

In�simple�terms�the�first�preference�is�that�the�criminal�is�caught�but�the�public�mind�less�if�the�

criminal�is�not�caught�as�long�as�they�think�the�MPS�has�busted�a�gut�to�try�to�find�them.��That�

is�what�we�need�to�communicate;�no�matter�how�small�your�crime�we�have�thrown�everything�at�

it�to�try�to�catch�this�guy.��We�have�failed�but�we�have�not�failed�because�we�did�not�try.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��It�is�all�part�of�total�policing,�the�overall�confidence�in�policing,�

because�there�have�been�concerns�raised�about�this�before.��Professor�Innes,�you�talked�before�

about�trying�to�intervene�less�but�more�effectively,�ie�more�with�less.?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��If�I�

can�just�make�a�link�to�the�last�point.��The�public,�in�terms�of�public�confidence,�want�to�know�if�

you�cannot�catch�the�guy�who�did�it�that�you�have�done�something�to�try�to�stop�it�happening�

again.��That�is�the�critical�element�in�all�of�this.��Stringing�together�the�response,�the�after�care,�

needs�to�include�what�are�you�doing�to�problem�solve�the�situation�in�which�the�crime�happened�

to�try�to�prevent�it�happening�to�someone�else�again.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��Right�at�the�beginning�you�talked�about�technology�and�the�role�of�

technology�in�total�policing.��I�listened�to�the�Commissioner�earlier�on�this�morning�round�the�

corner�at�More�London�so�we�have�heard�references�to�technology.��Perhaps�you�could�tell�us�

how�you�think�that�is�going�to�fit�into�total�policing?���

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��One�of�the�first�things�we�have�done�as�a�

Management�Board�and�with�MOPC�is�look�at�what�our�current�spend�is�on�technology�and�the�

total�package�that�runs�across�what�we�do.��It�is�about�£200�million�a�year�we�spend�on�

technology.��We�have�looked�at�those�things�we�do�that�we�do�not�think�we�need�to�do�for�the�

future,�ie�where�we�have�duplicate�systems�so�some�of�it�is�housekeeping.��There�is�then�a�piece�

of�work�that�is�looking�at�what�are�the�potential�offers�around�new�technology.��You�have�heard�

a�lot�about�the�work�we�are�doing�around�automatic�number�plate�recognition�and�the�potential�

that�offers�but�we�have�also�started�to�look�at�a�system�we�are�trialling�at�the�moment�of�some�

iPads�and�some�different�options�around�technology.�

�

One�of�the�things�we�are�finding�with�robberies�or�snatches�is�it�is�often�new�style�phones,�so�

iPhones,�and�other�applications,�many�of�which�have�an�inbuilt�tracking�system�on�them.��For�

anyone�who�has�got�one�it�is�downloadable.��You�download�it�and�then�should�you�be�in�the�

unfortunate�situation�of�even�losing�the�phone�you�can�track�where�it�will�be.��We�now�have�the�

technology�and�the�potential�to�look�at�how�we�can�use�that�as�part�of�crime�fighting�in�being�

able�to�help�and�assist.�

�

It�is�also�clear,�as�we�move�towards�mobile�working�and�the�way�forward,�that�a�number�of�us�

who�have�recently�joined�the�Management�Board�have�come�from�environments�where�mobile�

working,�ie�the�ability�to�turn�a�vehicle�into�everything�you�would�have�in�a�police�station,�is�the�

Page 24



 

norm.��We�see�some�real�potential�in�that�because�it�starts�to�break�some�of�the�links�about�

officers�having�to�come�back�in�to�access�systems�or�pass�stuff�over�Airwave�and�over�radio�

systems�so�there�is,�to�some�extent,�the�potential.��What�we�can�do�with�technology�is�probably,�

in�the�nicest�way,�limited�by�some�of�the�money�we�have�got�available�but�also�probably�our�

imagination�on�some�of�this.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��There�are�also�customer�

service�and�victim�satisfaction�implications.��For�instance,�I�do�not�know�how�many�of�you�book�

minicabs�through�Addison�Lee.��I�do�on�occasion.��I�get�a�text�message�saying�I�have�booked�it.��

I�get�a�text�message�saying�the�cab�is�on�its�way.��Here�is�the�mobile�telephone�number.��I�get�a�

text�message�saying�the�cab�is�outside.��If�you�ring�and�make�a�call�on�a�999�call,�whether�we�

should�be�providing�that�kind�of�information�-�the�police�car�is�two�minutes�away,�it�is�outside�

the�house�-�is�relatively�easy�to�do�from�a�technological�point�of�view.��That�helps�customer�

service,�victim�satisfaction�and�general�confidence�in�policing�that�people�are�showing�up,�rather�

than�the�uncertainty�of�knowing�whether�it�is�going�to�be�eight�minutes,�ten�minutes�or�20�

minutes.��It�is�relatively�simple�to�do.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��I�welcome�all�these�changes.��I�am�sure�we�will�see�them�develop.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��This�probably�requires�a�very,�very�brief�answer,�given�the�flow�of�the�

discussion,�but�I�was�very�struck�by�something�that�Professor�Innes�said�about�the�number�of�

private�assets�in�policing�and�I�was�wondering�whether�he�might,�for�the�record,�put�a�paragraph�

in�on�that.��I�assume�you�include�local�authority�and�other�public�sector�assets�but�we�are�talking�

about�a�whole�range�of�devices�used�by�other�players�in�the�economy.�

�

To�complete�the�question�the�model�I�had�in�my�head�is�that�the�total�policing�needs�of�the�

community�may�be�something�that�big�-�I�am�signifying�a�large�box�-�the�stuff�done�by�the�MPS�

is�a�relatively�smaller�part�of�that�and�there�are�lots�of�other.��The�reason�it�is�worth�making�that�

point�is�that�if�you�see�it�that�way�then�the�way�in�which�we�look�at�the�requirements�of�policing�

becomes�radically�quite�a�lot�different.��There�we�are.��That�is�my�warm�up�to�your�answer!�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��

Thank�you.��We�cannot�quantify.��We�do�not�know,�simply,�what�the�scale�of�private�assets�is�

out�there�but�it�becomes�particularly�relevant�in�some�of�the�crimes�that�are�facilitated�by�

technology�and�also�in�relation�to�things�like�fraud.��A�couple�of�years�ago�I�did�some�work�with�

the�City�of�London�Police.��One�of�the�things�that�we�identified�there�was�that�the�banks�had�

far�more�assets�involved�in�investigating�fraud�than�the�public�police�could�ever�hope�to�

maintain.��Likewise�with�technology�enabled�crimes.��Places�like�Google�and�Microsoft�have�

these�assets�sitting�there.�

�

One�of�the�challenges�then�is�to�think�about�what�is�the�mechanism�for�exchanging�information�

and�expertise�between�those�to�harness�those�for�the�public�good.��One�of�the�areas�I�am�quite�

interested�in�thinking�about�is�the�current�work�that�is�going�on�in�the�MPS�in�relation�to�News�

International�where�you�have�got�a�team�of�investigators�embedded�within�an�organisation�

working�with�them�like�that.��Now�for�certain�sorts�of�crimes�might�that�be�a�model�for�the�

Page 25



 

future�in�how�we�deal�with�quite�complex�sophisticated�and�difficult�inquiries�that�have�to�be�

undertaken?�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��Finally,�would�you�extend�that�to�including�some�sort�of�requirement�for�

partnership�for�those�things�to�happen,�or�will�they�just�happen?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��No,�

on�the�experience�to�date�it�has�not�just�happened.��There�is�an�awful�lot�of�investment�and�

work�and�time�invested�to�make�those�things�happen�where�they�do,�but�they�tend�to�be�one�

off�almost�project�based�as�opposed�to�continuing�strategic�partnerships�that�are�the�things�that�

you�need�going�forward.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��That�is�another�facet�to�specialism�and�where�it�may�be�found.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�have�a�concern�that�by�concentrating�on�the�total�number�of�police�

officers�as�a�proportion�of�the�total�strength,�because�it�is�a�Mayoral�commitment�from�May�-�

which�is�fair�enough,�that�is�your�job�to�deliver�it�-�you�are�making�the�MPS�less�effective�and�

you�are�misusing�resources�both�in�police�officer�time�and�also�money.��For�example,�last�year�

you�spent�£60�million�making�900�civilian�staff�redundant�but�you�are�now�recruiting�another�

1,500.��I�do�not�see�how�that�makes�financial�sense.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�depends�on�the�jobs�they�

are�doing.��For�instance�a�large�number�of�those�900�staff�that�were�made�redundant,�

unfortunately,�came�out�of�catering.��Now�we�are�losing�one�skill�and�recruiting�another�skill.��

The�reason,�Jenny,�that�the�Mayor�believes�that�we�need�to�maintain�numbers�broadly�where�

they�are�is�because,�as�I�said�right�at�the�start,�there�are�certain�things�that�only�a�police�officer�

can�do�and�we�need�to�retain�a�certain�capability.��We�saw�perhaps�the�unfortunate�

consequences�of�not�having�the�right�capability�in�the�right�time�at�the�right�place�able�to�get�

there�quickly�enough�during�the�summer.�

�

We�have�got�this�vast�challenge�coming�and�the�challenge�is�not�just�the�Olympics�Games;�it�is�a�

threefold�challenge.��It�is�dealing�with�the�Games,�it�is�dealing�with�whatever�the�possible�public�

order�situation�may�throw�at�us�over�the�next�12/24�months�but�also�doing�crime�at�the�same�

time.��What�we�have�seen�-�and�I�have�had�a�number�of�Members�talk�to�me,�and�local�

authorities�talk�to�me,�about�the�problems�with�abstraction�of�police�officers�to�deal�with�some�

of�these�twin�or�triple�challenges�at�the�same�time.��That�means�you�have�to�have�a�certain�

number�of�police�officers�to�do�that�because,�although�you�can�be�more�efficient�and�more�

skilled�in�certain�areas�of�policing,�you�cannot�police�a�public�demonstration�of�500,000�people�

with�fewer�officers�being�more�skilled�and�more�efficient.��There�comes�a�point�at�which�you�

need�the�bodies.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�think�I�am�safe�in�saying�you�are�not�telling�us�anything�new�but�my�

concern�is�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Snap.�

�

Page 26



 

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��--�that�because�you�got�rid�of�the�civilian�staff�police�officers�are�back�

filling.��I�have�several�examples�here�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Well�there�are�no�police�

offices�in�catering.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�am�not�only�talking�about�catering�because�other�jobs�went�as�well.��For�

example�in�Lambeth�the�station�reception�and�detention�staff�are�being�replaced�by�police�

officers�taken�off�patrol�duties.��In�Stoke�Newington�police�station�a�property�manager�vacancy�

has�been�filled�by�a�police�sergeant.��At�the�Palace�of�Westminster�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�do�not�know�whether�any�of�

those�people�are�on�restricted�duties�or�--�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Excuse�me.��I�did�listen�to�you�fully,�Mr�Malthouse.��Perhaps�you�could�

listen�to�me�now.��At�the�Palace�of�Westminster�the�health�and�safety�trainer�is�now�a�police�

officer�rather�than�a�staff�member�and�the�staff�deployment�manager�is�now�a�police�sergeant�

rather�than�police.��I�have�other�examples.��What�I�am�saying�is�you�are�back�filling�with�police�

officers�and�you�are�reducing�the�number�of�police�officers�available�to�go�out�on�the�beat.��

Now�this�is�not�only�inefficient�in�the�use�of�resources�and�police�time�because�those�police�

officers�are�often�not�as�well�trained�as�civilian�staff�but�also�they�cost�a�lot�more.��Your�

obsession�with�numbers�of�police�officers�is�making�the�MPS�less�efficient.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Jenny,�that�is�unfair�because,�

as�far�as�I�am�aware,�you�are�giving�a�partial�picture.��As�you�know�we�have�anywhere�from�

1,200�upwards�of�restricted�officers�who�cannot,�for�various�reasons,�go�out�there�and�do�the�

normal�full�duties�of�a�police�officer�and�we�have�had�a�programme�over�the�last�two�or�three�

years�of�using�them�more�efficiently�where�we�can�and�making�sure�that�we�get�the�most�out�of�

them�and�they�get�the�most�out�of�the�MPS.��Now�--�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Are�you�telling�me�that�all�these�-�and�I�have�other�examples�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��No.��I�am�happy�to�look�into�

each�of�the�circumstances�that�you�want�to�raise�but�my�guess�is�that�most�of�those�will�be�on�

restricted�duties.��There�are�some�situations�where�we�do�deploy�officers�into�areas�of�what�you�

would�think�of�as�civilian�staff�for�other�reasons.��For�instance,�when�we�have�strikes�or�when�we�

have�particularly�large�numbers�of�vacancies�in�call�centres�or�whatever�it�might�be�then�we�are�

forced�to�deploy�officers�in�there�but,�generally,�it�is�sick�and�restricted�who�are�doing�non-

policing.��

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Overall�you�are�reducing�the�percentage�of�civilian�staff�against�police�

officers�which�is�actually�going�against�the�Association�of�Chief�Police�Officers�(ACPO)�advice.��

ACPO�does�suggest�a�certain�percentage�and�you�are�now�below�it�so�you�are�bringing�the�MPS�

below�the�efficiency�levels�that�ACPO�specifies.���

�

Page 27



 

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��I�want�to�make�two�points.��One�is�that�the�

major�change�programmes�in�the�main�have�happened�in�the�business�support�areas�where�we�

have�made�our�processes�more�effective�and�efficient�and�we�have�reduced�staff�accordingly.��

There�is�not�any�officer�back�filling�going�on�in�any�of�those�posts.�

�

What�I�would�also�say�is�that�we�have�a�very�robust�redeployment�process�within�the�MPS�that�

anyone�who�is�in�a�change�programme�where�there�is�a�reduction�does�have�the�opportunity�to�

move�into�vacancies�elsewhere�in�the�MPS�because�it�is�good�business�for�us�and�it�is�more�cost�

effective.��If�there�is�a�skills�requirement�in�that�we�would�look�at�that�so�you�do�not�have�to�

have�a�perfect�match�to�go�into�those�jobs;�we�would�look�at�whether�or�not�there�is�the�ability�

to�train�people�up�into�those�jobs.�

�

I�do�not�recognise�any�of�the�areas�that�you�have�mentioned,�Jenny,�as�being�areas�where�we�

have�had�major�change�programmes�going�on�which�would�have�impacted�with�the�possible�

exception�of�the�one�that�you�said�on�property�but�I�was�not�quite�sure�what�the�property�one�

was.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�am�quite�happy�to�write�to�you�on�this.�

�

Anne�McMeel�(Director�of�Resources,�MPS):��Let’s�do�that.��If�you�give�us�the�details�--�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��I�would�like�to�pick�up�the�issue�of�specialist�and�general�

policing�roles�which�came�up�in�the�discussion�before.��What�I�want�to�understand�is,�given�that�

we�have�heard�that�the�idea�of�total�policing�we�have�heard�from�Professor�Innes�is�based�on�

this�Dutch�model�and�you�are�looking�at�football�teams�in�the�1970s�being�generalist,�what�split�

do�you�see�in�the�future�for�the�MPS�between�specialist�roles�and�generalist�policing�roles?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��In�terms�of�numbers?�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��Yes.��What�sort�of�numbers?��Looking�at�the�figures�that�

we�have�got�we�see�it�looks�like�Territorial�Policing�is�going�down�a�couple�of�percent�and�

specialist�operations�seem�to�be�staying�pretty�much�at�the�same�percentage.��How�do�you�see�

the�shift�between�generalist�and�specialist�if�you�are�taking�the�total�policing�model�as�

Professor�Innes�has�described?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��If�I�may�I�will�answer�that�in�that�I�do�not�

think�that�our�current�structure�helps�you�answer�that�question�because�there�are�specialists�and�

generalists�within�Territorial�Policing�(TP).��One�of�the�pieces�of�work�that�is�currently�ongoing�

at�the�moment,�that�Simon�Byrne�[Assistant�Commissioner,�TP,�MPS]�is�leading,�is�looking�at�

exactly�the�point�made�earlier�on.��If�you�go�to�an�average�borough�we�have�had�some�specialist�

teams�creep�in�at�a�very�local�borough�level.��What�we�are�saying�is�look�at�those�and�look�again�

fundamentally�at�whether�we�need�those�or�they�are�better�in�a�generalist�pool�of�officers.��

There�will�always�be�a�trade�off.�

�

I�would�be�interested�in�Professor�Innes’�view�of�where�that�balance�lies�because�some�of�these�

skills�are�so�specialist�and�the�investment�in�time�in�what�we�do�around�things�when�you�think�

Page 28



 

of�some�of�the�serious�areas�of�risk�that�we�manage�in�London�you�cannot�say�they�can�be�done�

by�a�generalist.��We�have�not�reached�the�point�yet�where�we�say�it�will�be�20%�in�specialist�

resources�and�80%�-�I�actually�think�that�will�be�quite�a�difficult�way�to�manage�the�

organisation.�

�

What�we�are�doing�is�looking�at�where�we�have�got�down�to�a�borough�level�within�teams�where�

we�have�seen�specialism�creep�in�and�questioning�-�going�back�to�the�fundamentals�-�do�we�

need�that�specialism?��Asking�some�of�those�difficult�questions.��We�have�not�reached�a�hard�

final�number�yet�and�the�debate�about�whether�we�will�reach�a�final�hard�number.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��It�does�sound�like�you�are�thinking�that�you�will�move�to�

more�generalism�for�certain�areas?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Absolutely.��Part�of�the�work�Simon�is�doing�

at�the�moment�is�looking�at�some�of�those�things�where�burglary�squads,�priority�crime�squads�

and�these�things�have�started�to�appear�and�saying,�“Do�we�need�all�of�them?��Just�a�targeting�

team?��How�do�we�work�differently?��What�is�the�actual�value�they�bring?”��That�is�why�the�

total�policing�thing�is�important;�because�it�is�about�saying,�“What�are�they�doing?”�and�not,�

“What�is�the�structure�in�the�organisation�about”?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):�If�I�can�give�you�an�example�--�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��I�want�to�go�to�Professor�Innes�actually�next,�Kit,�please�

because�I�wanted�to�get�your�take�on�do�you�think�there�is�a�point�where�you�should�have�so�

many�being�specialist�and�so�many�generalists�or�do�you�think�they�all�should�be�generalists?��

What�is�your�take�on�this?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��I�

would�agree�with�Mr�Mackey.��We�are�not�in�the�position�to�be�able�to�say�it�is�this�number�

versus�this�number�but�it�is�a�point�of�challenge�really�to�say�every�time�you�are�thinking�about�

how�do�we�solve�this�problem�do�you�want�a�specialist�squad�there�or�is�this�something�that�

should�be�done�by�officers�with�more�generalist�skills?��I�have�always�thought�that�things�like�

burglary�and�volume�crime�should�be�a�core�part�and�parcel�of�what�police�officers�do�so�why�

are�they�being�given�to�specialist�officers�who�only�ever�deal�with�that�kind�of�issue?��That�

seems�to�me�to�be�core�policing.�

�

We�have�also�been�engaged�in�some�interesting�work�around�prevent�and�also�serious�organised�

crime�which�is�how�much�of�that�can�be�achieved�by�engaging�your�basic�neighbourhood�teams�

in�delivering�these�kinds�of�activities.��We�have�got�some�evidence�now�that�you�can�do�it�quite�

successfully�and�you�do�not�have�to�think�that�you�can�only�crack�a�serious�organised�crime�

group�by�using�specialist�assets�but�bringing�the�neighbourhood�teams�in�to�help�you�tackle�the�

drugs�problem�and�the�drug�dealer�on�the�ground�can�give�far�more�of�an�impact�for�the�

community�and�for�the�public�than�just�coming�at�it�in�a�top�down�way�using�only�specialists.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Also�you�have�got�to�think�

about�the�people�that�you�are�trying�to�apprehend.��There�are�some�criminals�who�are�specialists�

Page 29



 

but�not�many.��Most�of�them�tend�to�be�generalists.��You�can�find�yourself,�if�you�specialise�too�

much,�having�unintended�consequences.��If�you�look�at�the�example�of�Delroy�Grant,�the�night�

stalker,�who�was�pursued�for�many�years�very�diligently�by�a�team�of�detectives�who�operated�

on�the�basis�that�they�were�pursuing�a�rapist.��There�was�a�change�in�the�senior�investigating�

officer�who�said,�“Actually,�we’re�not�pursuing�a�rapist.��We’re�pursuing�a�burglar�and�we�should�

try�to�catch�him�using�the�techniques�of�apprehending�a�burglar”�and�17�days�later�he�was�

caught.��That,�to�me,�illustrates�neatly�the�perils�of�specialism�versus�generalism�because�you�are�

trying�to�catch,�most�of�the�time,�a�generalist.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��I�wanted�to�pick�up�this�issue�that�you�have�been�looking�

at�taking�out�some�of�the�specialist�teams�and�the�example�you�have�just�given,�Kit,�really�

illustrates�that�well.��You�have�now�set�up�though�a�new�gang�crime�unit.��It�would�be�

interesting�to�know�where�the�thousand�officers�have�come�from�for�that�if�you�can�explain�that�

for�us�and�whether�we�might�see�its�officers�coming�from�other�specialist�units�or�whether�we�

have�taken�them�off�the�generalist,�as�it�were,�police�force.��Where�have�they�come�from�and�do�

you�feel�it�is�right�that�we�have�a�specialist�unit�at�the�time�when�you�are�looking�at�potentially�

getting�rid�of�some�of�them?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�a�specialist�unit�on�the�

basis�that�it�is�focusing�on�a�particular�large�group�of�individuals.��It�is�not�a�specialist�unit�in�

terms�of�the�skills�that�it�is�bringing�to�bear�so�within�the�Trident�Gang�Crime�Command�there�

are�a�huge�range�of�skills�that�allows�them�to�apply�all�sorts�of�general�crime�fighting�techniques�

to�this�particular�group�of�individuals.��It�is�specialist�purely�in�that�-�you�can�correct�me�-�it�is�

targeting�a�particular�type�of�person.��It�is�not�specialist�in�terms�of�the�techniques�that�are�

being�brought.��In�fact�one�of�the�advantages�of�it�is�that�it�is�designed�to�pull�together�all�

those�different�specialisms�that�currently�operate�separately�across�the�MPS�in�a�concerted�

effort�focusing�on�a�particular�group�and�trying�to�apprehend�them�for�the�offences�they�

commit,�rather�than�the�offences�that�suit�the�unit�that�is�pursuing�them.�

�

If�you�look,�for�instance,�in�the�past,�at�the�approach�-�this�is�obviously�my�view�-�that�the�SCD�

took�towards�drug�dealing�they�dealt�with�those�very�high�level�organised�criminal�networks�and�

it�would�go�after�them�in�long�two/three�year�operations�to�try�to�take�out�Mr�Big,�whereas�TP�

would�be�struggling�with�the�day�to�day�violence�on�the�street�that�Mr�Big’s�trade�was�

producing.��Bringing�those�two�together�to�focus�on�actually�reducing�the�harm�on�the�street,�

rather�than,�“We’re�going�after�him�because�he�suits�the�way�we�work�and�that’s�what�our�job�is�

and�you’re�going�after�them�because�that’s�what�you�have�to�deal�with�on�a�day�to�day�basis”,�

seems�a�much�more�coherent�way�of�approaching�it�and�means�that�the�public�will�get�the�result�

they�want�which�is�less�violence�on�the�street.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��That�is�really�helpful.��That�clarifies�the�focus�of�this�team.��

Can�you�answer�where�the�thousand�officers�have�come�from�please?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Craig�will�know.��It�is�a�variety�

of�places.�

�

Page 30



 

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�can�give�you�exact�figures.��1,126�officers�

and�staff.��They�are�working�across�SCO�and�TP.��When�we�talk�about�combining�at�the�moment�

one�of�the�things�we�have�already�done�is�combine�two�Assistant�Commissioners’�portfolios�into�

one�to�look�for�reducing�those�specialisations�and�also�making�savings�around�that.��If�you�look�

we�have�got�the�work�we�have�got�already�in�the�Trident�strength,�so�that�is�456�staff�in�that.��

We�have�got�19�borough�Trident�teams�with�over�500�staff.��We�have�got�proactive�syndicates�

around�Trident�with�120�staff.��We�have�got�a�gangs�operation�centre.��Everything�is�around�

using�these�specialist�assets�in�support�of�risks�that�exist�on�boroughs.��That�is�where�the�staff�

have�come�from.��They�are�under�a�single�Commander�-�I�think�you�met�the�Commander�

previously�-�in�the�work�around�it�to�give�the�clear�focus�and�message�around�why�this�is�

important.��It�is�absolutely�done�in�support�of�the�work�that�is�going�on�on�boroughs.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��Thank�you.��If�we�could�get�that�in�writing�--�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��By�all�means.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��In�my�scribbles�here�I�could�not�get�it�all�down.��

Professor�Innes,�do�you�want�to�comment�on�how�setting�up�a�project�to�try�to�deal�with�this�

issue,�how�you�think�this�fits�in�with�total�policing?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��I�do�

not�think�I�am�in�a�position�really�to�comment.��I�do�not�know�the�detail.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��Finally�I�wanted�to�ask�about�potential�risks�around�this�

whole�idea�of�total�policing�and�the�idea�of�more�generalised�teams�rather�than�more�specialist.��

Are�there�any�risks�around�moving�to�that?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Yes,�it�is�fair�to�say�that�the�use�of�increasing�

numbers�of�specialists�has�provided�an�opportunity�to�improve�the�quality�of�the�service.��That�is�

part�of�why�public�confidence�has�improved�and�it�has�led�to�improvements�but�the�fact�of�the�

matter�is,�for�the�next�ten�years,�we�are�not�in�the�same�climate�that�we�were�and�so�there�has�

to�be�some�sense�of�pragmatism�and�some�sense�of�realism.��If�we�went�at�this�idea�about�how�

much�could�be�delivered�by�generalists�rather�than�a�default�option�of,�“Let’s�set�up�a�squad�to�

deal�with�it”�-�as�Mr�Malthouse�has�said,�criminology�101�is�if�you�go�and�look�at�a�hidden�crime�

problem�there�is�always�much�more�of�it�than�you�think�is�there�so�you�very�rarely�disband�

squads�or�task�forces�in�the�end.��That�is�my�position�really;�there�will�be�some�risks�attached�to�

this�but�I�do�not�think�there�is�any�alternative�option.�

�

Caroline�Pidgeon�(Deputy�Chair):��One�of�them�will�be�around�public�confidence�potentially?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Possibly.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�am�not�sure�about�that.��I�

think�the�risk�inherent�in�that�approach�is�that�you�are�seen�to�be�focusing�on�the�volume�that�

affects�the�vast�majority�of�the�public�and�therefore�you�will�get�a�rise�in�public�confidence�but�

you�will�get�those�who�are�affected�by�the�specialist�who�are�small�in�number�who�may�perceive�

Page 31



 

that�they�are�getting�less�attention�than�they�were.��If�you�look�at,�as�an�example,�the�arts�and�

antiques�squad.��It�is�a�very�small�one.��There�is�a�community�in�London�of�arts�and�antiques�

people�who�are�involved�and�deal�with�fraud�and�theft�that�takes�place�and�if�that�department�

became�a�generalist�one�-�I�am�not�saying�it�will�necessarily�but�if�it�did�-�then�you�would�get�

protests�from�them�that�they�are�not�getting�their�bit�of�attention�that�they�require.��That�squad�

was�set�up�for�a�reason�in�the�past�when�there�was�a�particular�problem�or�spate�of�arts�and�

antiques�going�but�it�has�never�been�shut�down�and�I�do�not�think�that�there�has�ever�been�an�

assessment�since�then�of�demand�or�whether�it�is�required;�there�is�just�an�assumption�there�will�

always�be�enough�work�for�them�to�do.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��A�very�quick�one�as�well.��Do�not�forget�the�

work�we�have�done�on�rape�and�the�journey�we�have�come�on�that�which�was�within�generalist�

Criminal�Investigations�Department�(CID)�and�is�now�in�a�specialist�command.��It�is�not�as�clear�

cut�where�you�put�these�things.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��I�am�a�little�bit�concerned�that�the�partnership�working�has�not�been�set�

up�because�a�colleague�of�mine�wrote�to�the�14�selected�Connect�boroughs�and�nine�days�

before�you�launched�the�new�strategy�-�the�new�anti-gang�announcement�-�Greenwich�told�us,�

“Thank�you�for�your�letter�regarding�Operation�Connect.��I�regret�I�am�not�familiar�with�this�

project”.��Newham�sent�us�saying,�“I�can�confirm�that�Operation�Connect�has�not�been�adopted�

in�Newham”.��There�seems�to�be�a�bit�of�a�mismatch�between�your�announcements�and�the�

understanding�of�the�boroughs�about�what�is�going�on.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�a�timing�issue.��Operation�

Connect�was�going�from�borough�to�borough.��It�started�in�Waltham�Forest.��It�moved�on�to�

Brent.��It�then,�with�the�transition�of�leadership�at�the�MPS�and�with�the�decision�to�upgrade�

the�gangs�approach,�Operation�Connect�effectively�got�overtaken�so�it�had�not�yet�progressed�

on�to�those�other�boroughs�and�has�now�been�overtaken�by�the�Trident�Gang�Crime�Command.��

Operation�Connect�no�longer�exists.��It�has�been�expanded�into�the�overall�and�those�19�have�

sat�down�with�the�Commissioner�with�all�19�borough�Leaders�and�they�have�all�committed�and�

all�seem�on�board.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Who�is�responsible�for�the�multi-agency�approach?��What�is�the�

connection?��What�is�the�set�up�with�the�boroughs?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�will�be�driven�by�the�

Borough�Commander�and�by�the�Chief�Executive�of�the�local�authority�but�the�leads�will�

effectively,�I�would�imagine,�be�a�Superintendent�attached�to�it�and�then�the�community�safety�

lead�and�all�the�children’s�services�and�social�services.��However�the�local�authority�has�

structured�itself�in�officer�leadership�in�that�particular�area.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Have�you�found�the�boroughs�are�happy�about�this,�the�fact�you�have�

taken�over?��Most�boroughs�had�their�own�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Happy�about�the�gangs�or�the�

multi-agency?�

Page 32



 

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Happy�that�their�little�gang�unit�because�most�boroughs�had�gang�units�

didn’t�they?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��No.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��That�is�my�information.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Some�did.��Some�did�not.��

Actually�part�of�the�challenge�was�getting�some�of�the�19�to�accept�they�had�a�gang�problem.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Were�the�boroughs�that�had�gang�units�happy�about�them�being�pulled�

into�your�1,000�strong�team?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Certainly�I�have�not�heard�any�

protests.��In�fact,�when�we�had�all�the�local�authority�leaders�in�to�the�Yard�-�we�have�had�them�

in�twice�now�-�to�talk�about�it�they�were�a)�happy�and�b)�agreed�that�we�would�all�meet�the�19�

quarterly,�along�with�the�leadership�of�London�Councils,�to�review�progress.�

�

Jenny�Jones�(AM):��Have�you�moved�those�officers�out�of�the�boroughs�or�are�they�still�there�

and�they�are�just�working�in�a�seamless�way?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Everything�is�taking�place�in�a�borough.��

Everything�is�tasked�from�the�centre�and�takes�place�in�a�borough�so�people�go�where�the�

problem�is�and�where�the�activity�is.�

�

If�I�come�back�to�your�partnership�issue�I�have�just�taken�over�the�Chair�of�the�delivery�group�of�

the�Crime�Reduction�Board�and�we�did�discuss�this�issue�this�week�in�relation�to�where�do�we�go�

around�the�violence�work�and�there�is�agreement�that�we�will�come�to�the�next�level,�to�the�

Board�chaired�by�the�Mayor,�to�talk�about�what�is�the�partnership�approach�and�partnership�

framework�that�will�sit�around�the�work�around�gangs.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��One�of�the�things�that�local�

authority�leaders�agreed�to�was�that,�on�a�quarterly�basis,�we�would�look,�on�a�confidential�basis�

obviously,�about�which�of�them�had�upped�their�game�and�were�doing�what�was�required�from�

the�partnership�side�and�that�would�be�a�red,�amber,�green�type�job.��Now�part�of�Operation�

Connect�and�getting�Operation�Connect�going�was�that�what�was�the�community�safety�unit,�

but�now�staff�at�the�MOPC,�had�gone�into�Waltham�Forest�and�Brent�to�talk�to�the�local�

authority�about�how�it�was�doing�things,�what�it�was�planning�to�do�and�how�it�would�dovetail�

alongside�officers�from�Connect�and�that�is�now�happening,�comprehensively,�across�the�whole�

to�make�sure�that�all�of�that�is�up�to�speed.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��I�wanted�to�question�Professor�Innes�about�-�I�hope�I�have�not�

over-simplified�it�-�your�characterisation�that�we�cannot�afford�specialist�teams�going�forward�in�

the�next�ten�years�because�of�public�sector�retrenchment�and�we�have�to�focus�more�on�a�

generalist�flexible�approach.��I�would�have�thought�those�are�the�economics�of�relatively�small�

Page 33



 

organisations.��There�must�be�scope�for�national�collaboration�to�produce�-�how�many�did�you�

say,�42�squiddly�police�services�around�the�country?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��43.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��43.��If�there�is�a�need�for�specialist�knowledge�-�arts,�antiques,�

whatever�-�there�must�be�scope�for�the�MPS�to�do�partnership�work�to�maintain�national�or�

even�regional�resources�and�is�that�something�that�is�worth�looking�at?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��I�do�

not�think�I�am�saying�you�can�get�rid�of�all�specialisms�but�you�have�got�to�be�very,�very�careful�

about�where�you�have�a�specialist�asset�targeted,�and�they�should�be�targeted.��There�is�

something�in�what�you�say�but,�invariably,�a�lot�of�these�problems�are�solved�by�local�

knowledge.��A�few�years�ago�we�were�involved�in�a�study�looking�at�aspects�of�Operation�

Trident�and�one�of�the�things�that�we�uncovered�then�was�how�do�Trident�officers�go�and�find�

the�individuals�that�they�were�looking�for?��Trident�would�do�the�investigation�but�when�it�came�

down�to�finding�the�suspect�there�was�a�sergeant�on�a�particular�borough�who�had�been�there�

for�20�years,�knew�all�the�faces�on�the�street�and,�invariably,�the�Trident�officers�would�come�

down�and�say,�“We’re�looking�for�chummy.��Do�you�know�where�he�is?”�and�the�local�sergeant�

would�say,�“Yes”.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��I�am�a�bit�unclear�sometimes�about�what�specialist�means�

because�it�seems�to�be�specialists�doing�the�operational�work�whereas�sometimes,�strategically,�

a�specialist�can�be�an�advisory�role.��I�am�not�clear�that�that�distinction�is�being�made.���

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��You�are�absolutely�right,�Val.��

At�the�moment�there�are�some�national�problems�where,�out�of�the�good�of�their�heart,�various�

police�forces�have�assumed�the�national�responsibility.��That�is�more�true�of�the�MPS�than�

others�but�if�you�look�over�the�river�at�the�City�of�London�Police,�they�have�-�because�they�have�

got�a�concentration�of�financial�services�-�assumed�responsibility�for�fraud�and�they�have�got�a�

big�set�up�there�and�most�of�the�offence�take�place�elsewhere.��When�you�go�and�talk�to�them�

about�credit�card�fraud�they�will�tell�you�the�hotspots�round�the�country�and�they�join�up�with�

those�forces�to�apprehend�the�people�who�are�doing�it�elsewhere.��It�may�be�that�the�National�

Crime�Agency�gives�us�a�place�for�some�of�those�issues.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��I�am�concerned�about�the�very�rapid�changes�there�have�been�at�the�top�

and�the�changes�in�policies�there�have�been.��Clearly�that�has�risks�and�opportunities�and�I�quite�

like�what�you�have�said�about�blue�sky�thinking�and�so�on�but�let�me�quote�the�case�of�former�

Assistant�Commissioner�Mr�McPherson,�who�was�not�with�us�for�very�long,�but�when�he�was�

here�he�introduced�a�very�substantial�programme,�lots�of�reorganisation�and�so�on,�and�he�has�

gone,�and�this�programme�is�floundering�I�believe.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��That�is�a�bit�hard.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��All�right,�but�its�principal�advocate�has�gone.��I�am�wondering�whether�or�

not�you,�Mr�Mackey,�and�your�other�new�colleagues�are�going�to�come�in,�start�off�things�and�

Page 34



 

then�disappear.��It�has�been�hello�and�goodbye�of�late�so�I�would�like�to�know�that,�as�far�as�the�

new�management�team�is�concerned,�we�are�likely�to�have�some�sort�of�continuity�and�

permanence.��As�far�as�you�are�concerned�we�are�are�we?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Hopefully,�yes.��I�am�somewhat�concerned�

now�after�your�opening�comments!��No,�I�absolutely�recognise�the�issue�raised�and�that�is�why�I�

came�back�about�that�thing�about�TP.��Everything�that�is�now�going�on�in�TP�is�still�built�on�

those�models�that�are�in�place.��That�is�why�the�questions�asked�earlier�around�principles�and�

values�and�those�things�that�you�build�from�in�blue�sky�thinking�and�shaping�have�got�to�be�

right.�

�

The�only�work�we�are�looking�at�in�TP�at�the�moment�-�and�it�comes�to�Management�Board�and�

through�some�of�the�internal�processes�-�is�the�future�shape�of�SNTs.��You�have�come�back�a�

number�of�times�to�a�point�-�and�it�came�up�most�eloquently�in�the�answer�last�time.��The�

bedrock�on�which�we�build�policing�has�got�to�be�the�neighbourhoods�because�everything�

happens�in�the�neighbourhoods.��It�is�what�people�understand�and�that�is�why�the�work�is�

shaped�like�that.�

�

I�fully�understand�the�risks�around�people�identifying�new�teams�and�different�ways�of�working�

and�new�ways�and�ideas�coming�in.��That�is�part�of�the�challenge�about�how�effective�we�are�as�

a�leadership�team�and�as�a�Management�Board�in�using�those�skills�and�abilities�we�have�got�

round�that�table.��A�lot�of�people�round�that�table�have�an�awful�lot�of�experience�of�the�MPS,�

as�do�Commanders,�Deputy�Assistant�Commissioners�and�senior�members�of�police�staff.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��The�guys�at�the�very�top,�at�Assistant�Commissioner�level.��We�have�been�

looking�at�their�triumphs�-�and,�indeed,�your�triumphs�when�you�were�with�previous�forces.��I�

am�wondering�whether�or�not�you�are�going�to�seek�to�introduce�them�here.��For�example,�I�am�

informed�that�you�are�a�great�fan�of�stop�and�search.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�would�not�have�said�a�great�fan�of�Stop�and�

Search!��I�am�a�national�lead�for�the�ACPO�on�Stop�and�Search�so�I�have�worked�extensively�with�

Stop�and�Search�for�the�last�five�years.��I�have�worked�with�communities�in�London.��I�have�

worked�with�many�of�the�groups�who�advocate�we�should�not�be�using�Stop�and�Search�in�the�

way�we�do�and�that�is�part�of�the�reason�the�Commissioner�has�asked�me�to�do�some�of�the�

work�around�how�do�we�reshape�stop�and�search�in�London.��Describing�me�as�a�fan�is�an�

interesting�analogy�in�the�approach�around�it.��I�am�the�national�lead�on�Stop�and�Search.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��Really�what�I�am�driving�at�is�we�have�looked�at�the�triumphs�of�Mr�Ali�

and�Mr�Byrne�and�other�new�people.��I�am�wondering�whether�or�not,�now�that�they�have�joined�

the�MPS,�they�are�going�to�go�native�and�forget�all�the�radical�things�that�they�stood�for�before�

they�joined�us.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�hope�people�bring�the�very�best�of�what�we�

have�seen�elsewhere�and�look�at�the�transferability�of�what�works�elsewhere�and�bring�it�in,�if�it�

is�appropriate,�to�the�MPS.��That�is�the�great�advantage�of�it.�

�

Page 35



 

Whilst�this�seems�a�lot�of�change�at�the�moment�in�terms�of�the�MPS�we�touched�on�earlier,�

across�43�forces�in�England�and�Wales,�this�thing�does�happen�at�various�times�with�command�

teams�changing�and�can�be�radical�in�the�numbers�that�change�and�move�over�than�we�see�in�

the�MPS.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��Yes.��One�of�the�things�that�I�understand�that�Mr�Byrne�was�very�

interested�in�was�the�legalisation�of�brothels.��I�do�not�know�if�you�have�been�following�what�

has�been�happening�in�the�Assembly�in�general.��This�is�a�matter�which�is�not�infrequently�

raised.��Is�this�something�which�you�think�is�likely�to�be�revisited�because�of�the�appointment�of�

Mr�Byrne?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�am�not�sighted�on�that�at�all.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�have�had�conversations�with�

Assistant�Commissioner�Byrne�about�the�reported�comments�-�and�they�were�reported�

comments�-�and�it�is�fair�to�say�that�he�feels�that�he�was�taken�a�bit�out�of�context.��What�he�

was�doing,�quite�rightly,�was�questioning�whether�the�legal�framework�around�brothels�and�

prostitution�is�doing�what�we�want�it�to�do.��He�was�attempting�to�not�open�a�debate�but�to�say�

that�maybe�we�need�to�have�a�debate�about�the�issue.��I�do�not�think�he�was�advocating�the�

legalisation�of�brothels.�

�

Tony�Arbour�(AM):��Finally,�on�this,�talking�about�mission�creep.��When�I�was�the�Leader�of�a�

local�authority�we�were�only�too�keen�to�pass�things�over�to�the�police�who�certainly,�under�

previous�regimes�at�Scotland�Yard,�did�seem�to�be�quite�keen�on�social�work.��From�what�you�

are�saying�it�is�going�the�other�way�now.��Is�that�fair?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��The�focus�around�total�policing�is�much�more�

around�what�we�actually�do�in�police,�rather�than�policing,�for�London.��It�is�very�clear�in�that�

focus�around�it.�

�

One�of�the�ways�we�address�your�point�around�this�pass�the�parcel�of�functions�is�having�

partnerships�that�bite�-�and�I�do�not�mean�that�in�a�hard�way;�I�mean�that�in�an�honest�way.��

Round�a�partnership�table�you�do�have�those�tough�discussions�around�where�things�should�be.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�gangs�are�an�indicator�

because�the�Commissioner�has�been�very�clear�about�making�the�demand�of�the�local�authorities�

that�they�have�to�step�up�to�the�plate�and�do�their�part�in�a�very�obvious,�sensible�and�

performance-oriented�way.�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��I�want�to�move�into�the�area�about�performance�management�and�the�

relationship�between�the�Management�Board�level�leadership�within�the�MPS�and�the�local�

leadership�levels.��We�have�been�told�that�a�COMPSTAT�style�regular�borough�level�to�Assistant�

Commissioner�performance�management�regime�is�going�to�be�coming�into�force�and�I�want�to�

ask�a�few�questions�around�the�practicalities�of�how�that�is�going�to�work�out.�

�

Page 36



 

McKinsey’s�management�consultants�have�a�phrase�if�you�want�to�change�it�you�measure�it.��

These�COMPSTAT�meetings�are�going�to�be�looking�at�performance�data.��One�of�the�questions�

we�really�need�to�ask�is,�when�we�talk�about�technologies,�how�robust�that�performance�data�is�

going�to�be�and�whether�we�are�currently�measuring�the�right�indicators?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��There�is�always�a�debate�about�whether�you�

are�measuring�the�right�indicators�and,�having�done�these�sorts�of�processes�elsewhere,�it�is�

always�easy�to�add�to�the�information�pack.��Sometimes�the�skill�is�taking�some�things�away.��

The�COMPSTAT�label�has�almost�got�a�bit�of�baggage�attached�to�it,�very�much�around�crime�

fighting.��The�expectation�-�the�Commissioner�is�absolutely�clear�on�this�as�every�member�of�the�

Management�Board�-�is�if�you�are�running�and�leading�a�part�of�the�MPS�we�expect�you�to�know�

your�business,�we�expect�you�to�know�what�you�are�doing�for�the�people�of�London�and�we�

expect�a�general�view�that�you�can�improve�what�you�are�doing.��That�is�really�the�focus�around�

the�performance�focus.�

�

The�pack�at�the�moment�that�goes�out�around�crime�fighters,�for�those�that�attend,�is�many,�

many�pages.��I�think�70�or�80�was�yesterday’s�work�around�it.��It�focuses�on�everything�from�

high�level�crime�through�to�integrity�of�crime�reporting�data.��The�other�message�that�we�are�

sending�out�very�loud�and�clear�as�well�is�performance�has�to�be�right,�ethical�and�good�

performance.��It�covers�everything.��It�breaks�down�then�to�boroughs.��You�can�look�at�particular�

areas.��You�can�look�at�particular�themes.��It�looks�at�resources�against�particular�calls�for�

service.��It�is�a�very,�very�rigorous�way�of�doing�it.��That�is�the�first�bit�in�terms�of�crime�fighters.�

�

Now�ask�the�rest�of�the�business�what�do�you�do�in�the�rest�of�the�parts�of�the�business?��What�

does�SCO�do?��What�does�SO�do?��How�do�we�make�sure�we�are�getting�the�best�out�of�those�

assets�right�across�the�organisation?��Now�we�are�reforming�the�Performance�Board�which�sits�

at�Management�Board�level�and�with�effect�from�March�2012,�the�Commissioner�will�be�chairing�

it,�and�we�will�all�go�to�the�Performance�Board�which�is�looking�at�those�issues�around�

performance�and�cross-cutting�issues�right�across�the�MPS.��It�is�a�very,�very�different�approach�

in�terms�of�the�focus�around�it.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��There�are�a�number�of�things,�

having�talked�to�Simon�Byrne,�that�are�attractive.��In�the�past�performance�was�done�in�a�very�

sectoral�siloed�way�so�even�with�TP�they�would�do�performance�on�an�area�basis�rather�than�a�

whole�force�basis.��It�is�now,�as�I�understand�it,�done�on�a�whole�force�basis�with�all�32�Borough�

Commanders�there�all�taking�responsibility�collectively.��Serious�crime�is�there�as�well�so�the�

problem�is�not�just�for�TP�crime;�it�is�its�problem�too.��That�is�different�from�the�past�because�

crime�did�its�own�performance�framework�and�it�was�not�all�joined�up�together.��Also�the�fact�

that�the�Borough�Commanders�-�as�you�know�we�wanted�to�try�to�form�the�Borough�

Commanders�into�a�specialism�and�a�cadre�that�was�self-supporting.��The�fact�that�all�32�of�

them�had�to�sit�down�and�solve�their�problems�together,�rather�than,�“If�I�enforce�on�my�

borough�that�means�they’ll�all�go�and�offend�on�the�neighbour�and�I�don’t�care�about�that”.��

That�should�not�happen�any�more�because�it�is�your�problem�too.��That�is�attractive.�

�

Then�the�other�thing�is�the�wide�promulgation�of�different�types�of�data.��As�you�know�through�

the�JEM�meetings�we�have�tried�to�pull�in�other�organisations’�data�-�ambulance�data,�local�

Page 37



 

authority�data�and�anything�we�could�think�of�-�that�cut�the�appearance�of�what�was�happening�

in�a�different�way�and�made�you�think�about�it�differently.��That�seems�to�be�being�drawn�in�as�

well�and�so�that�will�be�helpful.�

�

The�other�critical�thing�-�and�what�Craig�said�is�very�important.��As�you�know�when�we�changed�

the�Police�Authority�meetings�were�here�and�the�Commissioner’s�report,�instead�of�being�the�

last�thing�on�the�agenda,�was�the�first�thing.��That�was�because�we�very�much�wanted�the�

Commissioner�to�be�on�top�of�and�understand�the�crime�performance�and�the�cross-cutting�

themes.��We�got�part�of�the�way�there.��Now�the�new�Commissioner�definitely�wants�to�get�his�

fingers�into�crime�performance�in�a�very�detailed�way�so�chairing�the�Performance�Board�is�a�

huge�step�forward.�

�

John�Biggs�(AM):��It�is�all�in�secret�now�as�far�as�I�can�see.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��No.��He�comes�here�once�a�

month.��You�can�ask�him.��What�was�great�if�you�remember�about�the�last�Committee�meeting�

was�I�said�we�talked�for�the�majority�of�the�time�about�crime�performance,�which�we�never�did�in�

the�Police�Authority;�we�always�talked�about�what�was�in�the�Mail�on�Sunday!�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��This�is�an�experience�I�had�when�I�was�on�the�London�Development�

Agency�(LDA)�Board.��When�we�first�arrived�at�the�LDA�Board�the�only�matrix�that�were�

discussed�from�LDA�officers�up�to�the�Board�were�input�matrix.��Those�were�measured�to�death.��

When�we�said�what�results�are�we�getting�from�these�input�matrix�we�got�blank�faces.��Can�I�get�

your�assurance�that�the�figure�work�that�goes�through�does�include�input�matrix,�because�that�is�

important,�and�output�matrix,�because�that�is�a�measure�of�efficiency,�but�also�that�the�

outcomes�-�inputs,�outputs�and�outcomes�-�are�all�part�of�those�matrix?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�can�assure�you�they�are�so�we�have�got�

everything�from�satisfaction�rates,�detection�rates,�attrition�rates,�ie�cases�that�do�not�make�it�

through�to�court�and�why,�complaints.��It�gives�you�a�whole�range�of�data.��Your�quote�at�the�

start,�what�gets�measured�gets�done,�is�certainly�something�that�is�very�true�in�the�MPS�in�terms�

of�we�set�an�indicator�for�it,�we�look�at�it�and�we�can�usually�find�the�data�to�do�it.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Don’t�they�say�in�the�Lake�

District�that�weighing�a�pig�will�not�make�it�fatter!�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��Absolutely.��Here�we�go.��I�am�now�going�to�turn�my�former�question�

on�its�head.��How�do�you�ensure�that�this�more�interventionist�approach�to�performance�does�

not�turn�into�micro�management?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��That�is�around�the�skills�of�the�people�doing�

it.��It�is�around�a�balance�around�doing�it.��Part�of�those�sessions�are�also�quite�an�opportunity�

to�share�practice�and�learning.��For�the�first�time�in�a�long�time�we�also�now�look�at�the�MPS�

against�its�most�similar�family�of�forces.��There�has�been�a�tendency�to�only�look�at�what�the�

MPS’�performance�is.��We�look�at�it�now�against�the�most�similar�family�of�forces�so�it�is�not�

uncommon�that�we�say�an�action�coming�out�of�something�around�burglary,�“Let’s�have�a�look�

Page 38



 

at�what�West�Yorkshire�is�doing�because�it�is�obviously�achieving�something�around�productivity�

better�than�we�are”.��We�are�very�clear�that�it�is�not�just�about�doing�that;�it�is�about�learning�

and�sharing�as�well.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�a�philosophy.��I�have�

been�pulled�up�by�the�Commissioner�in�our�meetings�because�he�said�to�me,�“Why�do�you�only�

ever�ask�about�the�red�numbers?��Why�aren’t�you�asking�about�the�green�numbers�as�well?”��

That�cuts�to�the�philosophy�which�is�about�if�he�or�she�is�doing�well�in�that�borough,�why�are�

they�doing�well�in�that�borough�and�you�should�be�doing�the�same.�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��One�of�the�frustrations�I�have�of�this�place�is�that�we�have�a�fairly�rare�

questioning�session�with�the�Mayor,�once�a�month�we�have�oral�questions,�but�then�Members�

submit�a�couple�of�hundred�thousand�written�questions,�many�of�which�duplicate�each�other.��

One�of�the�disciplines�about�having�actual�meetings�is�that�if�you�do�not�have�the�time�to�

discuss�it�in�the�meeting�then�you�need�to�ask�yourself�whether�or�not�it�is�a�priority�to�be�

asking�that�question.��As�such,�can�we�perhaps�ensure�that�the�meeting�does�not�trigger�the�

request�for�each�Borough�Commander�to�go�back�and�spend�the�intervening�28�or�29�days�of�

the�month�populating�stuff�because�otherwise�it�defeats�the�object�of�those�meetings?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Just�to�reassure�you,�I�have�only�described�

one�very�small�part�of�the�performance�structure.��Every�single�morning�every�one�of�us�on�our�

Blackberries,�on�desktops,�has�got�what�happened�on�every�burglary�on�every�borough�

yesterday�and�every�robbery;�a�daily�bulletin�in�what�is�on�there.��Every�Friday�as�a�senior�

management�team�all�of�us�sit�together�and�discuss�performance�for�that�week�as�well.��It�is�a�

whole�system�approach�around�performance.��If�something�comes�up�on�a�daily�basis�people�

round�the�table�will�be�tasked�to�intervene.�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��Another�question�about�how�the�relationship�between�the�centre�and�

the�boroughs.��For�most�borough�based�police�officers�the�Borough�Commander�is�the�top�of�

the�universe�when�it�comes�to�the�uniformed�bit�of�policing,�and�I�think�it�is�absolutely�

appropriate�that�is�the�case.��How�do�we�ensure�that�in�this�performance�management�

relationship�the�authority�of�the�Borough�Commander�to�run�his�or�her�team�is�reinforced�and�

not�undermined�so�that�the�borough�based�police�officers�maintain�the�view�that�all�punishment�

flows�through�the�Borough�Commander?��How�do�we�make�sure�that�they�are�the�head�of�their�

team?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��One�of�the�ways�of�doing�it�is�getting�the�

balance�right�in�those�performance�meetings.��Also,�being�very�clear,�those�performance�

meetings�are�around�the�borough�management�team.��In�the�nicest�way�it�is�not�a�spectator�

sport.��It�is�around�the�borough�management�team�and�the�key�members,�Borough�

Commanders,�and�it�is�very�much�around�that.��We�have�got�a�very�strong�culture�of�borough�

based�policing.��This�is�not�a�way�of�saying�we�are�going�to�change�all�of�that�but�it�is�a�way�of�

saying,�“How�can�it�be�that�two�neighbouring�boroughs,�one�has�got�a�detection�rate�[I�will�

make�it�up]�of�5%�and�the�next�door�one�is�clearing�up�15%�or�20%?”��The�people�of�London�

would�expect�us�to�say�why�is�that�and�what�can�we�learn�from�each�other?�

�

Page 39



 

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Having�the�other�specialist�

units�there�as�part�of�the�performance�it�is�all�about�making�sure�that�the�midfield�is�given�the�

centre�forward�the�ball�so�they�can�slot�it�in�the�net,�rather�than�the�two�playing�on�different�

pitches.�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��Which�nicely�leads�me�on�to�a�personal�bug�bear�of�mine�but�one�this�

performance�management�structure�could�really�support;�the�ownership�of�the�physical�location�

of�London.��Every�crime�that�happens�in�London�happens�on�a�bit�of�London.��It�happens�

physically�in�a�borough.��We�have�heard�in�a�number�of�different�contexts�where�specialist�teams�

-�and�it�goes�back�to�that�relationship�with�specialists�and�generalists�-�have�come�in�to�do�their�

work,�perhaps�not�very�effectively�in�the�time�and�place�that�they�did�it,�and�then�withdrew,�

leaving�the�local�team�to�mop�up�the�social�impact�that�had�come�from�that.��We�had�that�with�

the�Territorial�Support�Group.��If�it�has�been�viewed�that�they�have�been�heavy�handed�it�is�the�

local�SNTs�that�have�to�mop�up,�or�the�counter�terrorism�teams.�

�

Through�this�relationship�between�the�geographical�specialists�and�the�subject�matter�specialists�

can�we�ensure�that�those�geographical�specialists�maintain�the�primary�ownership�of�the�

physical�location�that�policing�happens�and�that�liaison�happens�and�happens�through�them�so�

that�we�do�not�get�borough�teams�moaning�and�saying,�“They�came�in,�they�did�this,�then�they�

withdrew�and�I�had�to�deal�with�all�the�flak�from�the�local�community�who�felt�that�they�had�

been�heavy�handed”?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��I�absolutely�support�that�and�that�is�part�of�

the�reason�of�doing�it�as�a�total�team.��Also�it�comes�back�to�the�point�raised�around�how�the�

new�Management�Board�works�together.��The�focus�entirely�is�around�doing�it�as�for�MPS�and�

for�London.�

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��Craig,�just�a�very,�very�final�point,�going�back�to�one�of�your�opening�

statements.��I�was�very�pleased�that�you�said�this�unprompted�by�me�but�I�want�to�nail�you�

down�on�it�a�little�bit.��When�the�single�confidence�measure�came�out�it�was�meant�to�replace�

the�plethora�of�others�and�what�it�became�was�the�single�confidence�measure�which�sat�on�top�

of�all�the�other�measurements�that�came�before.��It�is�too�simplistic�really�but�I�also�believe�that�

there�are�too�many.��Can�we�get�your�assurance�that�there�will�be�a�really�disciplined�thinning�

out�of�the�measurements�and�matrix�and�they�are�small,�focused,�meaningful�and�they�can�be�

used�internally�as�a�management�tool�but,�ideally,�also�shared�with�us�periodically?�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Absolutely.��It�is�in�no�one’s�interest�to�

present�200�or�300�pages�of�performance�data�and�then�ask�people�to�wade�through�it.��The�

skill�is�finding�the�bits�to�look�at�and�go�to.��We�are�always�keeping�that�clear�focus.��It�comes�

back�to�one�of�the�things�we�discussed�earlier�on�around�the�plan�in�being�very�clear�on�those�

bits�that�are�measured�and�those�are�the�ones�that�we�look�at.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��James,�I�agree.��I�am�starting�

to�think�that�the�confidence�measure�bears�no�relation�whatsoever�to�police�performance.��You�

look�across�the�city�and�it�moves�in�different�directions�in�different�areas�for�no�apparent�

reason.�

Page 40



 

�

James�Cleverly�(AM):��I�have�had�this�conversation�with�my�own�Borough�Commanders�but�

going�back�to�that�McKinsey�quote,�you�measure�things�you�want�to�change.��One�of�the�things�

with�the�single�confidence�measure,�as�we�have�seen�when�you�look�at�confidence�matrix�in�

boroughs�like�Bexley�compared�with�confidence�measures�in�Lambeth,�volumes�and�rates�of�

crime�have�nothing�to�do�with�confidence.��If�my�Borough�Commander�in�Bexley�said,�“Actually,�

I’ve�got�lower�confidence�levels�than�my�crime�dictates�so�I’m�willing�to�sacrifice�a�bit�of�crime�

increase�in�order�to�drive�up�so�I’m�going�to�move�a�whole�load�of�police�away�from�crime�

fighting�to�being�a�PR�function�because�that’s�what�this�thing�you’ve�asked�me�to�measure�tells�

me�I�should�be�doing”�I�said�I�would�crucify�him,�and�rightly�so.��It�is�a�bad�measure�and�a�

perverse�measure�and�I�would�be�quite�happy�to�see�it�scrapped.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��MOPC�has�taken�on�board�some�wider�functions�than�the�

MPA�and�Community�Safety�Partnerships�being�one�of�them.��If�you�can�give�us�a�quick�pen�

portrait�of�how�those�new�responsibilities�will�be�worked�through�in�the�policing�plan?��How�do�

they�fit�with�this�total�policing�approach?��What�has�changed�in�the�way�that�that�will�be�carried�

out?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��There�are�partnerships�all�over�

the�place:�upwards,�downwards�and�at�the�sides.��One�of�the�challenges�is�structuring�ourselves�

to�engage�coherently�with�all�of�them.��In�the�end�the�change�is�that�much�of�that�day�to�day�

partnership�engagement�is�done�at�an�officer�level�now,�rather�than�at�a�member�level�because�

we�just�do�not�have�Members.��Increasingly�what�we�are�finding�is�that�the�partnership�is�not�

just�outbound;�it�is�inbound.��For�instance,�I�have�somebody�from�London�Probation�now�

seconded�into�the�MOPC�at�a�senior�level�to�drive�the�partnership�there�between�us�and�the�

MPS�and�other�partners.�

�

We�have�got�similar�cadre�officers�who�are�engaged�in�borough�Community�and�Police�

Engagement�Groups�(CPEGS)�and�Crime�and�Disorder�Reduction�Partnerships�and�local�

Community�Safety�Partnerships�across�London�and�are�filtering�the�information�back�and�doing�

that�work.�

�

Then,�upwards,�there�is�the�work�that�the�community�safety�unit�used�to�do�and�now�still�does�

in�its�new�guise�with�the�Ministry�of�Justice�(MOJ)�and�the�Home�Office�and�others.�

�

The�critical�relationship�though�is�between�MOPC�and�the�MPS�because�if�we�provide�the�basis�

of�a�plan�and�a�sense�of�momentum�and�also�other�recipients�of�more�and�more�central�

Government�money�which�we�can�then�parcel�out�on�a�partnership�basis�and�use�to�manipulate�

the�structures�that�it�works�much�better�together,�then�that�relationship�is��--�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��So�is�there�any�shift�of�focus?��Are�you�going�to�be�

performance�managing�more?��Is�it�going�to�be�more�directed?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�most�important�

relationships�--�

�

Page 41



 

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��I�am�talking�about�the�preventative�work�that�is�going�on.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�primary�relationship�on�

that�is�with�the�local�authorities�and�that�has�to�be�a�collaboration.��Politics�gets�in�the�way�

sometimes�but�what�we�have�tried�to�achieve�with�the�JEM�meetings,�and�what�we�are�getting�

better�and�better�at�to�the�extent�that�local�authorities�are�now�seizing�the�pack.��We�had�

Islington�in�yesterday,�a�very�productive�meeting,�and�it�wants�access�to�those�packs�to�produce�

them�for�itself�on�a�monthly�basis�because�it�finds�it�very�useful,�both�sides�of�the�game�-�police�

and�local�authority�and�other�partners�-�in�driving�the�thing�forward.�

�

I�am�quite�keen�for�the�ownership�of�that�process�to�become�much�more�widely�spread.��

Yesterday�we�had�the�local�authority,�the�local�borough�command,�the�Crown�Prosecution�

Service,�the�local�head�of�probation,�the�British�Transport�Police,�Transport�for�London,�the�

London�Criminal�Justice�Partnership�and�the�Youth�Justice�Board.��The�only�person�missing�was�

health.��That�is�a�nut�we�would�like�to�crack.��They�were�all�sitting�around�a�very�collaborative�

meeting�that,�frankly,�I�did�not�really�have�to�Chair;�it�chaired�itself.��If�that�group�goes�away�

itself�saying,�“This�is�constructive�and�we�want�to�do�this�ourselves�on�a�monthly�basis”�then�we�

are�50%�of�the�way�there.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��I�am�interested�how�you�would�performance�manage�this�

though.��I�do�not�know�if�Professor�Innes�wants�to�say�anything�because�you�have�some�views�

on�how�Community�Safety�Partnerships�can�be�improved?�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��This�

is�a�piece�of�work�in�progress�but�some�of�the�work�that�we�did�last�year�with�Her�Majesty’s�

Inspectorate�of�Constabulary�identified�that,�in�the�new�environment�that�we�are�going�into,�

there�are�a�number�of�areas�where�things�could�be�improved.��Sometimes�partnerships�become�

too�interested�in�working�with�each�other,�rather�than�working�for�the�public.��Finding�ways�to�

establish�some�performance�measures�and�then�ensure�that�all�of�the�activity�is�delivering�for�

the�public,�rather�than�trying�to�maintain�the�partnership�and�the�delicate�politics�that�

sometimes�exists�in�that,�would�be�a�very�beneficial�thing�to�be�able�to�achieve.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��There�is�one�important�

change�that�has�happened�both�in�the�approach�to�crime�but�also�in�social�policy�generally�

which�is�helping�partnership�working,�and�that�is�the�focus�on�individuals.��In�the�past,�certainly�

crime�has�been�about�crime�types�and�sometimes�about�locations�but�only�recently�has�there�

been�this�general�recognition�of�what�everybody�has�known,�and�what�the�Professor�will�have�

known�for�some�time,�which�is�that�80%�of�it�is�down�to�the�same�cohort�of�people�and�that�if�

you�focus�in�on�them�then�you�can�do�it.��Local�authorities�are�used�to�doing�that,�as�are�all�the�

other�organisations.��Now�the�MPS�is�very�much�focusing�on�individuals�it�means�that�that�

partnership�can�coalesce�around�a�particular�target�for�whatever�intervention�or�enforcement�is�

required�and�that�is�making�partnership�much�easier�to�deal�with.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��Earlier�on�you�were�talking�about�benchmarking�against�other�

authorities�and�best�value�type�activities�which�will�go�on�in�the�public�sector�for�a�long�time.��I�

wondered�if�there�is�some�benchmarking�to�go�on�nationally�around�crime�and�crime�safety�

Page 42



 

partnerships,�preventative�work,�because�from�what�you�are�saying,�Kit,�it�does�seem�to�be�at�a�

formulation�stage�really�in�getting�the�work�going�and�moving�forward?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�have�been�out�the�game�for�

three�years�now�but�it�has�been�a�difficult�job�for�all�the�reasons�that�I�said�but�I�feel�as�if�we�are�

now�getting�towards�some�momentum�on�it�because�of�those�various�changes�that�have�taken�

place.�

�

I�would�just�say�on�benchmarking,�when�I�was�a�councillor�there�was�a�lot�of�benchmarking�went�

on�and�there�were�league�tables.��Pleasingly�the�council�of�which�I�was�Deputy�Leader�was�top�

of�the�league�table�year�after�year�after�year.��But�we�used�to�say�to�ourselves,�“Are�we�in�a�

situation�where�we�are�top�of�the�league�table�because�we�are�slightly�less�crap�than�everybody�

else�or�are�we�good�in�absolute�terms?”��I�think�that�is�always�the�question�you�have�got�to�ask�

yourself�when�you�are�benchmarking.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��You�can�find�authorities�with�similar�characteristics.��Find�

family�authorities�to�look�at.�Let’s�leave�that�there�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��That�is�right�but�if�we�are�all�

rubbish�and�you�are�slightly�less�rubbish�it�does�not�mean�you�are�absolutely�good.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��Most�people�here,�particularly�people�who�have�been�

councillors,�would�say�that�they�think�there�is�huge�potential�in�local�crime�safety�partnerships’�

preventative�work,�it�is�fantastic�and�sometimes�very�much�addresses�the�issues�of�the�public;�

anti-social�behaviour�on�estates�etc�etc.��The�community�safety�funding�from�the�Government�

has�gone�down�dramatically.��It�was�a�small�resource�anyway�-�£15�million�-�and�now�we�are�

down�to�about�£7�million.��The�community�safety�grants�that�we�have�to�allocate�have�obviously�

gone�down.��What�is�your�strategy�going�to�be?��What�are�the�priorities�for�making�those�

community�safety�grants?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�Government�has�taken�

away�but�it�has�also�given!��No,�honestly.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��I�am�not�making�a�political�point�here�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��No,�I�know�you�are�not.��I�

know.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��I�am�interested�in�the�technical�job�of�how�do�you�get�best�

value�out�of�this�money.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�understand.��One�of�the�

frustrations�is�that�we�have�had�little�bits�of�other�money.��We�had�the�Communities�Against�

Guns,�Gangs�and�Knives�money�that�has�come�out.��There�is�a�bit�of�money�that�might�be�part�

of�the�Brooke�Kinsella�[anti-knife�crime�campaigner]�thing,�giving�us�drugs�intervention�

programme�money.��The�challenge,�you�are�quite�right,�Val,�is�not�only�to�cope�with�the�overall�

Page 43



 

reduction�but�to�be�more�coherent�about�it�being�spent.��The�truth�is�that�there�will�always�be�a�

tension�because�what�the�Home�Office�has�done�and�the�MOJ�has�done�in�the�past�is�they�have�

given�it�to�local�authorities�directly,�and�that�means�there�is�a�huge�amount�of�duplication�and�

there�is�no�consistency�about�how�it�is�spent.��So�every�local�authority�that�is�in�receipt�of�

whatever�it�is�-�£300,000�or�£400,000�-�has�an�officer�who�is�administrating�that�money�for,�

broadly,�80%�of�the�time�the�same�service.�

�

If�I�give�you�an�example.��One�of�the�challenges�we�are�going�to�have�to�face�in�the�reduction�of�

community�safety�funding�is�the�provision�of�women’s�services�across�the�capital�because�much�

of�that�money�is�used�for�domestic�violence�advocacy,�sexual�violence�advocacy�and,�indeed,�in�

some�circumstances,�it�is�used�for�refuges�for�women�and�men.��The�question�I�have�posed�at�

the�Crime�Reduction�Board�that�the�Mayor�chairs�is�whether�there�we�should�be�saying,�“We�can�

spend�this�more�coherently�at�the�centre,�provide�a�pan-London�service,�as�we�have�done�with�

rape�crisis,�with�local�authorities�buying�in,�rather�than�parcel�out�£30,000,�£40,000�or�£50,000�

here�on�some�kind�of�formula”.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��Is�this�going�to�be�written�up�in�the�crime�policing�plan�then?��

Is�there�going�to�be�a�very�transparent�framework?��One�of�the�things�about�partnership�is�that�

people�need�to�understand�what�the�partnership�is�supposed�to�be�for.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�truth�is�it�is�under�

discussion�at�the�Crime�Reduction�Board�at�the�moment.��I�have�had�exactly�this�conversation�

with�Jules�Pipe�about�how�do�we�cope�with�the�reduction�from�17�to�11�to�seven�and�still�make�

sure�that�we�have�got�domestic�violence�services,�not�least�because�if�they�start�to�disappear�

then�the�MPS�has�got�a�problem�in�attrition�when�it�gets�to�court.��We�are�looking�at�that�with�

them�and�with�London�Councils�about�whether�we�can�overcome�the�problems�of�local�

authorities�saying,�“That’s�not�your�business;�that’s�our�business”�and�say,�“If�we�can�provide�

the�service�centrally�cheaper�and�still�get�the�coverage,�do�you�mind?”�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��A�last�question,�Kit.��Is�there�going�to�be�any�real�scope�within�

MOPC�for�doing�some�work�on�resolving�those�whole�system�problems�around�the�criminal�

justice�system�in�London�and�how�they�interface�with�policing?��Certainly�that�seems�to�be�one�

of�the�biggest�frustrations�officers�put�to�us.��In�terms�of�inefficiencies,�dare�I�say�it.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�certainly�hope�so�and�the�

Government’s�intention�--�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��What�is�your�plan�there�then?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�Government’s�intention�is�

to�do�exactly�that.��It�is�policing�and�crime�so�it�is�a�much�wider�remit�than�just�the�cops.��We�

are,�in�London,�because�of�the�momentum�and�other�issues�and�the�fact�that�we�are�

geographically�coterminous,�we�have�seen�a�momentum�that�way.��So�probation�is�very�keen�to�

come�in�and�work�together.��Similarly�the�Crown�Prosecution�Service�is�keen�to�come�and�be�

part�of�the�team.��Whether�we�will�ever�overcome�those�organisations�-�the�Youth�Justice�Board�

will�come�in�as�part�under�control�of�MOPC.��I�would�love�to�see�that.�

Page 44



 

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��Have�you�set�some�objectives�for�some�key�problems�you�wish�

to�resolve�in�the�relationship�between�the�police�and�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Yes,�absolutely.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��What�are�they?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��First�of�all�it�is�making�sure�

that�they�are�working�together�on�an�integrated�basis.��We�have�got,�for�instance,�an�integrated�

offender�management�pilot�running�in�the�North�West�sector�at�the�moment.��As�soon�as�we�get�

the�evaluation�on�that�hopefully�that�will�spread�out�across�the�city.��That�is�probation,�the�

police�and�local�authorities�working�together�in�a�much�more�coherent�way.�

�

There�are�other�areas�that�we�would�love�to�get�into.��For�instance,�prisons.��We�are�all�of�us�

dealing�with�the�individuals�that�get�spat�out�by�the�prison�system.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��Oh�they�would�be�much�better�run�by�the�GLA.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�would�love�to�get�to�a�

situation�where�we�either�had�much�more�influence�about�what�goes�on�in�prisons�and�you�have�

seen�in�Feltham�we�have�started�to�try�to�do�that.��We�had�to�write�a�big�cheque�to�do�it�but,�

nevertheless,�getting�into�prisons�in�a�big�way�and�setting�the�framework�for�what�happens�

inside�prisons�so�we�know�what�we�are�going�to�receive�when�they�leave�is�going�to�be�critical�as�

well.��There�is�a�lot�of�work�to�do�around�that�because�at�the�moment�it�is�all�operating�as�its�

own�little�island�in�the�sea.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�(AM):��Probably�topics�for�another�meeting.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Absolutely.��Get�probation�

and�the�prison�service�and�all�the�rest�of�them�in.��That�would�be�really�interesting.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��I�want�to�take�us�back�to�the�community�safety�funding.��

Professor�Innes�you�have�written�on�this.��At�the�moment�in�the�communities�-�and�I�am�back�to�

confidence�in�policing�-�local�communities�have�participated,�with�different�views�of�success,�at�

the�various�CPEG�groups.��We�have�got�the�IOG�groups.��We�have�got�various�networks.��We�

have�got�ward�panels.��It�is�getting�the�police�embedded�in�their�local�communities,�particularly�

as�they�no�longer�live�in�them,�that�is�actually�very�important,�and�the�relationship�and�trust�

building�between�the�two�parties.��After�all,�as�we�all�know,�police�solve�crimes�because�the�

public�tells�them�we�have�done�it.�

�

I�am�very�keen�-�and�one�of�the�reasons�we�participated�in�our�previous�incarnation�on�the�

community�side�-�because�I�do�think�it�is�the�work�that�we�do�on�the�ground�that�is�vital.��There�

are�a�lot�of�people�who�have�done�some�very�good�work.��Particularly�in�the�spirit�of�localism�I�

would�like�to�feel�that�was�not�taken�away�and�that�those�who�produced�good�work�and�wanted�

to�continue�producing�good�work�-�how�it�is�evaluated�would�need�to�be�agreed�-�should�be�

Page 45



 

allowed�to�go�on�doing�so�on�a�local�CPEG�or�some�other�incarnation�view.��I�would�like�to�fly�

the�flag�for�that.�

�

You�say�we�do�not�have�Members�involved�any�more.��I�am�sure�there�are�Members�who�would�

like�to�be�involved�and�help�in�any�way�so�that�is�for�the�future.��We�should�not�lose�the�good�

points�of�what�we�have�established.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�agree�with�you�and�I�have�

encouraged�every�audience�that�I�have�spoken�to�to�develop�a�relationship�with�Members�of�this�

Committee�because�it�is�critical�that�they�do�that�with�their�London�Assembly�Members.�

�

We�have�got�a�challenge�though�in�engagement�which�is�that�community�groups�have�a�

tendency,�quite�naturally,�to�be�parochial�but�they�also�exhibit�characteristics�that�are�common�

amongst�a�lot�of�them�that�make�me�sometimes�question�whether�we�are�getting�a�true�picture�

of�crime�in�an�area.��You�would�look�at�a�ward�that�we�might�think�at�the�centre�has�a�particular�

problem�with�X�and,�in�fact,�you�will�find�the�priorities�are�dog�fouling�and�cycling�on�the�

pavement.��You�would�be�surprised�the�number�of�ward�panels�and�CPEGs�for�whom�those�two�

items�are�very,�very�high�up�on�the�agenda,�whereas�we�would�think�they�were�struggling�with�a�

knife�carriage�problem�in�the�city�and�a�robbery�issue.��Whether�that�is�a�characteristic�of�the�

people�who�are�on�it�or�the�general�parochial�nature�we�need�to�have�a�look�at.�

�

I�have�already�signalled�that�I�want�to�have�a�look�at�the�CPEG�structure.��It�is�very�expensive�to�

administer.��It�costs�over�£1�million�to�administer.��There�is�a�lot�of�same�old�same�old.��A�lot�of�

the�same�people�have�been�on�there�for�a�long�time.��We�saw�during�the�summer�that�we�were�

not�-�MPS�and�MPA�-�getting�the�right�message�up�from�the�street.��There�is�also�a�duplication�

issue�in�that�it�has�got�a�huge�engagement�structure�alongside�ours�so�we�are�talking�sometimes�

to�the�same�people�and�sometimes�to�different�people.��All�of�it�needs�a�bit�of�a�rationalisation�

and�hopefully�over�the�summer�we�will�correct�that.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��It�is�important�not�to�reduce�people’s�opportunity�to�engage�with�the�

police,�whatever�a�simple�--�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��We�want�to�widen�the�

opportunity�because�at�the�moment�the�opportunity�is�given�to�a�small�number�of�people.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��Absolutely.��The�message�out�and�about�at�the�moment�is�that�that�is�

not�the�case.��I�do�think�that�is�part�of�the�communication�that�one�should�be�coming�out�with�

when�we�are�looking�to�explore�the�different�ways�of�feeding�information�up.��As�I�say,�it�is�trust�

with�the�public�that�is�going�to�make�the�difference.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Can�I�say,�Chair,�I�absolutely�support�that�

point.��If�you�look�at�some�of�the�initiatives�that�are�going�on�around�the�MPS�at�the�moment;�

look�at�our�use�of�Twitter.��Members�will�have�their�own�view�on�Twitter�but�people�do�listen.��

Look�at�the�stuff�that�is�retweeted.��The�stuff�coming�out�from�the�helicopter.��All�sorts�of�

things�around�that.��To�the�cover�it�live�meetings�where�you�will�have�seen�many�of�the�Borough�

Commanders�doing�online�meetings.��We�are�getting�to�different�groups�of�people�like�that.�

Page 46



 

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��I�have�been�very�impressed.��Our�Borough�Commander�has�been�

going�round�to�face�to�face�meetings�too.��The�point�is,�as�a�result�of�which,�people�come�and�

talk�to�them,�they�build�a�relationship�and�then�they�can�be�the�ones�that�feed�in�information�

when�it�matters.�

�

Craig�Mackey�(Deputy�Commissioner,�MPS):��Absolutely.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Having�said�that,�Victoria,�it�is�

possible,�because�I�have�this�same�challenge,�to�spend�100%�of�your�time�engaging.��We�would�

actually�like�the�large�majority�of�officers’�time�to�be�spent�catching�criminals.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��If�they�get�the�leads�because�they�have�built�the�trust.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��The�challenge�is�balancing�the�

two.��For�instance,�if�you�look�at�SNTs,�a�lot�of�their�time�is�taken�up�with�engagements�and�

keeping�people�happy�and�not�enough�time�is�spent�on�crime�fighting.�

�

Victoria�Borwick�(AM):��What�I�am�asking�is�that�decision�to�be�made�locally,�rather�than�you�

saying�that�you�are�going�to�bring�it�all�in�to�central.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��I�do�not�know.��We�have�had�

some�issues.��We�had�a�SNT�down�in�Bromley�who�got�very�high�satisfaction�scores�in�keeping�

their�residents�happy�but�they�were�actually�all�inside�on�the�Playstation�most�of�the�time�

weren’t�they?��There�was�some�disciplinary�issue�I�remember.��I�may�be�wrong.�

�

Professor�Martin�Innes�(Director,�Police�Science�Institute,�University�of�Cardiff):��

Engagement�is�important�in�all�of�this�but�you�have�got�to�see�it�from�the�public’s�point�of�view�

and�not�necessarily�from�the�police’s�point�of�view.��The�analogy�I�always�use�is�it�is�a�bit�like�

going�to�the�doctor.��You�go�to�the�doctor�with�your�symptoms.��You�tell�the�doctor�what�your�

symptoms�are.��That�is�what�the�public�is�doing�when�they�engage�with�you.��It�still�needs�the�

expertise�centrally�in�analytic�time�to�work�out�what�are�the�causes�of�those�symptoms.��That�is�

where�the�join�up�between�engagement�and�the�central�processing�and�analysis�needs�to�be�

made.��That�engagement�part�is�really�very�important�but�we�have�got�to�understand�the�public�

is�not�going�to�come�forward�necessarily�and�say,�“There�is�a�drug�dealer�operating�three�doors�

down”.��Sometimes�they�do.��What�they�will�detect�are�the�symptoms�of�these�characters�and�

their�activities.��You�have�still�got�to�work�out�what�the�causes�are�that�you�are�going�to�treat.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Finally,�where�we�started�the�morning�which�is�back�to�the�money.��On�

MOPC�you�will�know�Members�were�concerned�that�the�headline�number�appeared�to�go�up�

dramatically.��I�understand�that�a�chunk�of�that�is�MPS�things�now�being�accounted�for�this�way�

and�indeed�core�GLA�things.��However,�stripping�those�out,�the�basic�running�costs�of�MOPC�do�

not�appear�to�be�going�down�at�a�time�when�the�Assembly�is�taking�on�scrutiny.��There�are�not�

all�the�costs�associated�with�Members.��I�do�not�know�where�the�question�is�best�directed.��

Perhaps�Bob�since�he�has�been�with�us�all�morning.��Why�are�we�not�seeing�a�headline�reduction�

in�the�actual�running�costs�of�MOPC�and�why�are�you�not�taking�the�opportunity�of�re-

Page 47



 

establishing�to�do�things�differently�all�the�things�we�were�just�talking�about,�going�back�to�first�

principles?��At�a�time�when�we�are�squeezing�the�service�we�should�be�squeezing�the�MOPC�

should�we�not?��Why�are�we�not�seeing�a�reduction�in�your�running�costs?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��There�is�a�difference�between�

budget�and�what�we�are�actually�spending.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��The�two,�I�hope,�are�linked�because�you�set�a�budget�to�decide�what�to�

spend.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��They�are�linked.��At�the�same�

time�the�reality�is�that�within�year�you�can�make�savings�as�well.��It�is�not�just�about�spending�to�

your�budget�if�you�do�not�need�to.��We�had�a�£2�million�underspend�last�year�and�it�looks�like�

we�will�have�a�£1�million�underspend�this�year�so�that�is�£3�million�over�two�years.��That�is�

money�that�we�can�put�in�the�bank�to�spend�perhaps,�Val,�on�dampening�some�of�the�effects�of�

the�cut�in�community�safety�grant.��We�are�not�quite�sure�yet�what�we�are�going�to�do�with�it�

but�we�certainly�will�put�it�to�one�side.��We�are�also�not�filling�all�our�posts�at�the�moment�so�

while�there�has�been�a�reduction�overall�in�budget�of�three�headcount�we�have�a�vacancy�factor�

below�that�that�we�are�holding�at�the�moment�and�that�is�what�is�resulting�in�the�underspend.�

�

My�objective�-�you�might�find�this�is�an�odd�thing�to�say�-�is�not�necessarily�to�spend�less�

money�on�crime.��I�would�like�to�spend�the�same�or�more�if�I�can.��If�that�means�that�by�holding�

vacancies�and�pulling�back�on�some�of�the�central�costs�and�reducing�the�cost�of�administration�

of�CPEGs�or�whatever�it�might�be�that�gives�me�an�underspend�which�I�can�put�in�reserves�and�

then�spend�on�domestic�violence�projects�or�whatever�it�might�be�out�there,�then�that�is�what�I�

would�like�to�do.��What�I�do�not�want�to�signal�to�the�world�necessarily�is�that�somehow�we�can�

get�away�with�spending�less�because�there�is�always�money�to�spend.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��If�I�was�John�Biggs�I�would�say�that�you�have�therefore�presented�a�

bogus�budget�because�you�have�presented�a�budget�with�all�sorts�of�lines�of�spending�which�

you�are�not�intending�to�spend�at�all�you�are�now�telling�us�and,�in�fact,�you�are�shovelling�the�

money�in�the�bank�to�do�something�different�with�it�later�in�year.��This�is�not�accountability�or�

budgeting.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��No.��The�reason�that�we�

present�it�the�way�it�is�was�that�we�have�just�been�through�a�huge�reorganisation,�we�were�not�

quite�sure�where�we�were�going�to�sit�in�terms�of�redundancies�and�we�did�not�know�what�it�was�

going�to�look�like.��It�all�came�through�very�late�for�16�January�2012�and�was�a�very�fractious�

and�difficult�period�in�which�we�needed�to�keep�some�flexibility�in�our�budget�and�that�is�what�

we�tried�to�do.�

�

We�do�that�in�other�areas.��For�instance,�the�budget�for�the�last�three�years�the�MPS�has�had�a�

line�for�budget�resilience�which�is�there�to�provide�some�damping�for�the�budget�in�reality.��The�

truth�is�that�while�you�might�say�the�budget�is�bogus,�a�budget�is�wrong�the�day�after�it�is�

published.�

�

Page 48



 

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Not�grossly�wrong.��Not�deliberately�wrong.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��It�is�not�grossly�wrong.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Can�I�put�down�a�marker�that�this�Committee�and�its�successor�will,�I�am�

sure,�want�to�look�at�the�efficiency�and�the�effectiveness�of�MOPC�and�how�much�you�are�

spending�on�the�governance�versus�the�frontline.�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��Exactly.��That�is�the�point.��

We�would�like�to�see�less�on�the�former�and�more�on�the�latter.�

�

Mike�Tuffrey�(AM):��Absolutely.��Thank�you.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��With�that�we�have�come�to�the�end�of�our�formal�questions.��Can�

I�thank�our�guests�for�appearing.��Is�there�anything�that�you�want�to�add�that�you�think�we�have�

not�covered�today�or�that�you�would�like�to�contribute?�

�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�(Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime):��No.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�(Chair):��Wonderful.��Thank�you.��

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                    

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:
Summary
List
of
Actions

�

Report
to:
 Police
and
Crime
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat�



Date:
8
March
2012




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�






1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�for�noting�any�action�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Committee.�





2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
ongoing,
outstanding
and
completed
actions
arising
from


previous
meetings
of
the
Committee,
as
listed
below.




Meeting
of
26
January
2012



Minute

item


Subject
and
action
required
 Status
 Action
by




Completion

Date


5.� Complaints
about
the



Mayor's
Office
for
Policing
and


Crime
and
the
Deputy
Mayor
for



Policing
and
Crime
–�Committee�

agreed,�inter�alia,�to�delegate�to�the�
Monitoring�Officer�all�of�the�powers�

and�functions�conferred�on�it�by�the�

Elected�Local�Policing�Bodies�
(Complaints�and�Misconduct)�

Regulations,�with�the�exception�of��

the�functions�set�out�at�Part�4�of��
the�Regulations�which�may�not�be��

delegated;�and�guidance�on�the��

handling�of�complaints�which��
requires�the�Monitoring�Officer�to��

report,�on�a�regular�basis,�the��

summary�details�(such�as�can�be��
reported�in�public),�on�the�exercise��

of�any�and�all�of�these�functions�to��

the�Committee�for�monitoring��
purposes.�

�

There�are�no�details�to�
report�in�respect�of�the�
period�15�February�2012�to�
29�February�2012.�

Monitoring�
Officer�

Ongoing.�

Agenda Item 4

Page 51



        

6.� Transparency
Procedure
–��
Committee�agreed�Members�disclose�
to�the�Executive�Director�of�
Secretariat�or�his�nominated�
representative�(within�28�days�of�the�
contact)�details�of�any�significant�
contact�with�the�MPS�and/or�MOPC�
which�they�consider�to�be�relevant�
to�the�work�of�the�Committee;�and��
such�disclosures�be�reported�to�the�
next�meeting�of�the�Committee.


There�are�no�disclosures�to�
report�in�respect�of�the�
period�15�February�2012�to�
29�February�2012.�

Executive�
Director�of�
Secretariat�

Ongoing.�

10.� Tackling
Gang
Violence
in

London
–�Committee�noted�that�
guest,�Commander�Rodhouse�(MPS)�
undertook�to�provide�the�Committee�
with�details�of�any�initial�findings�
from�evaluations�so�far�carried�out�
by�the�MPS�regarding�the�success�of�
Operation�Connect.


In�progress�� MPS� Awaiting�
response.�




Page 52



        

Meeting
of
2
February
2012



Minute

item


Subject
and
action
required
 Status
 Action
by




Completion

Date


3.� Question
and
Answer
Session
with

the
Deputy
Mayor
for
Policing
and

the
Police
Commissioner
on
the

MOPC's
Monthly
Report
and
the

August
2011
Disturbances�-���
�
Committee�noted�that�the�Deputy�
Mayor�for�Policing�undertook�to:�

• Ensure�that�future�monthly�

MOPC�reports�provide�

information�to�the�Committee�

in�the�most�transparent�form�

possible�(ie�open�data�format);�

• Establish�a�forward�plan�to�

enable�the�Committee�to�see�

when�key�decisions�are�to�be�

made�by�the�MOPC�and�the�

MPS�

• Provide�up�to�date�statistics�on�

knife�crime�and�serious�youth�

violence�in�future�monthly�

reports;��

• Provide�details�of�how�the�

MPS�intend�to�recruit�1,138�

PCSOs�and�1,576�civilian�staff�

by�31�March;�and�

• Confirm�the�number�of�Gold�

meetings�which�had�taken�

place�during�the�summer�2011�

disturbances,�which�

organisations�attended�which�

meetings�and�which�

organisations�took�the�lead�in�

calling�the�meetings.�

�

In�progress��

�

�

�

�

�

�

Raw�data�spreadsheet�
has�been�provided�by�the�
MOPC�with�their�latest�
monthly�report��

�

Provided�in�latest�
monthly�report�

�

�

�

Provided�in�latest�
monthly�report�

MOPC/MPS�

�

Deadline�
given,�where�
applicable:��
prior�to�8�
March�
meeting.�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Awaiting�
response�

�

�

�

Awaiting�
response�

�

�

�

�

Page 53



        

� The�Committee�noted�that�the�
Metropolitan�Police�Commissioner�
agreed�to�provide:�

• Details�of�MPS�investigations�

during�the�previous�five�years�

which�had�been�funded�by�

external�sources�and�update�

the�Committee�following�

conclusion�of�the�current�

review�of�the�practice;��

• Clarification�in�relation�to�

deaths�in�custody�categories�

and,�in�particular,�which�

category�covered�deaths�after�

restraint�when�not�under�

arrest;��

• A�copy�of�the�forthcoming�

HMIC�internal�report�on�how�

crimes�were�recorded;��

• A�list�of�current�operations�and�

the�specific�status�of�

Operation�Target;�and�

• An�update�on�the�action�plan�

on�rape�and�sexual�assault.��

�
�

� � Awaiting�
response/s�




Page 54



        

Meeting
of
the
23
February
2012






Minute

item


Subject
and
action
required
 Status
 Action
by




Completion

Date


5.� The
Metropolitan
Police
Service

Policing
Plan
and
the
Police

Budget
2012/13



�
The�Committee�noted�that�the�Deputy�
Mayor�for�Policing�undertook�to 
provide�further�information�regarding�
clarification�of�the�riot�damage�costs�
which�the�Government�will�cover.�
�
The�Committee�noted�that�the�Deputy�
Commissioner�for�the�MPS�to�provide�
further�information�or�clarification�on:�
�

• The�number�of�staff�members�
that�make�up�the�MPS�
workforce.�

• Where�the�1,126�officers,�that�
comprise�the�gang�crime�unit,�
have�come�from.�

�

In�progress�(See�
Appendices
1�and
2)�

MOPC�

�

8�March�
2012�

�

�

�

�




�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


�
Appendix�1:�Letter�from�the�Chair�to�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime�
Appendix�2:�Letter�from�the�Chair�to�the�Deputy�Commissioner�of�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�

Agenda�papers�for�meetings�of�the�Police�&�Crime�Committee�on�26�January�2012,�2�February�2012�and�23�

February�2012�
�

Contact�Officer:� John�Johnson,�Committee�Officer�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4926�
E-mail:� john.johnson@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix�1�

 

�
Joanne�McCartney�AM,�Chair�of�the�Police�and�Crime�Committee� �

�
� � London�Assembly�

� � City�Hall�
� � � The�Queen’s�Walk�
� � London,�SE1�2AA�
� � �
�
�
�
� � �
� � 28�February�2012�

�
�

�

���

�
Dear�Kit�

�
Thank�you�for�your�attendance�at�the�Police�and�Crime�Committee�last�week.��It�was�a�useful�
discussion�and�I�am�grateful�for�your�positive�engagement�with�the�Committee’s�work.�
�
During�the�meeting�you�committed�to�write�with�further�information�regarding�clarification�of�the�
riot�damage�costs�which�the�Government�will�cover.��I�would�appreciate�a�response�before�the�next�
Police�and�Crime�Committee�on�8�March�2012�if�possible�please.���
�
I�have�also�written�to�the�Deputy�Commissioner�of�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�in�relation�to�two�
issues�he�offered�to�write�to�the�Committee�about�and�I�enclose�a�copy�of�that�letter�for�your�
information.���
�
Thank�you�in�advance�for�taking�the�time�to�prepare�a�response.�
�
�
Yours�sincerely��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM�

Chair�of�the�Police�and�Crime�Committee��
�
Enc.�Letter�to�the�Deputy�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�Metropolis�dated�28�February�2012�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�
Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Crime�
Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime�
10�Dean�Farrar�Street�
London�
SW1H�ONY�

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix�2�

 

�
Joanne�McCartney�AM,�Chair�of�the�Police�and�Crime�Committee� �

�
� � London�Assembly�

� � City�Hall�
� � � The�Queen’s�Walk�
� � London,�SE1�2AA�
� � �
�
�
�
� � �
� � 28�February�2012�

�
�

�

���

�
Dear�Deputy�Commissioner�

�
Thank�you�for�your�attendance�at�the�Police�and�Crime�Committee�last�week.��It�was�a�useful�
discussion�and�I�am�grateful�for�your�positive�engagement�with�the�Committee’s�work.�
�
There�were�two�issues�on�which�you�committed�during�the�meeting�to�write�with�further�information�
or�clarification�and�I�set�these�out�below.�
�

• The�number�of�staff�members�that�make�up�the�MPS�workforce;�and�

• Where�the�1,126�officers,�that�comprise�the�gang�crime�unit,�have�come�from.�
�
I�would�appreciate�a�response�before�the�next�Police�and�Crime�Committee�on�8�March�2012�if�
possible�please.��Thank�you�in�advance�for�taking�the�time�to�prepare�a�response.�
�
�
Yours�sincerely��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM�

Chair�of�the�Police�and�Crime�Committee��

Craig�Mackey�
Deputy�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�
Metropolis�
New�Scotland�Yard�
Broadway�
London�
SW1H�OBG�

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                    

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Question
and
Answer
Session
with
the

Deputy
Mayor
for
Policing
and
Crime
and
the

Deputy
Commissioner
for
the
Metropolitan

Police
�




Report
to:
 Police
and
Crime
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
8
March
2012


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public 






1.
 Summary




1.1 This�report�serves�as�a�background�paper�to�the�question�and�answer�session�with�the�Deputy�Mayor�

for�Policing�and�Crime�and�the�Deputy�Commissioner�for�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service.�

�

�
2.
 Recommendations�




2.1 That
the
Committee:




(a)
 Notes
as
background
to
the
question
and
answer
session
with
the
Deputy
Mayor



 for
Policing
and
Crime
and
the
Commissioner
for
the
Metropolitan
Police
Service

 the
monthly
report
from
the
Mayor’s
Office
for
Policing
and
Crime
attached




 at
Appendix
1;
and




(b)
 Notes
the
answers
given
by
the
Deputy
Mayor
for
Policing
and
Crime
and
the


Deputy
Commissioner
for
the
Metropolitan
Police
Service
to
the
questions
asked


by
Members.

�

3.
 Background




3.1 The�Committee�has�agreed�that�it�will�meet�twice�monthly�and�that�one�of�its�monthly�meetings�will�

be�used�principally�to�hold�a�question�and�answer�session�with�the�statutory�Deputy�Mayor�for�

Policing�and�Crime.��The�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�Metropolis�will�also�be�invited�to�attend.��
The�Deputy�Commissioner�will�represent�the�Commissioner�at�this�meeting.����

�

3.2 The�MOPC�produces�a�monthly�report�providing�an�update�on�the�activities�and�decisions�of�the�
MOPC�and�performance�against�its�objectives�and�budget.��This�will�inform�the�question�and�answer�

session.�This�month’s�report�is�attached�at�Appendix�1�to�this�report.���

Agenda Item 5

Page 61



        

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration

�

Stop�and�search�

4.1� The�Committee�has�also�agreed�that�the�question�and�answer�session�on�the�MOPC�report�should�

include�questions�on�a�specific�issue�of�topical�interest.��For�this�meeting�it�is�proposed�that�the�

topic�should�be�stop�and�search.    
�

4.2� In�his�first�meeting�with�the�MPA�following�his�appointment,�the�MPS�Commissioner,�Bernard�

Hogan-Howe,�indicated�he�wanted�to�introduce�more�targeted,�as�opposed�to�generic,�stop�and�
search.��He�explained�his�thinking�further�at�a�subsequent�meeting�of�the�MPA�in�January�2012�

highlighting�three�principles:�better�targeting;�improved�interactions�with�the�public;�and�potentially�

a�reduced�number�of�section�60�searches.���
�

4.3� The�MPS�website�explains�the�Commissioner’s�vision�for�stop�and�search:�“To�achieve�the�highest�

level�of�trust�and�confidence�in�the�police’s�use�of�stop�and�search�as�a�tactic�for�keeping�our�streets�
safe.�As�a�consequence,�the�use�of�Stop�and�Search�in�London�will�become�significantly�more�

effective,�have�better�outcomes,�and�be�used�primarily�to�protect�our�communities�from�violent�

crime.�The�new�approach�will�see�a�renewed�focus�on�reducing�violence�and�for�the�powers�to�be�
used�in�a�more�intelligence-led�and�targeted�way,�leading�to�more�arrests�and�more�weapons�

seized”.���

�
4.4� It�is�proposed�that�the�question�and�answer�session�with�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Policing�and�Deputy�

Commissioner�includes�time�set�aside�to�raise�questions�about�the�Commissioner’s�proposed�new�

approach�to�stop�and�search.�
�
��
5.
 Legal
Implications



5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.






6.
 Financial
Implications

�
6.1� There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�
�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

Appendix
1
-
Report�of�the�MOPC.

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Tim�Jarvis�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4390�

E-mail:� tim.jarvis@london.gov.uk�
�

Page 62



�
�
�
�

MONTHLY�REPORT�
�

POLICE�AND�CRIME�COMMITTEE�-�8�MARCH�2012�
�

�
1�� REPORT�SUMMARY�
�
1.1� This� report� to� the� Police� and� Crime� Committee� (PCC)� covers� the� period� from� 23rd�

January�to�24�February�2012.�The�performance�data�contained�in�the�report�covers�the�
period�up�to�the�end�of�January�2012.�Financial�data�is�only�available�up�to�the�end�of�
December�2011.��

�
1.2� Revenue� and� capital� budget� monitoring� figures� are� reported� to� December� 2011.�

Performance� figures� are� reported� in� rolling� 12� month� period� with� the� exception� of�
performance�against� target� figures�which�are� reported� for� the�period� financial� year� to�
date�(FYTD)�to�January�2012�(January�2012).�

�
Long-term�Crime�Volume�

Crime Type 
45 months - Previous 
(Aug 04 - Apr 08) 

45 months – Post 
(May 08 – Jan 12) 

% 
change 

Total Notifiable Offences 3486028 3110245 -10.8% 

Violence against the Person  698657 630783 -9.7% 

Homicide Offences 645 478 -25.9% 

Rape Offences  8296 10920 31.6% 

Other Serious Sexual Offences 17364 17189 -1.0% 

Robbery (Total) 157344 131634 -16.3% 

Robbery (Personal) 146110 120046 -17.8% 

Burglary (residential)  231984 229218 -1.2% 

Burglary (non-residential) 138857 123220 -11.3% 

Motor Vehicle Crime  485772 379998 -21.8% 

Domestic Offences 211823 187996 -11.2% 

Homophobic Offences 4245 4743 11.7% 

Racist and Religious Hate Offences 39954 34406 -13.9% 

Bus Related Offences 136207 91545 -32.79% 

NB:�Gun� crime�data� cannot�be�provided�pre�April� 2008�and�knife� crime�data� cannot�be� provided� pre�April� 2007�due� to� the�

changes� to� the�crime�definition�within�APACS.�This� required� the� inclusion�of� intimated�offences�-�where�a�victim� is�convinced�

that�an�offender�is�in�possession�of�a�weapon�even�if�it�is�not�seen.��

Page 63



1.3� CRIME�

�

Summary�of�current�position�

Overall�recorded�crime�in�London�has�decreased�by�1.4%�(11677�less�crimes).��Overall�violence�

crime� has� also� reduced� over� the� last� 12�months� with� the� exception� of� knife� crime� and� rape�

which�still�remain�a�concern.��Overall�property�crime�has�also�increased.��

�
1.3.1� Overall�Crime�TNO�
�
Recorded� crime� in� London� has�
seen�a�steady�decline�over�the�last�
five� years.� � Although� the� number�
of� TNO� has� increased� in� January�
2012� compared� to� December�
2011(mainly� due� to� seasonal�
factors),� these� are� not� to� levels�
experienced�in�2007/08.���
�

�

1.3.2� Violence�
�
Violence�With� Injury� has� reduced� over� the� last� 12�months� (-7.1%)� as� has� youth� violence� (-
8.0%).��
�
Violence� against� the� Person�
(VAP)� has� shown� a� downward�
trend� over� the� last� two� years,�
with� the� largest� reduction� over�
the� last� 12� months� (-8.4%,� -
14172�offences).��
�

�

�

�

�

Homicide� offences� have�
consistently� fallen� over� the� last�
decade.�Overall�offences�have�still�
reduced� by� over� a� quarter� as�
compared�to� levels� five�years�ago.��
The� number� of� homicides� in�
January� 2012� is� the� lowest� it� has�
been�in�the�last�5�years.�

Page 64



The� number� of� sexual�
offences� reported� to� the�
police� has� recorded� an� upward�
trend� since� 2007� and� levels�
have� been� at� their� highest� in�
the�past�few�years�although�the�
trend� seems� to� indicate� that�
there� is� a� slight� decline� in� the�
number�of�offences.��

�

�

�

�

The� number� of� knife� crime�

offences� has� increased� by�

9.3%�over�the� last�12�months.�

The� increase� in� knife� crime� is�

driven� by� an� increase� in�

personal� robbery.� � Crimes�

where� a� knife/sharp� object�

was�used�to�injure�have�also�

increased� over� the� last� 12�

months�(+0.8%)��

�

�

There�have�been�517�(-17.6%)�fewer�gun�crimes�this�year�in�the�last�12�months:�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 65



�
Serious� youth�
violence� increased� by�
4.9%� (+333� victims)� in�
the� last� 12� months.��
However,� the� trend� in�
the� last� few� months�
showed� that� there� is� a�
slight�decrease.�

�

�

�

�

1.3.3� Property�crime�

Residential� burglary� has�

increased� by� 5.5%� (+3287�

offences)� over� the� last� 12�

months.� � Residential� burglary�

offences�have�fluctuated�over�

the� last� five� years� but� has�

shown� an� increase� in� the� last�

year.�

�

�

�

�

Robbery� offences�

increased� by� 9.8%� (+3494�

offences)� in� the� last� 12�

months� compared� to� the�

previous� period.� Trend�

analysis� shows� that�

robbery� levels� in� the� last�

few� months� are� levelling�

with�no�steady�increases.�

�

�

�

Page 66



Theft� and� handling� offences� have�

remained�relatively�stable�over�the�last�

five� years,� although� there� has� been� a�

small� increase�over� the� last� two�years.��

In� the� last� 12� months� theft� and�

handling� offences� increased� by� 2.7%�

(+8635�offences).�

�

�
1.3.4� HATE�CRIME�
�
Domestic� violence� offences� are�
decreasing.��A�5%�reduction�(-2470�offences)�
have� been� recorded� on� domestic� violence� in�
the� last� rolling� 12� months� compared� to� the�
same�period�the�previous�year.���
�
�
�
�

�
Homophobic� offences� have� also� decreased�
by�8.6%�(-114�offences)�in�the�same�period.���
�
�
�

There�were�1127�fewer�racist�and�religious�
offences� recorded� in� the� same� period� (-
12.36%).���
�
�
�

�
Faith� hate� crimes� have� also� decreased� by�
7.2%� (-45� offences)� in� the� last� rolling� 12�
months�compared�to�the�same�period�last�year.���
�
�
�

Page 67



There� was� a� slight� decrease� of� 0.8%� in�
disability�crimes�recorded�(1�less�crime)�
in� calendar� year� 2011� compared� to� the�
previous�calendar�year.�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
1.3.5� STOP�AND�SEARCH�

�
Searches�in�the�last�12�months�have�been�fairly�stable:�

�
2012

Search Reason Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

PACE 50505 45947 34018 39779 43508 45693 37114 33567 42404 40224 33748 44769

s44 1 1 0 3 1 3 0 2 0 1 1 4

s60 4517 3867 2285 3682 3244 3009 15705 2034 3832 2583 875 1122

s43 136 132 89 111 88 53 42 67 73 75 47 63

s47 0 1 0 3 1 4 6 1 2 9 1 0

Stop and Account 66754 63007 48219 51969 56805 53678 43774 44624 56620 48044 35316 45276

Grand Total 121913 112955 84611 95547 103647 102440 96641 80295 102931 90936 69988 91234

2011

�

Notes� � � � � � � � � �
Data�extracted�from�the�STOPs�RT�on�17/02/12.�The�Figures�in�this�report�were�correct�on�12th�January�2012,�but�will�
increase�as�more�stops�are�input�to�the�system.� � � � � � �
� � � � �
'PACE�and�Other'�stop�and�search�is�defined�as�including�-�all�Section�1�PACE�searches�(codes�A,�D,�F,�G,�L),�Section�23�drugs�
(code�B),�Section�47�firearms�(code�C),�Section�139�blades�(code�E),�Section�163�RTA�(code�M)�and�searches�following�arrests�
for�other�offences.� � � � � � � � � � �
� �
'Section�60'�refers�to�Section�60�Criminal�Justice�and�Public�Order�Act.� � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
s43�and�s44'�refers�to�Terrorism�related�searches.�Please�note�that�MPS�use�of�Section�44�Search�Powers�ceased�on�8th�July�
2010,�therefore�searches�coded�as�Section�44�are�data�entry�errors� �
� � � � � � � � � �
Searches�coded�to�Section�47�Terrorism�Act�are�data�entry�errors,�as�no�MPS�authorisation�of�these�powers�has�yet�been�made.
� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �
Searches�of�unattended�vehicles�and�vessels�are�excluded.� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
All�ethnicity�is�based�on�grouped�self�defined�ethnicity�(SDE).'White'�includes�White�British,�Irish�and�other�White�background.�
'Black'�includes�Black�Caribbean,�African�and�other�Black�background,�together�with�mixed�White�and�Caribbean�and�White�and�
African�backgrounds.� 'Asian'� includes� Indian,�Pakistani,�Bangladeshi�and�other�Asian�background,� together�with�mixed�White�
and�Asian�backgrounds.�'Other'�includes�Chinese,�Other�Ethnic�and�Other�Mixed�backgrounds.�
�

Long� term� trend� shows� that� the� number� of� stop� and� searches� has� decreased� in� the� last� few�

months�although�not�to�levels�seen�in�2007.��Arrest�rate�dipped�in�2009�and�2010�but�has�been�

increasing�during�2011�and�continues�to�increase.� � �

Page 68



�

�
1.4� CONFIDENCE�AND�SATISFACTION��

(Quarterly�update,�next�due�in�March�2012)�
�

1.4.1� Data� for� the� rolling� year� to�December2011� show� that� the� percentage� of� people�who�
think�police�in�their�area�are�doing�a�good�job�is�slightly�up�on�last�year’s�figure�(66%�
vs.�65%�in�the�rolling�year�to�December2010).�The�2011/12�target�is�67%.�

�
1.4.2 Data� for� the� rolling� year� to� December� 2011� show� that� the� percentage� of� victims�

satisfied� with� the� overall� service� provided� by� the� police� is� 74%,� slightly� down� on�
performance� in� the�previous� year� (77%)�and�4�percentage�points�below� the�2011/12�
target�of�78%.�The�gap�between�satisfaction�of�white�and�BME�victims�is�still�a�concern:�
77%�white�users�are�satisfied�compared�to�72%�BME�users.�

�
1.5� FINANCE�
�
1.5.1� As� at� the� end� of� period� 9,� the� revenue� budget� is� forecast� to� underspend� by� £9.3m�

(0.3%� of� budget)� before� any� account� is� taken� of� the� costs� of�Operations� Kirkin� and�
Withern.�The�Capital�Programme�as�at�the�end�of�the�same�period�shows�year�to�date�
expenditure� of� £117.6m.� This� represents� 62.9%� of� the� annual� programme� budget� of�
£187m.�

�
�
2��� TOPICAL�ISSUES�RELATING�TO�THE�WORK�OF�THE�MOPC�
�
2.1� LONDON�CRIME�REDUCTION�BOARD�(LCRB)�
�
2.1.1� The� Delivery� Management� Group,� the� group� that� supports� the� LCRB� had� a� very�

productive�meeting�on�20th�February�2012.�The�MPS�provided�an�update�on�the�work�of�
the� new� Trident� and� Gangs� Command� and� summarised� activity� to� date.� The� Group�
discussed�whether�there�would�be�benefits�to�developing�a�pan-London�Gangs�Strategy�
and�it�was�agreed�that�a�paper�seeking�endorsement�for�this�would�be�presented�to�the�
LCRB�meeting,�chaired�by�the�Mayor�in�March.��

�

Page 69



2.1.2� The�DMG�also�considered�proposals�for�improving�refuge�provision�across�London.�This�
will� enable�a�better�understanding�of� the�demand�and�supply�of� refuge�places�and� in�
turn�will�inform�efficient�commissioning�in�the�future.�

�
2.1.3� The�DMG�also�considered�a�draft�integrated�offender�management�strategy,�which�will�

be�revisited�at�a�future�meeting.��
�
2.2� POLICING�LONDON�BUSINESS�PLAN�
�
2.2.1� A� final� draft� of� the� Policing� London� Business� Plan� is� due� to� be� signed� of� by� MPS�

Management�Board�on�29th�February�before�being�agreed�by�the�MOPC.��The�plan�and�
the�priorities� therein�are�underpinned�by�a�comprehensive�strategic�assessment�of� the�
challenges�facing�London,�as�well�as�an�analysis�of�the�consultation�carried�out�by�the�
then�MPA� (‘Have�Your� Say’)� and� the�MPS� (Public�Attitude�Survey)�during�2011.�The�
plan� also� reflects� the� partnership� landscape� within� which� policing� is� delivered.� This�
includes�shared�priorities�with�criminal�justice�partners�to�bring�offenders�to�justice�and�
reduce� reoffending;� delivering� local� crime� and� disorder� reduction� through� community�
safety�partnerships�at�a�local�level;�and,�working�with�other�police�services.�

�
2.2.2� Finally,�the�plan�reflects�the�emerging�MOPC�priorities�including�strengthening�the�MPS�

response�to�serious�youth�violence,�including�knife�crime,�ensuring�London�has�enough�
front�line�police�officers�on�the�streets;�targeting�robbery,�burglary�and�drug�dealing�in�
every�borough�and�getting�tough�on�gangs�and�re-offending�rates.��

�
2.3� OLYMPICS�
�
2.3.1� The�MOPC�and�MPS�were�involved�in�an�Olympics�testing�exercise�on�22/23�February.�

The� exercise�was� based� around� a� terrorist� incident.� The� focus� of� the� exercise�was� to�
gauge�readiness�for�a�critical�incident�during�Games�time.�The�Mayor�and�Deputy�Mayor�
have�been�involved�in�the�exercise�and�will�be�discussing�the�learning�coming�out�of�the�
exercise�with�partners�in�due�course.�

�
2.4� COMMUNITY�ENGAGEMENT�
�
2.4.1� The� first�of� the�MOPC�engagement� road� shows�have�been�held�at�Croydon� (4/2/12)�

and�Hounslow� (18/2/12)�and�were� lead�by� the�Deputy�Mayor� for�Policing�and�Crime�
(DMPC).� � The� attendees� had� varying� degrees� of� prior� involvement�with� policing,� e.g.�
some�were�safer�neighbourhoods�panel�representatives,�some�were�engaging�in�policing�
for�the�first�time�and�others�had�a�wider�political� interest� in�policing�governance.� �For�
each� of� the� sessions� there� were� three� speakers� and� the� focus� was� on� the� new�
governance� arrangements� and� how� this� would� impact� positively� on� policing,� the� key�
strategies�for�the�MPS,�and�the�role�of�victim�support�and�working�with�victims�of�crime.���

�
2.4.2� The� events� highlighted� a� broad� range� of� views� but� two� key� issues� arising� from� the�

meetings� were:� first,� the� need� to� speed� up� the� recruitment� of� PCSOs� to� backfill�
vacancies�being�created�as�PCSOs�successfully�transfer�into�the�recruitment��process�for�
regular�police�officers;�and�secondly,�the�need�to�ensure�consistency�in�the�presentation�
of�crime�data.��

�
�
�
�

Page 70



2.5� PROFESSIONAL�SYMPOSIUM�–�20�FEBRUARY�2012�
�
2.5.1� This� event� was� held� at� City� Hall� and� was� attended� by� 60� professionals� in� the� field,�

including� local� councillors� and� community� safety� managers,� voluntary� sector� partners�
and�borough�police�officers.��The�purpose�of�the�event�was�to�introduce�partners�to�the�
new�governance�landscape�and�to�get�some�feedback�from�them�as�to�how�they�would�
like�to�work�with�the�MOPC�in�future.��There�were�a�number�of�speakers�including�Kit�
Malthouse� (DMPC),�Bernard�Hogan�Howe� (Metropolitan�Police�Commissioner),�Mayor�
Jules� Pipe� (representing� London� Councils)� and� Joanne� McCartney� (PCC� Chair).� The�
speakers�focussed�on�the�new�governance�arrangements,�key�MPS�strategies,�working�
in� partnership� from� the� Local� to� the� London-wide� level� and� working� effectively� with�
victims�of�crimes.�

�
2.5.2� Two� key� points� arising� from� that�meeting� were� that� partners� would� welcome� further�

events�of�this�nature�to�learn�more�about,�and�engage�with,�the�London-wide�structures�
like� MOPC� and� London� Councils� and� secondly,� that� partners� would� also� welcome�
opportunities� to� have� greater� access� to� senior� police� officers� through� a� facilitated�
network�event.�

�
2.6� HATE�CRIME�
�
2.6.1� The� MOPC� continues� to� work� with� the� MPS� to� ensure� effective� oversight� of� MPS�

strategy� and� policy� to� address� hate� crime.� This� includes� involvement� in� the� MPS�
performance�management� process� and� the� publication� of� related� data� as� part� of� the�
MOPC�data�dashboard.��A�recent�review�of�the�data�and�horizon�scanning�work�indicate�
that�the�priorities�for�2012�are�likely�to�include�a�focus�on�increasing�reporting�across�all�
hate�crimes�and�particularly�disability�hate�crime.��

�
2.6.2� Hate�crime�requires�a�partnership�response�and�the�MOPC�will�be�reviewing�its�partner�

engagement� mechanisms� to� ensure� they� are� effective� and� promote� the� early�
identification�of�emerging�concerns,�effective�problem�solving�and�oversight.�

�
2.7� REVIEW�OF�STEPHEN�LAWRENCE�RECOMMENDATIONS�
�
2.7.1� The�MOPC�has�commissioned�a�review�of�the�progress�made�by�the�MPS�against�the�39�

police� specific� recommendations� of� the� MacPherson� Inquiry.� Whilst� the� proposed�
workplan� is� being� finalised� it� is� anticipated� that� the� focus� of� the� work� will� be� on�
progress�made,�the�application�of� learning�going�forward�and�potential�gaps�in�service�
provision.�

�
2.8� STOP�AND�SEARCH�
�
2.8.1� The�MOPC�will�continue�to�be� involved� in�the�new�approach�to�Stop�and�Search.�The�

MOPC� is�working�with� the�MPS� to�develop�a� comprehensive�performance�monitoring�
framework.� This�will� include� reviewing� stop� and� search�data� (including� diversity� data)�
and�complaints�and� incivilities.�This� information�will�be�assessed�alongside�community�
views�and�other�performance�data�such�as�knife�crime�and�SYV�with�a�view�to�assessing�
the�overall�effectiveness�of�the�revised�approach.�The�MOPC�will�also�be�involved�in�the�
community�engagement�strategy�on�stop�and�search�and�reviewing�policies.�

�
�
�

Page 71



�
2.9.� GANGS�
�
2.9.1� The�MOPC�has�been�working�closely�with� the�MPS�to�create� their�new�Trident�Gangs�

Command.�The�new�MPS�Gangs�Command,�which�builds�upon� the� success�of�Trident�

and�Operation�CONNECT,�is�developing�a�more�focussed�approach�which�identifies�the�

most�harmful�gang�members�in�all�London�boroughs,�and�co-ordinates�more�robust�and�

targeted�enforcement�as�seen�by�recent�raids�which�have�led�to�over�500�arrests�under�

Operation�Valiant.�One�of�the�key�pieces�of�work�the�team�is�involved�in�is�devising�and�

establishing�a�suitable�performance�framework� relating�to�MPS�and� local�partnerships’�

activity� to� tackle�gangs.�The�MOPC�will�continue�to�scrutinise� the� impact�of� the�MPS�

Gangs�Command�on�gang�and�serious�youth�violence.�

�
2.9.2� The�MOPC� is� one� of� the� key� partners� on� the� inter-departmental� government� Ending�

Gang�and�Youth�Violence�Programme�Board,�and�will�continue�to�work�closely�with�their�
team�throughout�its�12/13�term.�The�team�continues�to�engage�with�the�Home�Office�
to� ensure� alignment� between� the�Mayor’s� allocation� of� £2.1� million� of� Communities�
Against�Guns�Gangs�and�Knives�(CAGGK)�funding�and�other�central�and�local�activity�to�
tackle� gangs� in� London.� Throughout� March� and� April,� the� MOPC� will� be� bringing�
together�strategic�partners�to�develop�work�streams�for�delivery�in�2012/13,�funded�by�
the�Communities�against�Guns,�Gangs�and�Knives�work�stream,�which�will�add�value�to�
existing�partnership�activity�to�tackle�gangs�in�London.��

�
2.10�� VIOLENCE�AGAINST�WOMEN�AND�GIRLS�(VAWG)�
�
2.10.1� The�team�has�held�a�targeted�session�to�bring�together�anti-trafficking�agencies�such�as�

Stop� the�Traffik� and�Anti-Slavery� International,� as�well� as� senior� figures� in� the�hotels�
industry� such� as� the� International� Business� Leaders� Forum,� to� ensure� that� materials�
which� raise� awareness�of� trafficking� and�exploitation� are�distributed� throughout�hotel�
chains,� and� smaller�hotels�as�extensively�as�possible.�The�MOPC�will�be�continuing� to�
work�closely�with�anti-trafficking�agencies,�local�authorities�and�criminal�justice�partners�
by�holding�a�Human�Trafficking�and�London�2012�Network�event.��

�
2.10.2� The� team�has� recently�produced� information�on� trafficking�and�other� forms�of�VAWG�

which�LOCOG�has�agreed�to�include�in�athletes’�packs,�while�strategic�engagement�with�
boys�and�young�men�on�VAWG�issues�will�be�the�focus�of�a�roundtable�event�in�March.�
In� partnership� with� Tender,� the� MOPC� will� also� be� delivering� a� gendered� healthy�
relationships�programme�in�and�out�of�school�settings�such�as�youth�clubs.��

�
2.10.3� A�study�has�recently�been�commissioned�by�the�MOPC�to�explore�the�changing�nature�

of� the� sex� industry� in� London,� indicators� of� trafficking� and� exploitation,� routes� into�
prostitution�and�women’s�needs�in�order�to�inform�an�effective�strategic�response.�

�
2.10.4� In� line� with� new� developments� around� inter-agency� work� in� London,� the� team� is�

working� to� integrate� a� response� to� harmful� practices� (such� as� Female� Genital�
Mutilation)�into�the�Multi-agency�Safeguarding�Hubs.�

�
2.11� RAPE��
�
2.11.1� Reported�rape�has�been�increasing�since�2008�and�continues�to�do�so.�Research�so�far�

has�failed�to�identify�why�this�is�the�case.�When�first�highlighted�by�the�then�MPA�the�

Page 72



MPS�felt� that�the� increase� in� reported� rape�was�driven�by�a�greater�victim�confidence�
but� it� is� now� felt� unlikely� to� account� for� the� continued� increase.� The� MOPC� is�
considering� a�draft� action�plan� that,�working�with�partners� and� the�MPS,�will� help� to�
address�the�increase�in�reported�offences�and�bring�more�offenders�to�justice.��

�
2.11.2� The� team� has� also� been� supporting� improvements� in� the�MPS� response� to� rape� and�

sexual� violence� via� their� Rape� Performance� meetings� aimed� to� increase� Sanction�
Detections�for�rape�and�ensure�victims�continue�to�be�supported�when�they�report.�The�
MOPC� will� also� be� convening� a� group� of� representatives� from� the� judiciary,� Bar�
Standards� Board,� Victim� Support,� MPS,� CPS,� Rape� Crisis� and� others� to� improve� the�
experience�of�rape�victims�as�they�progress�through�the�criminal�justice�system.��
�

2.12� CRIMINAL�JUSTICE�AND�OFFENDER�MANAGEMENT�
�
2.12.1� The�Home�Office�has�transferred�both�the�Drug�Interventions�Programme�(DIP)�funding�

and�YOT�Prevention�funding�over�to�the�MOPC.��This�is�part�of�the�wider�PCC�reforms,�
with�London�starting�early�(2012/13).��

�
2.12.2� SOBRIETY�

The�MOPC� is� keen� to� tackle� the� significant� problem� of� alcohol� related� violence.� The�
MOPC� is� pressing� to� undertake� a� pilot� scheme� for� those� convicted� of� alcohol� related�
offences� stemming� from� the� night� time� economy� and� to� those� convicted� of� alcohol�
related�domestic�violence�offences.�There�are�on-going�discussions�on�these�proposals.�

�
�

Page 73



�

3.� OVERVIEW�OF�MOPC�AND�MPS�PERFORMANCE�
�
3.1� HEADLINE�CRIME�–�MONTHLY�DATA�
�

�Rolling�12�months�to�January���

Previous�

Rolling�12��

months�

Current�Rolling�

12��months�

Change�in�

number�of�

offences�

Percentage�

change�

Violence�

Most�serious�violence� 9,182� 8,467� -715� -7.8%�

Gun�crime� 2,938� 2,421� -517� -17.6%�

Knife�crime�� 13,157� 14,381� 1,224� +9.3%�

Knife�Used�to�Injure� 4,066� 4,099� 33� +0.8%�

Gun�discharged� 665� 524� -141� -21.2%�

Youth�violence� 19,329� 17,778� -1,551� -8.0%�

Serious�Youth�Violence� 6,818� 7,151� 333� +4.9%�

Rape�offences� 3,238� 3,410� 172� +5.3%�

All�other�serious�sexual�offences� 4,674� 4,704� 30� +0.6%�

Child�Abuse�rape�offences1� 394� 392� -2� -0.5%�

Homicide� 131� 107� -24� -18.2%�

Teenage�Homicide� 22� 11� -11� -50.0%�

Domestic�Violence� 48,935� 46,465� -2470� -5.0%�

Theft�

Residential�burglary�
60,186� 63,473�

3287� 5.46%�

Personal�Robbery��
32492� 36341�

3849� 11.8%�

Theft�from�a�person� 34,700� 40,935� 6235� 17.97%�

Theft�of�or�from�a�vehicle� 100,703� 99,450� -1253� -1.24%�

Business�crime�

Business�crime� 76,609� 73,788� -2821� -3.68%�

Hate�crime�

Homophobic�offences� 1,326� 1,212� -114� -8.60%�

Racist�and�Religious�Hate�Crime� 9,117� 7,990� -1127� -12.36%�

Roads� �� �� �� ��

Killed�or�Seriously�Injured�(KSI)2� 242� 212� -30� -12%�

�

                                                           
1
 Data is for SCD5 investigated rape offences only. 

2
 Data runs to October 2011 only.  These show monthly average figures only. 

Page 74



�

3.2� WORKFORCE�STRENGTH3�

3.2.1� A� targeted� recruitment� campaign� has� been� developed� to� meet� the� forecast� PCSO�

vacancies�during� 2012/13� supporting� both� Safer�Neighbourhood� and� Safer� Transport�

PCSO� roles.� The� recruitment� campaign� is� being� launched� imminently,� and� we� are�

confident�that�this�will�yield�a�new�generation�of�high�quality�PCSOs�to�support�Safer�

Neighbourhood�policing.��

3.2.2� During� this� transition,� TP� is� deploying� all� non-core� PCSOs� into� Safer�Neighbourhood�
and� Safer� Transport� Teams� as� a� priority� and� Borough� Commanders� will� balance�
resources�on�a�day�to�day�basis�to�meet�the�needs�of�local�operational�priorities.�

�

                                                           
3�Notes�

1. These�figures�exclude�trainees,�who�are�not�yet�warranted.�If�included,�trainees�plus�warranted�officers�in�
May�2008�were�31,416.��There�were�757�trainees� in�2008.�There�are�no�trainees� forecast� for�31�March�
2012.�

2. Strength�-�this�refers�to�the�number�of�people�employed�by�the�MPS�at�a�particular�point�in�time�and�is�
shown�in�the�above�table�by�location.�

3. Numbers� represent� Full� Time� Equivalent� strength,� showing� the� percentage� of� full� time� hours� staff� are�
available�to�work�(based�on�a�working�week).�

4. Metropolitan�Special�Constables�(MSC)�are�counted�by�a�total�number�headcount�and�not�included�in�the�
MPS�Police�officer�total.��

5. Territorial� Policing� (TP)� non� borough� figures� include� central� MPS� units/commands� that� work� on� TP�
issues.�This�includes�training,�performance�resources�and�call�handling.��

6. Royal�Parks�OCU�and�STC�–�Safer�Transport�Command�are�presented�separately�for�all�staff�and�officers.�
These�had�previously�been�included�in�TP�Non-Borough�figures.��

7. HRSU�(secondments)�relate�to�officers�and�staff�seconded�outside�the�MPS.��
8. Data�for�Police�Staff�in�November�2007�include�Traffic�wardens.�

 

 

Page 75



Jan-08 Jan-12 Jan-08 Jan-12 Jan-08 Jan-12 Jan-08 Jan-12

Barking & Dagenham 420.6 430.5 81.6 83.2 89.4 89.8 44 121

Barnet 537 542.6 125.8 86 143.1 146.2 115 162

Bexley 361.3 369 94.4 79.3 103.6 106.3 78 91

Brent 688.8 648.2 134 102.1 117 101.4 34 156

Bromley 484.3 480.6 88.4 76.2 136.5 149.2 69 115

Camden 810.5 782 187.8 129.3 98.8 116.5 113 251

Croydon 710 674.4 159 125.2 144.7 133 58 225

Ealing 679.6 694.8 128.5 106.4 159.5 126.8 65 188

Enfield 547.7 548.8 118.7 75.9 125.5 140.7 58 163

Greenwich 623.6 619.5 108.9 78.9 100.6 98.7 69 228

Hackney 741.6 707.3 146.1 107.5 81.2 93.3 36 138

Hammersmith & Fulham 559 578.4 112.3 72.4 77.9 83.9 67 152

Haringey 683.7 675.6 147.9 83.5 84.9 88.5 41 151

Harrow 360.2 356.4 87.9 58.1 91.1 95.6 67 143

Havering 381.2 372.3 74.9 38 101.9 103.3 77 121

Hillingdon 507 506.5 90.1 50.2 93 97.2 56 108

Hounslow 518.4 479.7 104.7 67.9 80.8 85 32 126

Islington 658.9 660.9 79.1 50.1 95 94.2 69 180

Kensington & Chelsea 565.6 535.8 125.4 88.7 140.3 145.7 97 158

Kingston upon Thames 287.8 293.9 67.5 48.5 82.1 69.8 56 77

Lambeth 944.1 872.9 203.1 158.7 139 127.7 55 136

Lewisham 611 615.6 142.4 105.7 97.1 106.1 43 138

Merton 371.6 364 64.9 41.8 92.3 78 30 98

Newham 740.6 762.9 142.3 103.9 115.6 106.6 62 194

Redbridge 465.2 463.2 93.4 67 91 106.8 75 137

Richmond upon Thames 310.5 301 77.7 48.4 81 84.1 40 122

Southwark 848.6 835.7 179.6 147.9 92 114.8 45 152

Sutton 323.9 331.8 61.7 63.3 78.3 70.8 27 115

Tower Hamlets 748.4 718.8 147 108.2 89.3 95.2 47 156

Waltham Forest 531.2 538 109.5 94.1 90.8 100.4 29 110

Wandsworth 584.4 593.4 125.2 76.2 84.3 97.7 92 125

Westminster 1,527.00 1,427.60 332.4 251 342.8 201.4 241 400

TP Non Boroughs 635.8 1,371.20 250 2,145.50 0 0 98 439

Borough Total 19,769.00 20,153.30 4,191.80 5,019.30 3,540.20 3,454.80 2,185.00 5,376.00

Central Operations 4,829.40 2,781.60 3,323.60 870.6 0 0 17 35

Specialist Operations 1,886.00 3,616.80 418.8 1,176.30 77.6 37.1 17 46

Specialist Crime 2,993.50 3,844.80 2,604.30 2,843.60 0 0 13 28

Human Resources 417.5 11.5 1,617.30 59 0 0 0 0

Deputy Commissioner's Portfolio 0 681.2 0 666 0 0 0 0

DoI 85.8 28 717.3 693.2 0 0 0 0

Resources 0 11 490.9 1,901.00 2 3 0 0

CenServ/Stand.Intel 434.2 0 615.6 0 0 0 0 0

Royal Parks 0 0 0 0 39 0 25 27

STC - Safer Transport Command 0 0 0 0 460.2 274.6 0 25

TOTAL 30,415.40 31,128.10 13,979.50 13,229.00 4,119.00 3,769.40 2,257.00 5,537.00

Recruits 639 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

Secondments 202.8 124.8 41 31.9 0 0 0 0

(B)OCU
Officers Staff PCSO MSC

�The� table� below� provides�end� of� the� month� totals� for� police� officer,� staff� and� PCSO�
numbers�by�location�within�the�MPS.�Data�is�for�end�of�January�2012:�

Page 76



�
The�table�below�provides�a�Four�Year�Workforce�Comparison:�
�

Specials PCSOs Staff

Jan-08 Jan-12 Jan-08 Jan-12 Jan-08 Jan-12 Jan-08 Jan-12

30,415 31128 2257 5537 4119 3769 13980 13229

 Growth 713 Growth 3280 Reduction -350 Reduction -751

Fully Warranted Officers

Excluding Secondees & Trainees

�
�
Trained�officers�ready�for�swearing�in�by�31st�March:�700�� �
�
Current�Workforce�Forecast�for�30th�March�2012:�32,320�� �
�
Notes:� There� are� PCSOs� and� Specials� in� training� not� yet� ready� for� swearing� in� and� we� are�
recruiting� transferees� from�other� forces� also.� The� January� 2012� end� year� forecast� figures� are�
provided�in�the�above�table.��These�figures�may�differ�from�those�predicted�for�the�end�of�the�
Financial�Year,�March�2012.� �
�
�
�

Page 77



3.3� DEATHS�FOLLOWING�POLICE�CONTACT�(Quarterly�Update�only)�
�
3.3.1� Annual�figures�are�calculated�on�a�fiscal�year�basis�(April�to�March):�
�

Table�of�Deaths�Following�Police�Contact:�Annual�Totals�(2009-2011)4�

Categories�
April�09�–�

March�10�

April�10�–�

March�11�

April�11�–�

March�125�
Total�

Fatal�road�traffic�incidents�involving�

the�police�
8� 3� 0� 11�

Fatal�shooting�incidents�involving�the�

police�
0� 0� 1� 1�

Deaths�in�or�following�Custody� 1� 3� 0� 4�

Deaths�during�or�following�other�types�

of�contact�with�Police�
2� 7� 5� 14�

TOTALS�(IPCC�CAT�1�-�4�only)� 11� 13� 6� 30�

Suicide�following�custody�(New�IPCC�

Category)�
10� 7� 4� 21�

TOTALS�(Including�Suicides)� 21� 20� 10� 51�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

                                                           
4�2004:�Collection�of�Statistics�from�this�moment�onwards�now�the� responsibility�of� the� IPCC�&�may�differ� from�
statistics�kept�by�DPS�SI�Support�Office,�or�be�subject�to�later�re-classification�
2007:�Introduction�of�new�Category�by�IPCC;�'Suicide�following�Police�Custody'�(Not�included�in�IPCC�end�of�year�

statistics)�

2011�:�IPCC�redefine�the�Home�Office�Categories�and�apply�the�criteria�to�the�2010/2011�stats;(The�term�‘police’�

include�police�civilians�as�well�as�police�officers.�Deaths�of�police�personnel�or�incidents�that�involve�off-duty�police�

personnel�are�not�included�in�these�categories)�

IPCC�Cat�1:�Road�traffic�fatalities�include�deaths�of�motorists,�cyclists�or�pedestrians�arising�from�police�pursuits,�
police�vehicles�responding�to�emergency�calls�and�other�police�traffic-related�activity�
IPCC�Cat�2:�Fatal�shootings�include�fatalities�where�police�officers�fire�the�fatal�shots.�
IPCC�Cat�3:�Deaths�in�or�following�police�custody�include�deaths�of�persons�who�have�been�arrested�or�otherwise�
detained�by�the�police.�
It�includes�deaths�which�occur�whilst�a�person�is�being�arrested�or�taken�into�detention.�
The�death�may�have�taken�place�on�police,�private�or�medical�premises,� in�a�public�place�or� in�a�police�or�other�
vehicle�
IPCC�Cat�4:�Other�deaths�following�police�contact�includes�deaths�where�the�fatality�follows�contact�with�the�police�
and�which�did�not�involve�arrest�or�other�detention�and�is�subject�to�an�independent�investigation�which�is�carried�
out�by�the�IPCC’s�own�investigators�
IPCC�Cat�5:�Apparent�suicides�following�police�custody�includes�all�apparent�suicides�that�occur�within�two�days�of�
release�from�police�custody.�It�also�includes�apparent�suicides�where�the�period�spent�in�custody�may�be�relevant�
to�the�subsequent�death�and�they�occur�beyond�two�days�of�release�from�custody.�

 
5�DPS�SI�referrals�to�IPCC�for�the�2011/12�fiscal�year�are�correct�as�of�17/01/2012�and�as�such�await�classification�
by�the�IPCC. 

Page 78



3.4� PERFORMANCE�AGAINST�TARGETS�

3.4.1� This�section�of�the�report�details�MPS�performance�against�the�2011/12�KPIs�and�their�

targets�as�set�out�in�the�MPA/MPS�Policing�London�Business�Plan�2011-14:�

April�2011�to�January�2012� 1�year�
Target��

3�years�
Target�

Status� Current�FY� Previous�FY� Percentage�
change�

KPI1�–�Violence�portfolio�� -2%� -5%� G� 114,579� 122,915� -6.8%�

KPI2�–�Rape�sanction�detections��� 4%� 10%� R� 473� 502� -5.8%�

KPI3�–�Number�of�KSIs�� -2%� -5%� G� 212� 242� -12.0%�

KPI4�–�Number�of�property�
crimes�

-1%� -3%� R� 450,513� 443,876� +1.5%�

KPI5�-�Total�number�of�ASB�
Incidents�2�

�� �� �� �� �� ��

KPI6��-�Local�police�doing�a�good�
job��

67%� 68%� A� 66%� 65%� -1%�pts�
against�target��

Percentage�of�victims�satisfied�
with�the�overall�service�provided�
by�the�police��

78%� 80%� R� 74%� 77%� -4%�pts�
against�target�

Percentage�of�white�victims�
satisfied�with�the�overall�service�
provided�by�the�police�

�� �� �� 77%� 79%� ��

Percentage�of�BME�victims�
satisfied�with�the�overall�service�
provided�by�the�police�

�� �� �� 72%� 71%� ��

KPI8�Delivering�a�safe�and�secure�
Olympics�(programme�status�
target)��

�� �� A� N/A� N/A� N/A�

KPI9�Efficient�use�of�assets� Budget�variance�£nil�or�
better�

A� +£9.2�m� N/A� N/A�

• Violence�portfolio�crimes�continue�to�decrease�and�are�on�target.��A�reduction�of�6.8%�

has�been�recorded�in�FY�to�January�2012�(equivalent�to�8,336�less�crimes).���

• The� total� number�of� killed� and� seriously� injured� also�decreased�by�12%� in� the� rolling�

year�to�October�2011�compared�to�the�previous�12�months.�

• The�total�number�of�rape�sanction�detections�has�decreased�by�5.8%.���

• The�total�number�of�property�crimes�also�increased�by�1.5%.��

• Percentage�of�victims�satisfied�with�the�overall�service�provided�by�police�also�decreased�

by�4�percentage�points.�

�

3.5� REVENUE�AND�CAPITAL�BUDGET�MONITORING�2011/12�

3.5.1� As� at� the� end� of� period� 9,� the� revenue� budget� is� forecast� to� underspend� by� £9.3m�
(0.3%� of� budget)� before� any� account� is� taken� of� the� costs� of�Operations� Kirkin� and�
Withern.��

�

Page 79



3.5.2� The� Capital� Programme� as� at� the� end� of� the� same� period� shows� year� to� date�
expenditure� of� £117.6m.� This� represents� 62.9%� of� the� annual� programme� budget� of�
£187m.�

�
3.5.3� The�forecast�does�not� include�the�budget�pressures�arising�from�the�policing�response�

to� recent� public� disorder� within� London� (Operation� Kirkin),� the� ongoing� police�
investigation� (Operation�Withern)�which�are�collectively�estimated� to�be�an�additional�
cost� of� £79.5m.� An� increase� of� £1.5M� on� that� reported� at� period� 8� as� a� result� of�
additional� claims� of� £3.4M� submitted� by� other� forces� for� mutual� aid� for� Operation�
Kirkin,�offset�in�part�by�a�reduction�in��the�forecast�for�costs�associated�with�Operation�
Withern.�Potential� riot�damage� costs� continue� to�be�estimated� to�be� in� the� region�of�
£300m.� A� special� grant� application� for� £378M� was� submitted� to� the� Home� on�
November�18th,� representing� the�estimated� total� additional� costs�of�Operations�Kirkin�
and�Withern� and� the�Riot�Damages�Act� claims� as� at�period�8.�The�Home�Office�have�
now�advised�the�MOPC�they�will�reimburse�the�following�costs:-�

�
3.5.4� 85%�(£55.5m)�of�the�cost�of�Operation�Kirkin.�However,�there�is�still�the�potential�for�

the�MOPC�to�receive�the�remaining�15%�(£9.8m),�as�negotiations�with�the�Home�Office�
are�continuing.�

�
3.5.5� Riot�Damages�Act�-�The�Home�Office�have�offered�an�initial�£100m�this�year�to�cover�

the�costs�that�the�MOPC�has�started�to�pay�out.��There�will�be�an�opportunity�to�review�
this�funding�with�the�Home�Office�next�financial�year,�when�there�is�more�certainty�over�
the�level�of�claims.�

�
3.5.6� Funding�for�Operation�Withern�will�be�subject�to�a�new�bid�to�the�Home�Office�before�

the�end�of�the�financial�year.�
�

Page 80



�

The� table� below� provides� details� of� income� and� expenditure� for� period� 9� and� forecast�
year�end�expenditure:�
�

Total�
Year�to�

Date�
Budget������
£000s�

Total�
Year�to�

Date�
Actuals����
£000s�

Total�
Year�to�

Date�
Varianc

e�����
£000s� ��

Approv
ed�

Annual�
Budget����
£000s�

Revised�
Annual�
Budget����
£000s�

Annual�
Forecas

t����
£000s�

Varianc
e�����

£000s�����
�� �� �� Pay� �� �� �� ��

1,382,20
8�

1,375,91
3� -6,296�

Police�Officer�
Pay�

1,852,1
33�

1,847,04
5�

1,846,43
3� -612�

458,693� 444,188� -14,505� Police�Staff�Pay�
606,58

7� 603,572� 590,827� -12,745�

110,129� 105,514� -4,615� PCSO�Pay�
146,09

3� 145,893� 134,907� -10,987�

3,938� 4,449� 510�
Traffic�Wardens�
Pay� 3,690� 4,119� 4,481� 362�

1,954,9
69�

1,930,0
63� -24,906� Total�Pay�

2,608,5
03�

2,600,6
29�

2,576,6
48� -23,981�

�� �� �� Overtime� �� �� �� ��

77,929� 118,600� 40,671� Police�Overtime� 99,800� 102,167� 108,333� 6,166�

20,373� 22,378� 2,005�
Police�Staff�
Overtime� 26,969� 27,375� 28,007� 632�

401� 2,057� 1,656� PCSO�Overtime� 461� 552� 724� 173�

167� 174� 7�
Traffic�Warden�
Overtime� 45� 215� 179� -36�

98,870� 143,209� 44,339�
Total��
Overtime�

127,27
5� 130,309� 137,244� 6,935�

2,053,8
38�

2,073,2
72� 19,433�

Total�Pay�&�
Overtime�

2,735,7
78�

2,730,9
38�

2,713,8
91� -17,046�

�� �� ��
Running�
Expenses� �� �� �� ��

37,118� 58,147� 21,029�

Employee�
Related�
Expenditure� 26,111� 66,385� 66,679� 294�

152,795� 168,062� 15,267� Premises�Costs�
195,90

4� 202,422� 205,092� 2,670�

47,613� 46,650� -963� Transport�Costs� 61,265� 64,154� 64,756� 602�

318,674� 243,155� -75,520�
Supplies�&�
Services�

433,20
6� 412,481� 414,409� 1,928�

24,844� 23,034� -1,810�
Discretionary�
Pension�Costs� 33,125� 33,125� 33,125� -0�

23,396� 34,712� 11,315�
Capital�
Financing�Costs� 53,501� 55,532� 49,593� -5,940�

604,441� 573,760� -30,681�
Total�Running�
Expenses�

803,11
2� 834,099� 833,653� -446�

2,658,2
79�

2,647,0
32� -11,247�

Total�
Expenditure�

3,538,8
90�

3,565,0
37�

3,547,5
45� -17,492�

Page 81



�� �� �� Income� �� �� �� ��

-600� -687� -87�
Interest�
Receipts� -800� -800� -802� -2�

-
218,313�

-
223,994� -5,680� Other�Income�

-
295,54

5�
-

293,646�
-

295,823� -2,177�

-
218,913�

-
224,680� -5,767� Total�Income�

-
296,34

5�
-

294,446�
-

296,625� -2,178�
2,439,3

66�
2,422,3

51� -17,014�
Net�
Expenditure�

3,242,5
45�

3,270,5
90�

3,250,9
20� -19,670�

-
366,874�

-
348,989� 17,885� Specific�Grant�

-
493,72

1�
-

497,653�
-

491,900� 5,753�
2,072,4

91�
2,073,3

62� 871�
Net�Revenue�
Expenditure�

2,748,8
24�

2,772,9
38�

2,759,0
20� -13,918�

-49,542� -27,483� 22,059�

Transfer�
to/(from)�
Earmarked�
Reserves� -35,825� -59,937� -55,271� 4,667�

�� �� 0�

Transfer�
to/(from)�
General�
Reserves� 0� �� �� 0�

2,022,9
49�

2,045,8
79� 22,930�

Budget�
Requirement�

2,713,0
00�

2,713,0
00�

2,703,7
49� -9,251�

�� �� �� Financed�by� �� �� �� ��

-
845,802�

-
845,802� 0� Police�Grant�

-
1,127,7

36�

-
1,127,73

6�

-
1,127,73

6� 0�
-

1,150,60
0�

-
1,150,60

0� -0�

Payments�under�
s.102�GLA�Act�
1999�

-
1,585,2

64�

-
1,585,26

4�

-
1,585,26

4� 0�
-

1,996,4
01�

-
1,996,4

02� -0� Total�Funding�

-
2,713,0

00�

-
2,713,0

00�

-
2,713,0

00� 0�

26,548� 49,477� 22,929� MOPC�Total� 0� 0� -9,251� -9,251�

Page 82



�

�
3.5.7 The�overall�Period�9� revenue�forecast�outturn� is�an�anticipated�underspend�of�£9.3m.�

This�represents�a�minor�favourable�movement�of�0.1m�from�the�forecast�underspend�of�
£9.2m�reported�at�Period�8,�due�in�the�main�to�a�favourable�movement�in�Supplies�and�
Services�of�£2.7m,�a� reduction� in�PCSO�Pay�of�£4.1m,�and�a� favourable�movement� in�
Premises� Costs� of� £3.7m,� offset� by� an� adverse�movement� of� £1.8m� in� Police�Officer�
Overtime,� an� adverse� movement� in� Police� Officer� Pay� of� £1.9m,� and� an� increase� in�
Transfers�To/From�Reserves�of�£4.7m.�

�

The�main�forecast�variances�from�budget�are�set�out�below:��
�
3.5.7.1 Police� Officer� Pay� -� An� underspend� of� £0.6m� -� 0%� of� budget.� As� previously�

reported,� the�actual� strength�on�1�April�2011�was�32,459.�Following�wastage,� the�
actual� strength� at� 31� December� had� fallen� by� 960� to� 31,499� but� is� forecast� to�
increase�by�821�through�the�year�to�32,320�by�the�end�of�March�2012.��
�

3.5.7.2 The� Olympics� Programme� has� an� underspend� of� £3.1m� (matched� by� a� reduction� in�
specific� grant� funding� from� the� Home� Office)� as� recruitment� to� some� Olympic�
security� projects� has� been� slower� than� anticipated� when� the� budget� for� these�
projects�was�originally�set.��However�it�is�still�anticipated�numbers�will�be�broadly�in�
line�with�the�planned�recruitment�targets�by�the�end�of�this�financial�year.��

�
3.5.7.3 The� forecast� currently� assumes� that� SPPs� totalling� £8M� will� be� paid� in� the� current�

financial�year.�This�is�subject�to�MOPC�approval.��
�

3.5.7.4 Police� Staff� Pay� –� An� underspend� of� £12.7m� (2.1%� of� budget).� In� order� to�
manage�reductions�as�efficiently�as�possible�a�star�chamber�was�established�last�year�
in� the�MPS� and� continues� to� operate.�As� a� result,� the� number� of� staff� in� post� in�
December� (including� temporary� staff)� was� 13,749� compared� to� the� planned� year�
end�strength�of�14,801�reflected�in�the�Policing�London�Business�Plan.�The�forecast�
position�for�31�March�2012�(including�temporary�staff)�is�13,725.�

�
3.5.7.5 Overall,� there�has�been�an�adverse�movement�of�£0.4m�from�the�position� reported�at�

Period�8.�This� is�due�primarily�to�a�reassignment�of�Counter�Terrorism�costs�within�
Specialist�Crime.��

�
3.5.7.6 The�estimated�savings�from�the�review�of�Police�Staff�terms�and�conditions�will�not�be�

delivered� in� 2011/12,� thus� placing� pressure� on� police� staff� pay� budgets�which� is�
reflected�in�the�forecast.��

�
3.5.7.7 In� order� to� improve� corporate� financial� resilience,� the� MPS� has� agreed� additional�

constraints� on� the� use� of� staff� (including� PCSOs)� underspends� in� budgeted�
initiatives.��

�
3.5.7.8 PCSO�Pay� -�An�underspend�of�£11m�-�7.5%�of�budget.� � The� actual� strength� in�

December� was� 3,787� PCSOs� and� the� forecast� underspend� reflects� the� current�
expectation� of� Boroughs� that� they� will� be� showing� an� understrength� position�
against�budgeted�FTEs�at�the�year�end.�The�year�end�forecast�assumes�a�strength�of�
2,724� against� the� planned� year� end� strength� of� 3,825� reflected� in� the� Policing�
London� Business� Plan.� This� is� dependent� upon� 1,100� PCSOs� being� attested� as�

Page 83



Police�Officers� during� the� last� three�months� of� this� financial� year,� to� achieve� the�
target�strength�32,320.��

�
3.5.7.9 Traffic�Warden�Pay�-�An�overspend�of�£0.4m�-�8.8%�of�budget.�A�new�model�for�

delivery� of� the� Safer� Transport� function� has� been� agreed� between� the�MPS� and�
Transport�for�London�(TfL).�The�new�model�involves�less�reliance�on�Traffic�Wardens�
with�the�disbandment�of�the�Traffic�Warden�Service�during�the�year.�At�the�start�of�
the� year� there� were� 184� traffic� wardens� in� post� who� have� been� offered� early�
departure�terms�and�opportunities�for�redeployment�where�practical.�The�December�
strength�for�Traffic�Wardens�was�7,�and�the�current�forecast�position�for�year�end�is�
5,�in�line�with�the�target�strength.�

�
3.5.7.10 Police�Officer�Overtime�–�An�overspend�of�£6.2m�-�6%�of�budget.�There�has�

been�an�adverse�movement�of�£1.8m�from�the�position�reported�at�Period�8.�This�is�
primarily� due� to� the� creation� of� a� new� central� London� reserve� within� Central�
Operations.��

�
3.5.7.11 A�grant�of�£3.6m�from�the�Home�Office�has�been�made�to�the�MOPC/MPS�towards�

the� overall� cost� of� policing� the� Royal� Wedding,� which� has� been� reflected� in� the�
Income�(Specific�Grant)�forecast.��

�
3.5.7.12 Police� Staff� Overtime� –� An� overspend� of� £0.6m–� 2.3%� of� budget.� The�

overspend�is�primarily�within�Specialist�Crime,�in�the�Met�Intelligence�Bureau,�where�
management� are� working� to� address� a� budget� shortfall� issue� and� in� Specialist�
Operations,�where�overtime�has�been�used�to�manage�vacant�posts�at�the�Palace�of�
Westminster.�The�latter�is�offset�by�an�increase�in�income.�

�
3.5.7.13 Employee�Related�Expenditure�–�An�overspend�of�£0.3m�-�0.4%�of�budget.�

The� overspend� is� primarily� in� Specialist� Crime,� and� relates� to� training� (offset� by�
underspends�on�pay�budgets)�and�unbudgeted�secondment�costs.�Additionally�there�
is� an� overspend� within� the� Olympics� Security� Directorate� � relating� to� seconded�
Police�Officers� (offset�by� a� reduction� in� the�Police�Officer�Pay� forecast).� There� is�
also�an�overspend�of�£0.5m�in�Central�Operations,�relating�to�external�mutual�aid�(in�
addition� to� expenditure� on� aid� relating� to� Operation� Kirkin).� The� overspends� are�
partially�offset�by�an�underspend� in�the�Deputy�Commissioner’s�Portfolio,�which� is�
mainly�due�to�the�centralisation�of�external�training.�The�forecast� includes�£36.5m�
for�costs�in�2011/12�relating�to�the�early�departure�programme�which�is�funded�by�a�
matching� transfer� from� reserves.� An� earmarked� reserve� of� £57.2m� has� been�
approved� by� the� Authority� to� support� the� early� departure� programme,� which�
includes�some�costs�which�will�fall�in�future�years.��

�
3.5.7.14 Premises�Costs�–�An�over-spend�of�£2.7m�-�1.3%�of�budget.�The�overspend�is�

due�primarily�to�additional�expenditure�on�business�rates�payments.�The�expectation�
at�the�commencement�of�the�year�was�that�the�outstanding�refund�of�£2.5m�from�
Westminster�City�Council�in�regard�to�New�Scotland�Yard�would�have�been�received.�
Action�to�recover�this�money�is�ongoing.�The�other�main�reasons,�are�the�impact�of�
the�reprofiling�of�certain�disposals� linked�to�the�Corporate�Real�Estate�Programme�
(including� Cannon� Row� and� Hendon),� and� a� number� of� appeals� that� are� being�
processed.� There� has� been� a� favourable� movement� of� £3.7m� from� the� position�
reported�at�Period�8.�This�is�primarily�within�the�Resources�Directorate,�and�relates�
to�a�reassignment�of�counter-terrorism�costs.��

�

Page 84



3.5.7.15 Transport�Costs�-�An�overspend�of�£0.6m�-�0.9%�of�budget.The�overspend�is�
primarily�within�the�Resources�Directorate�where,�within�Customer�and�Commercial�
Services,�managers� are� addressing� the� overspend� on� fuel� by� redirecting� resources�
from�elsewhere�in�the�Department�and�from�in-year�efficiencies�such�as�from�vehicle�
hire� and� the� new� contract� for� vehicle� storage.� This� is� partially� offset� by� an�
underspend� in� Specialist�Operations,� where� tighter�management� control� has� been�
placed�on�overseas�travel�and�deployments,�and�in�Specialist�Crime�where�there�is�a�
forecast�underspend�on�overseas�travel.��

�
3.5.7.16 Supplies�and�Services�-�An�overspend�of�£1.9m�-�0.5%�of�budget.�The�overall�

position� is�made�up�of�several�subjective�variances:�There� is�a�£8.4m�overspend� in�
the�Deputy�Commissioners�Portfolio,�primarily�due�to�the�cost�of�meeting�a�shortfall�
in� funding� for� third� party� liability� costs.� Territorial� Policing� has� an� overspend� of�
£2.8m,�which�primarily� relates� to�expenditure�on� the�TP�Development�Programme�
Public�Access�project�and�Crime�Recording�and�Investigation�Bureau�(CRIB)�project.��
This� is� partially� offset�by� an�underspend�of�£7.2m� in�Specialist�Crime,�due� to� the�
cessation�of�the�Forensic�Science�Services�contract.�There�is�also�an�underspend�of�
£1.3m�in�the�Directorate�of�Information.��

�
3.5.7.17 There� has� been� a� favourable� movement� of� £2.7m� from� the� position� reported� in�

Period�8.�This�is�mainly�due�to�the�closure�of�Forensic�Science�Service�Ltd,�and�also�
due�to�a�reduction�of�£1.7m�in�Territorial�Policing,�primarily�due�to�expenditure�on�
the�TP�Development�Programme�(local�publicity�costs�and� local�procurement)�as�a�
result�of�delays�in�the�Public�Access�project.��

�
3.5.7.18 Capital�Financing�Costs�–�An�underspend�of�£5.9m�-�10.7%�of�budget.� �As�

reported�at�Period�8,�the�underspend�relates�to�a�reduction�in�the�minimum�revenue�
provision�(MRP)� linked�to�a�decision�to� fund�capital�expenditure� in�2010/11�from�
capital� reserves� rather� then� borrowing.� Also,� there� is� an� underspend� forecast� in�
relation�to�interest�on�external� loans�reflecting�the�decision�to�take�out�short�term�
variable�rate�loans�(2�years)�that�currently�attract�a�lower�rate�of�interest�than�those�
used�in�calculating�the�budget�requirement.��

�
3.5.7.19 Discretionary�Pension�Costs�-�No�variation�to�budget.�A�challenge�has�been�

made�to�the�way�the�MPS�calculates�injury�pensions�resulting�in�a�potential�budget�
pressure�and�this�is�being�kept�under�review.��

�
3.5.7.20 Other�Income�-�An�over-achievement�of�£2.2m�-�0.7%�of�budget.�The�over-

achievement� is� primarily� in� the� Resources� Directorate,� where� there� has� been� an�
over-recovery�of�rent,�and�a�termination�payment�received�relating�to�the�Land-flex�
contract� at� the� Empress� State� Building.� Specialist� Crime� are� forecast� to� receive�
additional� unbudgeted� income� from� the� Home� Office� of� £1.9m,� relating� to�
expenditure�for�the�McCann�investigation,�and�Specialist�Operations�have�an�over-
recovery�of�£0.5m,�relating�to�security�work�at�the�Palace�of�Westminster.�These�are�
partially� offset� by� an� under-recovery� of� funding� within� Territorial� Policing� from�
partner�organisations�for�Police�Officer�and�PCSO�posts.�This�relates�primarily�to�the�
match-funding� scheme� with� an� under-recovery� of� £4m� for� which� the� budget�
assumed� funding� for� 115� police� officers� for� a� full� year� where� as� the� forecast�
assumes�that�these�agreements�will�not�be�finalised�until�later�in�the�financial�year.�
At�present�6�agreements�have�been�signed,�and�14�others�are�pending.�There�is�also�
an�under-recovery�of�£2.6m�within�Territorial�Policing�that� relates�to�planned�cost�
sharing�and�externally� funded�posts� (37�police�officer�posts�and�154�PCSO�posts)�

Page 85



which� have� not� yet� been� agreed.� � There� has� been� a�minor� adverse�movement� of�
£0.1m�from�the�position�reported�at�Period�8.�
�

3.5.7.21 Specific� Grant� –� An� under-achievement� of� £5.8m� -� 1.1%� of� budget.� The�
overall� under-achievement� is� primarily� due� to� an� under-achievement� within� the�
Olympics�Security�Directorate�(£6.1m),�where�the�grant�level�matches�reductions�in�
forecast�expenditure,�principally�within�Police�Officer�and�Police�Staff�Pay.�There�is�
also� an� under-recovery� of� £3.2m� forecast� within� the� Territorial� Policing�
Metropolitan�Special�Constable�grant�to�ensure� that� the�grant� forecast� is�matched�
against� lower� than� previously� budgeted� expenditure� levels.� These� have� been�
partially�offset�by�£3.6m�of� funding� from� the�Home�Office� relating� to� the�cost�of�
policing�the�Royal�Wedding.�Additionally,�there�has�been�an�overachievement�(£1m)�
of�Loan�Charges�Grant�which�is�calculated�on�the�estimated�levels�of�useable�capital�
receipts.�Lower� levels�of�useable�capital� receipts� result� in�higher�grant�with�higher�
levels�resulting�in�lower�grant.�The�balance�of�useable�capital�receipts�held�at�1�April�
2011� was� lower� than� originally� estimated,� increasing� the� Loan� Charges� Grant�
accordingly.���

�
3.5.7.22 Transfer� To/From� Reserves� -� an� adverse� variance� of� £4.7m� -� 7.8%� of�

budget.�The�adverse�variance�relates�primarily�to�the�proposed�transfer�to�reserves�
of�£4.5m�of�unspent�funds�from�the�2011/12�budget,�to�assist�with�pressures�in�the�
2012/13�budget�as�stated�in�the�draft�2012�-�15�Policing�London�Business�Plan.��

�
3.5.7.23 Diamond�Jubilee�At�this�stage,�no�additional�in-year�budget�pressures�have�been�

identified� for� planning� costs� arising� from� the� Queen’s� Diamond� Jubilee� in� June�
2012.�It�is�currently�expected�that�any�in-year�costs�arising�will�be�managed�within�
existing�budgets.�The�position�will,�however,�be�kept�under� review.�The�additional�
costs� expected� to� arise� in� 2012/13� are� being� included� in� the� 2012-15� budget�
planning�assumptions.�

�
3.5.7.24 Budget� Resilience� Given� the� uncertainties� relating� to� the� delivery� of� planned�

savings,� resilience�of�£25.1m�was�built� into� the�budget.� It� is� proposed� to� transfer�
this�provision�to�the�Early�Departures�reserve�which�reduces�the�ability�to�fund�any�
further�budget�pressures�this�year.�Every�effort� is�being�made�to�manage�any�such�
pressures�that�arise�within�existing�budgets.�However,�there�are�a�number�of�other�
potential�pressures�to�be�managed�which�have�not�been�included�in�the�forecast,�i.e:�

�

• Operations��Withern,�Weeting,�Elveden,�and�Appleton�

• early�departures�
• discretionary�pension�costs�
• change�programmes�
• other�Public�Order�events�
�
The� MOPC� aim� remains,� if� possible,� to� retain� the� budget� resilience� provision� in�
order�to�support�future�Early�Departure�Scheme�costs,�and�to�support�the�delivery�
of�major�change�programmes�in�2012/13�and�beyond.��

�
3.5.7.25 Capital� Monitoring� Overview� As� at� period� 9� year-to-date� expenditure� is�

£117.6m,�representing�62.9%�of�the�2011/12�net�programme�budget�of�£187.0m.��
The� comparable� year� to� date� expenditure� for� 2010� at� Period� 9�was� £124.1m,� or�

Page 86



44.9%�of�the�programme�budget,�a�significant�increase�in�the�level�of�expenditure�
as�a�percentage�of�approved�budget.���

�
3.5.7.26 The�gross�programme�forecast�has�increased�from�£209.8m�at�Period�8�to�£211.3m,�

an�increase�of�£1.5m.���
�

3.5.7.27 Property�Services�Programme�-�forecast�expenditure�of�£80.4m,�representing�a�
net� outturn� forecast� underspend� of� £7.1m� -� 8.1%� of� the� revised� programme�
budget.��The�forecast�remains�unchanged�from�that�reported�at�the�end�of�Period�
8.�

�
3.5.7.28 Directorate� of� Information� Programme� -� forecast� expenditure� of� £97.0m,�

representing�a�net�outturn�forecast�overspend�of�£7.2m�-�8.0%�of�the�programme�
budget.� � This� is� a� reduction� of� £0.6m� from� last�month� following� a� review�of� the�
progress� of� projects.� The� reduction� in� forecast� reflects� revised� delivery�
schedules/implementation� dates� for� a� number� of� schemes.� � In� certain� instances�
projects� have� been� re-phased� such� that� funds� will� now� be� required� in� 2012/13�
rather�than�2011/12.��

�
3.5.7.29 The�main�changes�are�as�follows:�
�

• £0.5m�re-phasing�into�12/13�on�Event�Management�Futures�due�to�the�project�
being�placed�on�hold�by�the�Project�board�until�after�the�Olympics,�

• £0.5m�re-phasing�into�12/13�on�MetTime�2�Phase�2�delays�being�the�knock-on�
from�Phase�1�go-live�issue�resolution.�

• £0.9m�rephasing� into�12/13�on�Identity�Access�Management�Central�Back�End�
(CBE)�and�IAM�Roll-out.�

• PYXIS� (Corporate� Secure� System)� -� £0.8m� re-phased� into� 2012/13.� � This�
represents�a�delay�to�the�systems�implementation�and�revised�requirements�from�
the�Apollo�project.�

• Technology�Infrastructure�Support�Projects�-�£0.9m�re-phased�into�2012/13.��In�
December� 2011� the� delivery� schedule� for� projects� was� reviewed� and� the�
reduction�in�2011/12�reflects�revised�delivery/implementation�dates.���

�
3.5.7.30 Transport�Services�Expenditure�-�forecast�expenditure�of�£27.2m,�an�increase�of�

£2.0m� from� that� reported� last� month.� � This� is� due� to� the� approval� of� Counter�
Terrorism�initiatives�which�are�fully�funded.��

�
3.5.7.31 Other�Projects�Programme�-�a�forecast�expenditure�of�£6.7m,�representing�a�net�

outturn� forecast� overspend� of� £3.7m.� The� forecast� shows� a�minor� variation� from�
that�reported�at�the�end�November�2011.��

�
3.5.7.32 Capital� Receipts�The� capital� receipts� budget� of� £40m� is� deemed� achievable� by�

Property�Services� as� part� of� the�Corporate�Real� Estate�Major� Change�Programme�
(CRE).��Receipts�of�£26.4m�have�been�secured�up�to�the�end�of�Period�9.��

�
�

Page 87



�

4.� DEPUTY�MAYOR�FOR�POLICING�ANC�CRIME:�ACTIVITY�REPORT�
�
4.1� FORMAL�DMPC�DECISIONS�
�
The�following�details�the�decisions�taken�by�DMPC�during�the�period�23/1/12�to�24/2/126.��
�
�
3�February� DMPCD�2012-1� �
MOPC�Scheme�of�delegation� �
� � � �
31�January� DMPCD�2012-2� �
Revised�funding�allocation�to�Islington�Community�Safety�Board�
�
3�February� DMPCD�2012-3�
Riot�Damages�Act�-�delegated�authority�for�the�processing�of�compensation�claims�
�
3�February� DMPCD�2012-4� �
Sovereign�Gate�–�transfer�of�front�counter�
�
3�February� DMPCD�2012-5� �
Awards�of�legal�services�framework�agreement�
�
8�February� DMPCD�2012-6� �
Disposal�of�surplus�properties�
�
8�February� DMPCD�2012-7� �
Budget�virement�
�
8�February� DMPCD�2012-11� �
Payment�of�special�priority�payments�
�
9�February� DMPCD�2012-12� �
Request� for� financial� assistance� for� the� legal� representation�of�a�member�of� police�
staff�
�
9�February� DMPCD�2012-13� �
Request�for�financial�assistance�for�the�legal�representation�of�a�MPS�officer�
�
9�February� DMPC�2012-14� �
Request�for�financial�assistance�for�the�legal�representation�of�a�MPS�officer�
�
14�February� DMPCD�2012-18��
Single�Tender�Action�–�Cap�Gemini�ICT�Services,�Hendon�Peel�Centre�
�
14�February� DMPCD�2012-16��
Single�Tender�Action,�CCTV�Microwave�Links�
�
14�February� DMPCD�2012-20��

                                                           
6
 Bold - DMPCDs taken but not yet published 

Page 88



Single�Tender�Action,�ANPR�Live�Data�Feed�
�
4.2� DMPC�MEETINGS�
�
4.2.1� The� following� section�details� key� events� and�meetings� attended�by� the�DMPC�during�

the�reporting�period:�
�

• Briefing�regarding�Imber�Court�
�

• Commissioner:�
Commissioner�weekly�meetings�x4�and�telephone�call�x1�
Commissioner�and�the�Mayor�x2�
Commissioner�and�Council�leaders�

�

• Leveson�Inquiry:�
Eversheds�regarding�Leveson�inquiry�x2�

�

• Gangs:�
AC�Rowley,�Martin�Hewitt�and�Cmdr.�Steve�Rodhouse�regarding�gangs�
Launch�of�Gangs�initiative�event�
�

• Lord�Justice�Leveson�
�

• Ben�Owusu�and�John�Azah�(Race�IAG)�
�

• Richard�Dickinson,�New�West�End�Company�
�

• AC�Byrne�regarding�TP�Performance�
�

• MPS�Superintendents�association�
�

• MOPC/MPS�budgetary�and�finance�review�
�

• Discussions�with�MOPC�officers�regarding�MPS�Policing�Plan�
�

• Dep.�Comm.�and�Cmdr.�Tony�Eastaugh�regarding�Stop�and�Search�
�

• Sharon�Flannery�and�Richard�Quinn�regarding�UKBA�
�

• Attended�MPS�Away�day�and�the�morning�of�the�10�Feb�MPS�Away�day�
�

• Police�and�Crime�Committee�x2�
�

• Javed�Khan�and�Jeff�Gardner�regarding�Victim�Support�
�

• AC�Rowley�regarding�Preparations�for�the�Jubilee�
�

• Alison�Saunders,�CPS�
�

• MOPC�Symposium�x�2�

Page 89



�

• MOPC�Practitioners�event�
�

• Paladin�visit�to�Kings�Cross�and�St�Pancras�
�

• PCC�report�with�Anne�McMeel�and�Deputy�Commissioner�
�

• Olympic�security�test�exercise�
�

• Joint�Engagement�Meeting�–�Islington�
�

• Recording�for�Total�Policing�Awards�
�

• IPCC�–�Deborah�Glass�
�

• Westminster�SWP�
�

• Olympics�briefing�from�Chris�Allison�–�phone�call�
�
4.2.2� Media�appearances:�Dangerous�dogs;�youth�offending�teams;�sobriety.�
�
4.3� FORWARD�PLAN�OF�DECISIONS�AND�INITIATIVES�
�
4.3.1� DECISIONS�PENDING�
�
Single�tender�action�–�equipment�for�covert�purposes�
�
Single�tender�action�–�CCTV�Microwave�links�
�
CAP�Gemini�–�Jan�2012�forward�view�report�
�
Single�tender�action�–�Cap�Gemini�ICT�services,�Hendon�Peel�Centre�survey�
�
Request�for�authority�to�settle�personal�injury�claim�
�
Single�tender�action�–�ANPR�Live�Data�feed�
�
Appointment�of�Audit�Panel�
�
Disposal�of�property�
�
Private�Health�Insurance�
�
Treasury�Management�strategy�(including�TM�Prudential�Code�indicators)��
�
Annual�Fees�and�Charges�2012/13�
�
PPAF� 2012/13� strategy� and� approve� budget� for� charitable� disbursement� Insurance� strategy�
2012/13�
�

Page 90



The�MOPC� is� responsible� for� a� number� of� funding� streams� including� the� Community� Safety�
Fund,�Drugs� Interventions�Programme� funds,� Community� and�Police� Engagement�Group� and�
MOPC�Partnership�funding.��Arrangements�for�the�annual�funding�round�are�being�put�in�place�
and� in� line�with� the�MOPC� scheme�of� delegation� the�DMPC�will� be� required� to� sign� off� the�
allocations�in�the�next�6-8�weeks.�
�
4.3.2� MEETINGS/EVENTS�PENDING�
�

• ACCO�meeting�on�Gangs�
�

• Navin�Shah�on�Harrow�PCCG�funding�
�

• Heather�Munro,�Chief�Executive�London�Probation�
�

• Commissioner’s�Excellence�in�Total�Policing�Awards�
�

• Meeting�at�Downing�Street�on�Sobriety�
�

• Weekly�meetings�with�Commissioner�
�

• Monthly�performance�review�of�MPS�TP/CO/SCD�business�groups�
�

• Westminster�JEM�follow�up�
�

• Monthly�performance�review�of�MPS�DoR��
�

• Olympics�briefings�with�AC�Chris�Allison�
�

• People’s�Question�Time,�Hammersmith�
�

• Police�and�Crime�Committee�and�pre-meeting�
�

• London�Crime�Reduction�Board�
�

• Tower�Hamlets�JEM�
�

• Violence�against�Women�and�Girls�Panel�meeting�
�
4.4� EXPENSES�AND�ALLOWANCES�
�
4.4.1� None.�
�
�
5.� ORGANISATIONAL�AND�COMMUNITY�IMPLICATIONS�
�
5.1� LEGAL�IMPLICATIONS�
�
5.1.1� The�formal�decisions�of�MOPC�are�outlined�above.�
�
5.1.2� 10.2�The�MOPC�must�hold�the�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�Metropolis�to�account�for�

the�exercise�of:�

Page 91



(a)�The�functions�of�the�Commissioner;�and�
(b)�The�functions�of�persons�under�the�direction�and�control�of�the�Commissioner�

�
5.1.3� The�Police�Reform�and�Social�Responsibility�Act�2011�sets�out�in�more�detail�the�areas�

that�the�MOPC�must�hold�the�Commissioner�of�the�Police�of�the�Metropolis�to�account�
for,�and�these�are�further�set�out�in�the�Policing�Protocol.�

�
5.1.4� The� Police� and� Crime� Committee� scrutinises� the� MOPC’s� exercise� of� its� statutory�

functions.�
�
5.2� FINANCIAL�IMPLICATIONS�
�
5.2.1� Financial�implications�are�outlined�in�detail�above.�
�
5.3� EQUALITY�AND�DIVERSITY�IMPLICATIONS�
�
5.3.1� All�procurement�decisions�taken�by�the�MOPC�will�take�account�of�the�provisions�of�the�

responsible�procurement�strategy.�
�
5.3.2� The�MOPC� will� monitor� closely� the� equality� and� diversity� trends� in� crime� and� victim�

satisfaction�data.�

Page 92


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	Minutes_Transcript_Appendix 1

	4 Summary List of Actions
	Summary List of Actions_Appendix 1
	Summary List of Actions_Appendix 2

	5 Question and Answer Session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Commissioner for the Metropolitan Police
	MOPC Monthly Report Appendix 1


